Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

n REPORTING ENTITY

Sojitz Corporation (the “Company”) is a company domiciled in
Japan. The addresses of the Company’s registered headquarters
and main office are available on its corporate website (https://www.
sojitz.com/en/). The Consolidated Financial Statements of the
Company as of and for the year ended March 31, 2021 comprise
the Company and its subsidiaries (together referred to as the
"Group”) and the Group’'s interests in associates and joint ventures.

The Group is an integrated trading company engaged in a wide
range of business activities on a global basis. Its headquarters
includes business sections that handle merchandising, trading,
product manufacturing, services, project planning and
management, investments and financing activities, both
domestically and internationally.

n BASIS OF PRESENTATION

(1) Statement of compliance

The Consolidated Financial Statements have been prepared in
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards
(“IFRSs").

(2) Basis of measurement

The Consolidated Financial Statements have been prepared on a

historical cost basis except for the following material items in the

Consolidated Statement of Financial Position:

* Financial assets and liabilities measured at FVTPL are measured at
fair value;

e Financial assets measured at FVTOCI are measured at fair value;

e Defined benefit plan assets or liabilities are measured at the
present value of the defined benefit obligations less the fair value
of plan assets; and,

* Inventories acquired with the purpose of generating profits from
short-term fluctuations in price are measured at fair value less
sales costs.

(3) Functional currency and presentation currency

The Consolidated Financial Statements are presented in Japanese
yen, which is the Company’s functional currency. All financial
information presented in Japanese yen has been rounded down to
the nearest million yen.

For the convenience of readers outside Japan, the
accompanying Consolidated Financial Statements are also
presented in United States dollars by translating Japanese yen
amounts at the exchange rate of ¥111 to U.S.$1, the approximate
rate of exchange at the end of March 31, 2021. Such translations
should not be construed as representations that the Japanese yen
amounts could be converted into United States dollars at the
above.

(4) Use of estimates and judgments

The preparation of the Consolidated Financial Statements in
accordance with IFRSs requires management to make judgments,
estimates and assumptions that affect the application of accounting
policies and the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and
expenses. Actual results may differ from such estimates.

Estimates and underlying assumptions thereof are reviewed on
an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognized
in the period in which the estimates are revised and in any future
period affected.

The Group's accounting estimates, including accounting for
impairment of non-financial assets, are made based on the
information available when preparing the Consolidated Financial
Statements. The impact of the COVID-19 pandemic will differ in
degree and effect depending on the business and area, but our
accounting estimates are based on the premise that there will be
gradually recovered in the future.
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Information about critical judgments in applying accounting
policies that have the most significant effect on the amounts
recognized in the Consolidated Financial Statements is included in
the following notes:

* Note 3 (1)}—Scope of subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures
* Note 3 (14)—Recognition and presentation with respect to
revenue

Information about estimates and assumptions uncertainties that
have a significant risk of resulting in material adjustments within the
next consolidated fiscal year is included in the following notes:

* Note 16—Provisions

* Note 23—Impairment of non-financial assets

* Note 31—Measurement of defined benefit obligations
* Note 32—Recoverability of deferred tax assets

¢ Note 33 (6)—Fair value of financial instruments

When measuring the fair value of an asset or a liability, the
Group uses market observable data as far as possible. Fair values
are categorized into three levels in a fair value hierarchy based on
the inputs used in the valuation techniques as follows.

e Level 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical
assets or liabilities that the Group can access at the measurement
date.

e Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1
that are observable, either directly or indirectly.

e Level 3: unobservable inputs.

Information about assumptions made in measuring fair values is
included in the following notes:

* Note 10—Investment property

* Note 18—Assets held for sale and liabilities directly related
thereto

* Note 23—Impairment of non-financial assets

® Note 33 (6)—Fair value of financial instruments

(5) Changes in accounting policies

The Group has applied the Standards and Interpretations required
to be adopted from the year ended March 31, 2021. These
applications do not have a material effect on the Consolidated
Financial Statements.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The accounting policies set out below have been applied
consistently to all periods presented in these Consolidated
Financial Statements, and have been applied consistently by the
Group.

(1) Basis of consolidation

1) Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are entities that are controlled by the Group. The
Group controls an entity when it is exposed to, or has rights to,
variable returns from its involvement with the entity and has the
ability to affect those returns through its power over the entity.
When the Group holds a majority of the voting rights of another
entity, such entity is considered to be a subsidiary of the Group as it
is determined that control exists, unless there is clear evidence that
shares in such entity do not provide for control. In addition, in the
case that the Group holds less than or equal to 50 percent of the
voting rights of another entity, if it is determined through
agreements or the like with other investment companies that the
Group has significant control over such entity’s finance and
management, such entity is considered to be a subsidiary of the
Group.

The financial statements of subsidiaries are included in the
Consolidated Financial Statements from the date the Group
obtains control of the subsidiaries until the date the Group loses
such control of the subsidiaries. In the case that the accounting
policies adopted by subsidiaries are different from the Group’s
accounting policies, the financial statements of such subsidiaries
are, as needed, adjusted in order to be consistent with the Group's
accounting policies.

In addition, the Consolidated Financial Statements include the
financial statements of certain subsidiaries, such as those which
engage in the development of oil and gas in Egypt, of which the
fiscal year end date is different from that of the Company. The
reason being the impracticability of unifying the fiscal year end date
of such subsidiaries with that of the Company due to requirements
of local laws and regulations, characteristics of local business or the
like.

When the financial statements of subsidiaries used in the
preparation of the Consolidated Financial Statements are prepared
with fiscal year end dates that are different from that of the
Company, adjustments are made for the effects of significant
transactions or events that occurred between the fiscal year end
dates of such subsidiaries and that of the Company. The fiscal year
end date for the majority of such subsidiaries is December 31. The
difference between the fiscal year end dates of such subsidiaries
and that of the Company never exceeds three months.

If there are changes in the Group’s interest in a subsidiary, but
the Company retains control over the subsidiaries, such transaction
is accounted for as an equity transaction. Any difference between
the adjustment to the non-controlling interests and the fair value of
the consideration received is recognized directly in equity as equity
attributable to owners of the parent.

If control is lost with respect to a subsidiary, the Group
derecognizes such subsidiary’s assets and liabilities or any non-
controlling interests, or the other components of equity, related to
such subsidiary.

Any surplus or deficit arising from such loss of control is
recognized as profit or loss. If the Group retains any interest in such
subsidiary after the control is lost, then such interest is measured at
fair value at the date that control is lost.

2) Associates and joint ventures

Associates are those entities in which the Group has significant
influence, but not control or joint control, over their financial and
operating policies. Significant influence over each of such entities is
presumed to exist when the Group owns between 20 percent and
50 percent of the voting rights of each such entity.

In the case that the Group holds less than 20 percent of the
voting rights of another entity, if it is determined that the Group has
significant influence over such entity based on the provision of a
board member, a shareholders’ agreement or the like, such entity is
considered to be an associate of the Group.

Joint ventures are those entities with respect to which multiple
parties, including the Group, have joint control over the economic
activities by contract and unanimous consent of all of such parties is
required when deciding on financial/management strategies,
whereby the Group has rights to the net assets of the arrangement.

Except for those that are classified as assets held for sale in
accordance with IFRS 5 (Non-current Assets Held for Sale and
Discontinued Operations), investments made to associates and
joint ventures are accounted for using the equity method (such
associates and joint ventures hereinafter referred to collectively as
"Entities subject to Equity Method"). Investments made to Entities
subject to Equity Method are each accounted for as the carrying
amount following the application of the equity method less
accumulated impairment losses. Such carrying amount includes
goodwill recognized at the time of acquisition.

The Consolidated Financial Statements include the Group’s
share of the profit or loss and other comprehensive income of
Entities subject to Equity Method from the date the Group obtains
significant influence or joint control until the date the Group loses
such significant influence or joint control. In the case that the
accounting policies adopted by Entities subject to Equity Method
are different from the Group's accounting policies, the financial
statements of such entities are adjusted, as needed.

In addition, the Consolidated Financial Statements include
investments made to Entities subject to Equity Method on dates
that differ from the fiscal year end date. This is due to the
impracticability of unifying the fiscal year end date as a result of
relationships with other shareholders or the like. The fiscal year end
date for the majority of Entities subject to Equity Method is
December 31. Adjustments are made for the effects of significant
transactions or events occurred between the fiscal year end date of
Entities subject to Equity Method and that of the Company.

3) Business combinations

Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition
method. The Group measures the value of goodwill by deducting
from the fair value of consideration for the acquisition (which
include the recognized amount of any non-controlling interests in
the acquiree at the date of such acquisition) the net recognized
amount of the identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed at
the acquisition date (which is generally the fair value). When such
difference is in the negative, such difference is immediately
recognized as profit or loss.

Non-controlling interests are measured either at fair value or at
the non-controlling interests’ proportionate share of the recognized
amounts of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets, and the
measurement method to be applied at the date of acquisition is
determined on a transaction-by-transaction basis. Transaction costs,
other than those associated with the issue of debt or equity
securities, that the Group incurs in connection with a business
combination are expensed as incurred.
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4) Transactions eliminated under consolidation

Intra-group balances and transactions, and any unrealized profits or
losses through intra-group transactions, are eliminated when
preparing the Consolidated Financial Statements.

(2) Foreign currency translation

1) Foreign currency transactions

Foreign currency transactions are translated to the respective
functional currencies of each company at exchange rates at the
dates of such transactions.

Monetary items in foreign currency at the reporting date are
retranslated to the functional currency at the exchange rate at such
date.

Foreign exchange translation differences on monetary items are
recognized as profit or loss in the period incurred.

Non-monetary items that are measured based on historical cost
of the foreign currency are translated using the exchange rate at
the date of the transaction. Non-monetary items in foreign currency
that are measured at fair value of such foreign currency are
retranslated to the functional currency at the exchange rate as of
the calculation date of fair values thereof. With respect to the
foreign exchange translation differences of non-monetary items, if
gains or losses on non-monetary items are recognized as other
comprehensive income, the exchanged portion of such gains or
losses will be recognized as other comprehensive income. On the
other hand, if gains or losses on non-monetary items are
recognized as profit or loss, the exchanged portions of such gains
or losses will be recognized as profit or loss.

2) Foreign operations

The assets and liabilities of foreign operations, including goodwill
and fair value adjustments arising from acquisitions thereof, are
translated to the presentation currency using the exchange rate at
the reporting date. In addition, the income and expenses of foreign
operations are translated to the presentation currency using the
average exchange rate for the year excluding cases in which
exchange rates are fluctuating significantly.

Foreign exchange translation differences are recognized as other
comprehensive income. If the Group’'s foreign operation is
disposed of, the cumulative amount of the foreign exchange
translation differences related to such foreign operation are
reclassified to profit or loss at the time of such disposal.

Based on the application of the exemption clauses under IFRS 1
“First-time Adoption of International Financial Reporting
Standards,” the Group reclassified the cumulative translation
differences as of the transition date to retained earnings.

(3) Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand, cash in the bank
that may be withdrawn at any time and short-term investments with
maturity of three months or less from the acquisition date that are
readily convertible into cash and not subject to any price fluctuation
risk.

(4) Inventories
Inventories are measured at the lower of a historical cost basis and
net realizable value.

The costs of inventories include purchasing costs, processing
costs and all other costs incurred in the process of bringing such
inventories to the present location and condition, and are mainly
determined based on the average method. Non-fungible
inventories are calculated based on the specific identification
method.

Inventories that have been acquired with the purpose of
generating profits from short-term fluctuations in price are
measured at fair value less costs to sell, and changes in the fair

Integrated Report 2021

values of such inventories are recognized as profit or loss.

(5) Property, plant and equipment

After initial recognition, the Group applies the cost model, under
which property, plant and equipment are measured at cost less any
accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses.

The costs of property, plant and equipment include costs directly
attributable to the acquisition of such assets. If a material
component of property, plant and equipment is consumed
differently, then such component is accounted for as a separate
item of property, plant and equipment.

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment is mainly
computed under the straight-line method based on the estimated
useful life of each component thereof. The estimated useful lives of
the following items are mainly as follows:

Buildings and structures: 2 — 60 years
Machinery and vehicles: 2 — 40 years
Tools, furniture & fixtures: 2 — 20 years

The depreciation methods, useful lives and residual values are
reviewed at least every financial year end and amended as needed.

(6) Goodwill and intangible assets

1) Goodwill

Gooduwill is measured at cost less any accumulated impairment
losses.

2) Intangible assets

After initial recognition, the Group applies the cost model and
intangible assets are measured at cost less any accumulated
amortization and accumulated impairment losses.

At initial recognition, intangible assets acquired individually are
measured at cost. The costs of intangible assets acquired from
business combinations are measured at fair value at the date of
acquisition. With respect to internally-generated intangible assets
that do not meet the criteria for asset recognition, expenditures
related thereto are accounted for as expenses at the time they are
incurred. With respect to internally-generated intangible assets that
meet the criteria for asset recognition, the total of expenditures
related thereto that were incurred from the date such criteria was
first met is treated as cost.

Intangible assets, for which useful lives may be determined
(excluding mining rights), are amortized under the straight-line
method for the period of such estimated use. With respect to
mining rights, they are amortized using the production output
method based on estimated mine reserves. In addition, the
estimated useful life of software used by the Group is
approximately 5 years.

The amortization methods, the useful lives and residual values of
intangible assets with finite useful lives are reviewed at least every
fiscal year end and amended as needed.

Intangible assets for which useful lives cannot be determined are
not amortized. The Company conducts a review to determine
whether the events or circumstances supporting the judgment that
useful lives cannot be determined continue to exist at every fiscal
year end.

(7) Investment property
An investment property is a property held either to earn rental
income or for capital appreciation or for both. An investment
property does not include a property held for sale in the ordinary
course of business or property used for the production or supply of
goods or service or for other administrative purpose.

After initial recognition, the Group applies the cost model and
investment property is measured at cost less any accumulated
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depreciation and accumulated impairment losses.

Depreciation of an investment property is mainly computed
under the straight-line method based on the applicable estimated
useful life. The estimated useful lives are mainly between 2 years
and 50 years. The depreciation methods, useful lives and residual
values are reviewed at least every fiscal year end and amended as
needed.

(8) Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction
or production of an asset, which takes a considerable period of
time before it is ready for its intended use or sale, are capitalized as
part of the cost of such asset. All other borrowing costs are
recognized as expenses in the period incurred.

(9) Impairment of non-financial assets

At each fiscal year end, the Group determines whether there is any
indication of an impairment loss with respect to the Group's non-
financial assets, and, if so, the Group estimates the recoverable
amount of such assets. Goodwill and intangible assets with
indefinite useful lives, of which their useful lives cannot be
determined, are tested for impairment annually and whenever
there is an indication that there may be an impairment with respect
thereof. If the carrying amount of an individual asset or a cash-
generating unit exceeds the recoverable amount, such carrying
amount is reduced to equal the recoverable amount and an
impairment loss is recognized.

Recoverable amount is either the fair value or the value in use
(whichever is the higher value) after deducting disposal costs from
individual assets or cash-generating units. Fair value is calculated
using reasonable estimated prices, obtainable through orderly
transactions between market participants. Value in use is calculated
by discounting estimated future cash flow using a pre-tax discount
rate that reflects the current market value in relation to the inherent
risks of cash-generating units or individual assets, and the time
value of money. In principle, the business plan used to estimate
future cash flow is limited to five years. The Group makes
appropriate use of outside experts according to the complexity of
calculating the value in use and fair value.

With respect to impairment losses of assets other than goodwill
that were recognized in previous fiscal years, the Group determines
at each fiscal year end whether such impairment losses have
ceased to exist or there are indications that the same have
decreased. If any such indications exist, the Group will estimate the
recoverable amount of such assets. If such recoverable amount
exceeds the carrying amount of such assets, the carrying amount of
the assets is increased to equal the recoverable amount and
reversal of impairment losses is recognized. Impairment losses
recognized with respect to goodwill are not reversed in subsequent
periods.

In addition, because goodwill that constitutes part of the
carrying amount of an investment with respect to an Entity subject
to Equity Method is not separately recognized, it is not tested for
impairment separately. If it is suggested that there may be an
impairment loss with respect to an investment made to an Entity
subject to Equity Method, the entire carrying amount of such
investment will be tested for impairment as a single asset, by
comparing the recoverable amount with such carrying amount.

(10) Financial instruments

1) Financial Assets

At initial recognition, financial assets are classified as financial assets
measured at amortized cost, debt assets measured at FVTOCI,
equity assets measured at FVTOCI, and financial assets measured
at FVPTL. The Group initially recognizes financial assets measured
at amortized cost and debt assets measured at FVTOCI at the date

of occurrence, whereas the Group initially recognizes other financial
assets on the transaction date.

In cases in which the contractual right with respect to the cash
flow from a financial asset is extinguished or the contractual right to
receive cash flow from a financial asset has been transferred, and
substantially all the risks and rewards associated with the ownership
of such asset are removed, the Group derecognizes such financial
asset.

(a) Financial assets measured at amortized cost

A financial asset that meets the following conditions is classified

as financial asset measured at amortized cost.

e The asset is held based on a business model whose objective
is to hold an asset in order to collect cash flow under a
contract, and;

e Based on the contractual terms with respect to the financial
asset, the cash flow, which is intended only for payment of
principal and interests on the outstanding principal balance,
arises on a specified date.

At initial recognition, financial assets measured at amortized
cost are measured at fair value plus transaction costs directly
attributable to acquisition of such assets. After initial recognition,
the carrying amount of such financial assets measured at
amortized cost is calculated using the effective interest method.

(b) Debt assets measured at FVTOCI

Financial assets that meet the following criteria are classified as

debt assets measured through other comprehensive income.

e The asset is held based on a business model whose objective
is to achieve both collecting cash flow under a contract and
selling the financial assets ,and

e Based on the contractual terms with respect to the financial
asset, the cash flow, which is intended only for payment of
principal and interests on the outstanding principal balance,
arises on a specified date.

At initial recognition, debt assets measured at FVTOCI are
measured at fair value plus transaction costs directly attributable
to the acquisition of such assets. After initial recognition, they
are measured at fair value and the subsequent changes in fair
value are recognized as other comprehensive income. However,
when such subsequent changes in fair value are financial
revenue based on the effective interest method or differences
due to foreign exchange and impairment loss, they are
recognized as profit or loss. Furthermore, if the equity
investment is derecognized, the accumulated amount is
reclassified as profit or loss.

(c) Equity assets measured at FVTOCI

In regards to equity assets invested in not for the purpose of
purchase and sale, an election may be made at initial
recognition to present subsequent changes to the fair value of
such assets as other comprehensive income (such election being
irrevocable). The Group makes such election per such financial
assets.

At initial recognition, for investment in equity assets not for
the purpose of purchase and sale and for which the Group has
elected to present subsequent changes to fair value as other
comprehensive income (such election being irrevocable) are
measured at fair value plus transaction costs directly attributable
to the acquisition of such assets. After initial recognition, they
are measured at fair value, and the subsequent changes in fair
value are recognized as other comprehensive income. When the
equity investment is derecognized, or the decrease in fair value
compared to acquisition cost is substantial, the accumulated
amount of other comprehensive income is reclassified as
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retained earnings, not as profit or loss. Dividends are recognized
as profit or loss.

(d) Financial assets measured at FVTPL

All other financial assets are classified as financial assets
measured at FVTPL. These assets are measured at fair value at
initial recognition, with transaction costs directly attributable to
the acquisition recognized as profit or loss at the date of
occurrence. After initial recognition, they are measured at fair
value, and the subsequent changes in fair value are recognized
as profit or loss.

At initial recognition, trade receivables which do not include any
significant financing component are measured at trade value

2) Impairment of financial assets

The Group recognizes an allowance for doubtful accounts for
expected credit loss on financial assets measured at amortized cost,
debt assets measured at FVTOCI, lease receivables, contractual
assets, and financial guarantee contracts.

If credit risk for financial instruments has not substantially
increased from the initial recognition on the reporting date, the
Group calculates an allowance for doubtful accounts based on
expected credit loss that result from default events that are possible
within the 12-months after the reporting date (12-months expected
credit loss). If credit risk for financial instruments substantially
increases, however, the Group calculates an allowance for doubtful
accounts based on expected credit loss from all possible default
events over the expected life of the financial instruments (lifetime
expected credit loss). However, an allowance for doubtful accounts
for trade receivables and contractual assets are calculated based on
lifetime expected credit loss. When determining whether credit risk
substantially increases or not from the initial recognition, the Group
refers to obtainable, reasonable and supportable information, such
as changes in external and internal credit ratings and past due
information. Expected credit loss is based on the difference
between contractual cash flow and collectable cash flow, and its
estimate incorporates obtainable, reasonable, and supportable
information regarding past non-performance, financial standing of
the issuer or borrower, and future predictions.

If it is determined that all or part of the financial assets cannot be
collected or extremely difficult to collect, such as there has been a
significant financial difficulty of the issuer or borrower or a breach of
contract including past due event, the financial assets are regarded
as non-performing. In confirming evidence of credit impairment,
the Group makes this determination based on matters such as a
significant financial difficulty of the issuer or borrower or a breach of
contract including past due event. In addition, when there is
evidence of credit impairment for the financial assets on the
reporting date, the Group estimates expected credit loss separately
and calculates allowance for doubtful accounts. For the financial
assets for which there is no evidence of credit impairment, the
Group classify these together based on similarities in credit risk
specifics and the internal credit rating. Then estimate expected
credit risk comprehensively to calculate allowance for doubtful
accounts.

If there is no reasonable expectation for the partial or full
collection of the Group's claims associated with a financial asset,
the Group directly deducts the value from the carrying amount of
total financial assets.

3) Financial liabilities

At initial recognition, financial liabilities are either classified as
financial liabilities measured at FVTPL or financial liabilities
measured at amortized cost. Financial liabilities measured at
amortized cost are initially recognized on the occurrence date
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thereof and other financial liabilities are recognized on the
transaction date thereof.

Financial liabilities are no longer recognized when they are
extinguished, i.e., when obligations specified under a contract are
discharged, cancelled or expires.

(a) Financial liabilities measured at amortized cost

Financial liabilities, other than financial liabilities measured at
FVTPL, are classified as financial liabilities measured at amortized
cost. At initial recognition, financial liabilities measured at
amortized cost are measured at fair value less any transaction
costs directly attributable to incurring of such liabilities. After
initial recognition, such financial liabilities are measured at
amortized cost using the effective interest method.

(b) Financial liabilities measured at FVTPL

At initial recognition, financial liabilities measured at FVTPL are
measured at fair value. After initial recognition, financial liabilities
are measured at fair value and subsequent changes in the fair
value thereof are recognized as profit or loss.

4) Derivatives and hedge accounting
In order to hedge the foreign currency risk, interest rate fluctuation
risk and commodity price fluctuation risk, the Group conducts
derivative transactions, such as forward exchange transactions,
interest rate swap transactions and commodity futures and forwards
transactions.

Derivatives are initially recognized at fair value. After initial
recognition, derivatives are measured at fair value and subsequent
changes in the fair value thereof are accounted for as follows:

(a) Fair value hedges

The changes in fair value of a derivative used as a hedging
instrument are recognized as profit or loss. The carrying amount
of hedged items is measured at fair value and the gains or losses
on such hedged items arising from changes in the fair values
attributable to the hedged risks are recognized as profit or loss.

(b) Cash flow hedges

Of the changes in fair value of a derivative used as a hedging
instrument, portions determined to be effective are recognized
as other comprehensive income and included as another
component of equity.

The amount recognized as other comprehensive income is
reclassified from other components of equity to profit or loss in
the same period that the hedged transaction affects profit or
loss; provided however, that if hedging of a scheduled
transaction subsequently results in the recognition of a non-
financial asset or liability, the amount recognized as other
comprehensive income is then accounted for as revision to the
initial carrying amount of such non-financial asset or liability. The
ineffective portion is immediately recognized as profit or loss.

When the hedge no longer meets the criteria for hedge
accounting, the hedge instrument expires or is sold, terminated
or exercised, or designation of the hedge is revoked, hedge
accounting is discontinued prospectively. If the scheduled
transaction is no longer expected to occur, the amount of the
effective portions of the hedge that have been recognized as
other comprehensive income is immediately reclassified from
other components of equity to profit or loss.

(c) Hedge of a net investment

Of the changes in fair value of derivatives and non-derivates
used as a hedge instrument (loans, etc.), portions determined to
be effective are recognized as other comprehensive income and
included as another other component of equity. This effective
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portion recognized as other comprehensive income is
reclassified from other components of equity to profit or loss at
the time of disposition of a foreign operation.

(d) Derivatives not designated as hedging instruments
The changes in the fair value of such derivates are recognized as
profit or loss.

5) Offsetting of financial assets and financial liabilities

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net
amount of such offset is presented in the consolidated statements
of financial position only when the Group has a legally enforceable
right to offset the recognized amounts and intends either to settle
them on a net basis or realize the assets and settle the liabilities
simultaneously.

(11) Provisions
A provision is recognized only when the Group has a present
obligation (legal or presumptive) as a result of a past event, there is
a probability that an outflow of resources embodying economic
benefits will be required to settle such obligation and a reliable
estimate can be made regarding the amount of such obligation.
Where there is materiality in the effects of time value of money,
provisions are discounted using a pre-tax rate that reflects the risks
specific to said liability.

(12) Non-current assets held for sale

Non-current assets or disposal groups to be collected mainly
through sales transactions (but not for continuous use) are classified
as held for sale.

To be classified as held for sale, an asset must be immediately
sellable at its present state and have an extremely high probability
for such sale. In addition, management must have firm commitment
to execute the plan to sell such asset and complete such sale within
one year from the date of such classification.

Immediately before being classified as held for sale, an asset, or
components of a disposal group, are re-measured in accordance
with the Group’s accounting policies. After the classification as held
for sale, such asset is measured at the lower of the carrying amount
and the fair value less costs to sell.

Any impairment loss on a disposal group is allocated first to
goodwill, and then to the remaining assets on a pro rata basis.
Impairment losses of an asset that was initially classified as held for
sale or disposal group, and subsequent gains or losses arising
following the remeasurement are recognized as profit or loss.

Property, plant and equipment, intangible assets and investment
property classified as held for sale are not depreciated or
amortized.

When the Group has committed itself to exercise a sales plan
involving the loss of control of a subsidiary, all the assets and
liabilities of such subsidiary are classified as held for sale, regardless
of whether the Group will retain a non-controlling interest in such
subsidiary after the sale.

(13) Equity

1) Share capital and capital surplus

Proceeds from issuance of equity instruments by the Company are
included in share capital and capital surplus. Transaction costs
directly attributable to the issuance of equity instruments are
deducted from capital surplus.

2) Treasury stock

When the Group reacquires treasury stocks, the consideration paid
is recognized as a deduction from equity. Transaction costs directly
attributable to the reacquisition of treasury stocks are deducted
from capital surplus.

In addition, when the Group sells treasury stocks, the
consideration received is recognized as an increase in equity.

(14) Revenue from Contracts with Customers

The Group recognizes revenue as the amount of consideration to

which an entity expects to be entitled in exchange for transferring

promised goods or services to a customer, based on the five-step

approach below.

Step 1: Identify the contract with the customer.

Step 2: Identify the separate performance obligations in the
contract.

Step 3: Determine the transaction price.

Step 4: Allocate the transaction price to the separate performance
obligations.

Step 5: Recognize revenue when or as the Group satisfies each
performance obligations.

The Group identifies distinct goods or services included in a
contract with customer and performance obligations (the basic
transactional unit). Since the Group may fulfill a intermediaries or
agent function in normal business transactions, the Group must
consider whether it functions as a principal or agent in identifying
performance obligations. In cases where the performance
obligations essentially promise that the Group itself will provide
specific goods or services, the Group is deemed to be a principal;
in cases where the performance obligations is to arrange provision
of goods or services by another party, the Group is deemed to be
an agent. The following indicators are used to determine whether
the Group is principal or agent.

® The Group has primary responsibility for performance of the
promised provision of specified goods or services.

® The Group bears inventory risk prior to transferring the specified
goods or services to the customer or after transferring the goods
or services under the control of the customer.

® Price of the goods or services is set at the discretion of the Group

In cases where the Group is the principal party to the
transaction, the Group recognizes revenue when or as the Group
satisfies each performance obligations, as a monetary amount
reflecting the expected consideration that the Group is entitled to
receive from the exchange of the specified goods or services.
Furthermore, in cases where the Group is acting as agent, the
Group recognizes revenue when or as the Group satisfies each
performance obligations, in the amount of any fee commission, or
net revenue the Group is entitled to receive in exchange for
arranging provision of the specified goods or services by another
party.

The Group recognizes revenue as the amount of consideration
to which an entity expects to be entitled in exchange for
transferring promised goods or services to a customer. Revenue
does not include consumption tax, VAT, or other money recovered
as tax agent. Variable consideration is only included in the
transaction price if, and to the extent that, it is highly probable that
its inclusion will not result in a significant revenue reversal in the
future when the uncertainty has been subsequently removed. With
regards to transaction price, there is no materiality to revenue which
includes variable consideration.

In the case where, at the start of the contract, the Group
assumes that it will take a year or less between the Group
transferring the promised goods or services to the customer and
receiving payment from the customer for those goods and services,
the Group does not adjust revenue to reflect the impact of
significant financing components on the promised consideration for
the goods.
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The Group recognizes revenue for major transactions at the
following points:
(a) Revenue from sale of products
Revenue from sale of products primarily includes wholesaling,
retail, sale of products through manufacturing/processing, and
sales of real estate. The Group recognizes revenue at the point
goods have been delivered, undergone inspection, and met the
terms and conditions for delivery as named in the contract. At
this point, the Group deems goods to be under the control of
the customer and performance obligations to have been
satisfied
In most cases, the Group will receive revenue from the sale of
products within one year of meeting performance obligations.
This amount does not include significant financing components.

(b) Revenue from rendering of services or other kinds of sale
Revenue from rendering of services or other kinds of sale mainly
includes provision of services related to IT systems, automotive
part inspections, and building maintenance. Revenue from these
services which meets any of the requirements below entails
control of the service being transferred for over time. The Group
thus determines whether performance obligations have been
fulfilled, before recognizing profit according to the degree of
progress on performance obligations. The qualities of the goods
or services transferred to the customer will be considered in
measuring the degree of progress on performance obligations.

Requirements:

e the customer simultaneously receives and consumes the
benefits provided by the Group’s performance as the Group
performs.

e the Group's performance creates or enhances an asset (for
example, work in progress) that the customer controls as the
asset is created or enhanced.

e the Group's performance does not create an asset with an
alternative use to the Group and the Group has an enforceable
right to payment for performance completed to date.

If the Group does not meet above requirements, the Group
will recognize revenue at the point that duties have been
completed and the Group may claim payment from the
customer, since the Group will have been deemed to have
satisfied its performance obligations.

In most cases, the Group will receive revenue from rendering
of services or other kinds of sale within one year of meeting
performance obligations. This amount does not include
significant financial components.

(15) Financial income and costs
Financial income comprises interest income, dividend income, gain
on sales of financial instruments and gain arising from change in the
fair value of financial instruments. Interest income is recognized at
the time of receipt by using the effective interest method. Dividend
income is recognized on the date when the Group’s right to receive
payment is established.

Financial costs comprise interest expenses, loss on sales of
financial instruments and loss arising from change in the fair value
of financial instruments.

(16) Employee benefits

1) Post-employment benefits
(a) Defined benefit plans
Defined benefit plans refer to retirement benefit plans other
than a defined contribution plan. Defined benefit obligations are
calculated separately for each plan by estimating the future
amount of benefits that employees will have earned in return for
their services provided in the current and prior periods and
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discounting such amount in order to determine the present
value. The fair value of any plan assets is deducted from the
present value of the defined benefit obligations.

The discount rates are principally equivalent to the market
yields of AA credit-rated corporate bonds at the fiscal year end
that have maturity terms that are approximately the same as
those of the Group’s obligations and use the same currencies as
those used for future benefits payments.

Past service cost is immediately recognized as profit or loss.

The Group immediately recognizes all the remeasurements of
the net defined benefit liability (asset) as other comprehensive
income and promptly reclassifies them as retained earnings.

(b) Defined contribution plans

Defined contribution plans are retirement benefit plans under
which the Group pays fixed contributions to separate entities
and will have no legal or presumptive obligation to pay any
amount over its contribution amount. The obligations already
paid or to be paid as contributions under the defined
contribution plans are recognized as expenses in the period in
which the employees provided the services related thereto.

(c) Multi-employer plans

Certain subsidiaries participate in pension plans, which are
classified as multi-employer plans. In regards to such pension
plans, sufficient information to calculate the proportionate share
of such plan assets cannot be obtained. Thus, the Group
accounts for such pension plans in the same manner in which it
recognizes defined contribution plans. In other words,
contributions to such multi-employer plans are recognized as
expenses in the period in which the employees provided their
services.

2) Other long-term employee benefits

Obligations in respect of long-term employee benefits other than
post-employment benefits are calculated by estimating the future
amount of benefits that employees will have earned in return for
their services in the current and prior periods and discounting such
amount in order to determine the present value.

3) Short-term employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits are not discounted. Instead, they are
accounted for as expenses at the time services related thereto are
provided.

With respect to bonuses, the Group owes legal and presumptive
payment obligations as a consequence of past employee services
provided. If such amount of payment obligations can be reliably
estimated, such estimated amount to be paid based on such bonus
system is recognized as a liability.

(17) Share-based remuneration

The Group has introduced an equity-settled share-based
remuneration system which provides directors and the like with
performance-linked share remuneration.

Under this system, the service received are measured at the fair
value of Sojitz shares at the grant date, and recognized as expense
over the period from the grant date to the vesting date with a
corresponding amount as an increase in capital surplus.

(18) Income taxes

Income tax expense comprise current tax expenses and deferred

tax expenses. These are recognized as profit or loss, except when

they arise from items that are directly recognized as other

comprehensive income or equity, and from a business combination.
Current tax expenses are measured by the expected taxes

receivable from or taxes payable to tax authorities, and the tax
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amounts are calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or

substantially enacted by the fiscal year end.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognized in respect of
temporary differences between the carrying amount of an asset
and liability in the statement of financial position and its tax base,
the unused tax losses carried forward and unused tax credits
carried forward. The amounts of tax assets and liabilities are
calculated under the expected tax rate or tax law applicable as of
the period in which assets are realized or liabilities settled based on
a statutory tax rate or the same substantially enacted as of the fiscal
year end. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are not recognized in
the following cases:

* when taxable temporary differences arise from initial recognition
of gooduwill;

* when they arise from initial recognition of assets or liabilities in a
transaction that is neither a business combination nor affects
accounting profit and taxable profit (or loss) at the time of the
transaction; and,

* with respect to taxable temporary differences associated with
investments in subsidiaries and associates, or interests in joint
arrangements, when the Group is able to control the timing of
the reversal of the temporary differences and it is probable that
the temporary differences will not reverse in the foreseeable
future.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset only when the Group
has a legally enforceable right to set off the current tax assets
against current tax liabilities, and, such deferred tax assets and
liabilities relate to income taxes levied on the same taxation entity.
However, even in the case of different taxable entities, the Group
can set off if the tax taxable entities intend either to settle current
tax liabilities and assets on a net bases, or to realize the assets and
settle the liabilities simultaneously.

Deferred tax assets are recognized for deductible temporary
differences, the unused tax losses carried forward and unused tax
credits carried forward to the extent that it is probable that they can
be used against future taxable profit. The carrying amount of
deferred tax assets are reassessed at each fiscal year end, and such
carrying amount will be reduced to the extent it is no longer
probable that related tax benefits from such assets will be realized.

(19) Lease

When a contract begins, the Group determines whether the
contract in question is a lease contract or a contract containing a
lease. If the rights governing the use of the assets specified in the
contract are transferred into an exchange for compensation at fixed
intervals, the contract in question is a lease contract or contains a
lease.

1) As lessee

Concerning the lessee’s lease, the Group recognizes the right-of-
use assets and the lease liabilities at the commencement date of
the lease.

The Group measures the lease liability at the present value of
the lease payments that are not paid at that date. After the
commencement date, the carrying amount of the lease liability is
measured by increasing or reducing to reflect interest on the lease
liability and the lease payments made. If the calculated interest rate
of the lease cannot easily be obtained, the Group's incremental
borrowing rate will be used, and in general the Group will use the
incremental borrowing rate as the discount rate. When measuring
lease liability, the choice was made to recognize both lease

components and related non-lease components as a single lease
component instead of separating them.

The right-of-use asset is measured at cost deducting any initial
direct costs from the amount of the initial measurement of the lease
liability at initial recognition. After the commencement date, the
carrying amount of the right-of-use asset is measured by deducting
accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses. The
Group depreciate the right-of-use asset from the commencement
date to the earlier of the end of the useful life of the right-of-use
asset or the end of the lease term using the straight-line basis.

Lease term is determined as the non-cancellable period of a
lease, together with both periods covered by an option to extend
the lease if the lessee is reasonably certain to exercise that option
and periods covered by an option to terminate the lease if the
lessee is reasonably certain not to exercise that option.

Lease payments for short-term leases and lease of a low-value
are recognized as expenses using the straight-line basis over the
lease term.

2)As lessor

The Group classifies leases as either a finance lease or an operating
lease at the commencement date. A lease is classified as a finance
lease if it transfers substantially all the risks and rewards incidental
to ownership of an underlying asset. A lease is classified as an
operating lease if it does not transfer substantially all the risks and
rewards incidental to ownership of an underlying asset.

If the Group is an intermediate lessor, the sublease is classified
with reference not to the underlying asset but to the right-of-use
asset arising from the head lease. However, if the head lease is a
short-term lease, the sublease is classified as an operating lease.

(a) Finance lease

The recognition of assets owned based on the finance lease is
suspended at the commencement date, and the lease
receivable is recognized as an amount equivalent to the net
investment in the lease. After the initial recognition, the
collection of credit associated with lease receivable from the
lessee is recognized, and will be recognized throughout the
lease period as financial income in order to achieve a constant
rate of profit on the net investment in the lease.

(b) Operating lease

The underlying assets that are the subject of the operating lease
will continue to be recognized in the consolidated statement of
financial position. Lease payments from the operating lease are
recognized as earnings using either the straight-line basis or
another regular basis. Furthermore, the underlying assets that
are the subject of the operating lease will be depreciated using
a consistent method used for other similar assets. The initial
direct costs that arise from the acquisition of the operating lease
contract are added to the carrying amount of the associated
underlying asset. Throughout the lease period, they are
recognized as expenses on the same basis as lease income.
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n NEW STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS NOT YET APPLIED

As the Group had not adopted any newly established or amended
standard and interpretation that we were announced by the date of

approval of consolidated financial statements, there are no areas in
which the adoption could have a serious effect on the Group.

n SEGMENT INFORMATION

(1) Summary of reportable segments

Reportable segments are the Group’s components for which
discrete financial information is available, and whose operating
results are regularly reviewed by the Board of Directors for the
purposes of making decisions about resources to be allocated to
such segments and assessing their performance.

The Group is an integrated trading company engaged in a wide
range of business activities on a global basis. Headquarters
includes business sections that handle merchandising, trading,
product manufacturing, services, project planning and
management, investments and financial activities, both
domestically and internationally.

The Group's reportable segments comprise business divisions
categorized by goods, services, functions and industries. The
Group's reportable segments consist of the following nine business
groups: Automotive; Aerospace & Transportation Project;
Machinery & Medical Infrastructure; Energy & Social Infrastructure;
Metals & Mineral Resources; Chemicals; Foods & Agriculture
Business; Retail & Lifestyle Business; and Industrial Infrastructure &
Urban Development.

In addition, the following “Others” consists of, administration,
domestic regional operating companies, logistics and insurance
services, etc.

Main goods and services of each reportable segments are as
follows:

1) Automotive: Trading of completed automobiles; assembly and
sales; retail; automobile and motorcycle parts, simply parts
assembly; supply chain management; automotive parts quality
inspection operations; financing; sales and service operations
incorporating digital technologies; etc.

2) Aerospace & Transportation Project: Aero business
(Commercial aircraft, defense and related equipment agency and
sales, business jets, used aircraft and part-out business, airport
business); Transformation and social infrastructure projects
(transformation projects; airport, port, and other social infrastructure
projects); Marine business (New building, second-hand ships, ship
chartering, ship equipment, ship owning); etc.

3) Machinery & Medical Infrastructure: Plant Projects (Fertilizer &
chemical, energy, infrastructure and environmental projects);
Industrial Machinery (Industrial machinery, surface-mounting
machines, start-ups); Forefront Industry businesses; Bearings;
Medical Infrastructure(Hospital PPP, Medical-related service,
healthcare new technology); etc.

4) Energy & Social Infrastructure: Infrastructure & Environment
(Renewable energy, IPP projects); Power-related projects(IPP and
IWP projects, power plant EPC business); Energy (Oil and gas;
petroleum products; LNG and LNG-related business); Nuclear
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power related business(nuclear fuels; nuclear power-related
equipment and machinery); Social infrastructure projects
(telecommunications infrastructure projects; energy management;
next-generation infrastructure projects utilizing loT, Al, and big
data); Sales and maintenance of communications and IT
equipment; systems integration, software development and sales,
cloud services, and managed services; etc.

5) Metals & Mineral Resources: Coal; iron ore; ferroalloys (nickel,
chromium, niobium), ores, alumina, aluminum, copper, zinc, tin,
precious metals, ceramics and minerals; coke; carbon products;
infrastructure businesses; steel-related business; etc.

6) Chemicals: Organic chemicals; inorganic chemicals; functional
chemicals; fine chemicals; industrial salt; healthcare and natural
products; rare earths; commodity resins; advanced resins;
environmentally friendly resins; packaging materials for industry and
foodstuffs; advanced film; plastic molding machines; other plastic
products; electronics materials including liquid crystals and
electrolytic copper foil; printed circuit board electronics materials;
fiber materials and products for use in industrial; etc.

7) Foods & Agriculture Business: Grains; flour; oils and fats; oil
stuff; feed materials; marine products; processed seafood; sweets;
raw ingredients for sweets; coffee beans; sugar; other foodstuffs
and raw ingredients; compound chemical fertilizers; etc.

8) Retail & Lifestyle Business: Cotton and synthetic fabrics; knitted
fabrics and products; clothing; medical material; construction
materials; imported timber; timber products such as lumber,
plywood, and laminated lumber; housing materials; manufacture
and sale of wood chips; imported tobacco; livestock and
aquaculture products; processed livestock and aquaculture
products; fruits and vegetables; frozen vegetables; frozen foods;
sweets; raw ingredients for sweets; sugar; other foodstuffs and raw
ingredients; administration of shopping centers; bedclothes and
home fashion-related products; general commodities; household-
and industrial-use paper; processing and production of prepared
food; wholesale food; convenience store business; etc.

9) Industrial Infrastructure & Urban Development: Real estate
development, consignment sales, rent, administration and
management businesses(industrial park, housing, office, etc.); etc.

10) Others: Administration, domestic regional operating
companies, |ogistics and insurance services; etc.



154

FINANCIAL SECTION

(2) Information regarding reportable segments

The accounting methods for the reported business segments are mostly consistent with those stated in Note 3 (“SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES"), except with respect to the calculation of income tax expenses.
Transaction prices between segments are based on general market prices.

2020
Millions of yen
Reportable segments
Aerospace & Machinery & Energy & Metals & Foods &
Transportation Medical Social Mineral Agriculture
Automotive Project Infrastructure ~ Infrastructure Resources Chemicals Business
Revenue
External revenue..........cccoooveiiiiiniennnn. 225,276 35,631 123,725 82,009 350,519 446,429 115,219
Inter-segment revenue.... — 23 58 1,859 — 12 11
Total revenue .......cccoceiveinincencan. 225,276 35,655 123,783 83,869 350,519 446,441 115,230
Gross Profit.......ccccceueeiecieicniceeceees 41,150 15,651 14,673 25,749 20,410 43,201 14,240
Share of profit (loss) of investments account-
ed for using the equity method.................. (401) 1,060 2,005 5,662 12,471 680 528
Profit (loss) for the year (attributable to
owners of the parent) ..........ccccccceecueeenee 2,380 1,794 4,567 9,632 20,104 9,269 1,365
Segment assets 180,528 135,099 123,891 263,172 443,113 269,031 128,896
Other:
Investments accounted for using the
equity method.........cccooeiiiiiicnnn 5,284 9,726 10,649 95,172 233,290 11,512 12,384
Capital expenditure.. 11,233 357 407 6,316 11,674 2,890 1,546

Millions of yen

Reportable segments

Industrial
Retail & Infrastructure &
Lifestyle Urban
Business Development Total Others Reconciliations  Consolidated
Revenue
External revenue 310,274 34,480 1,723,566 31,259 — 1,754,825
Inter-segment revenue.........cccoeuveneee. 53 365 2,384 162 (2,546) —
Total revenue .......cccceveveevevenenann. 310,328 34,845 1,725,950 31,421 (2,546) 1,754,825
Gross Profit........cccocevceiceieeicieiceeceans 35,456 6,025 216,559 5,479 (1,544) 220,494
Share of profit (loss) of investments account-
ed for using the equity method.................. 391 2,350 24,748 162 2 24,908
Profit (loss) for the year (attributable to
owners of the parent).. 5,963 1,474 56,552 (609) 4,878 60,821
Segment assets.......coveivierinieeniiieeeees 370,325 77,175 1,991,235 201,627 37,423 2,230,285
Other:
Investments accounted for using the
equity method 17,210 14,564 409,794 4,060 (114) 413,740
Capital expenditure............cccceceueiieunenee 2,702 3,610 40,739 11,052 — 51,792

Reconciliation of “Profit (loss) for the year (attributable to owners of the parent)” of ¥4,878 million includes the difference between the
Group's actual income tax expenses and income tax expenses allocated to each segment based on the calculation method established
internally, which amounted to ¥4,119 million, and unallocated dividend income and others of ¥759 million.

The reconciliation amount of segment assets of ¥37,423 million includes the elimination of inter-segment transactions or the like
amounting to ¥(164,661) million and all of the Group assets that were not allocated to each segment amounting to ¥202,085 million, which
mainly consists of the Group's surplus funds in the form of cash in bank or the like for investments and marketable securities or the like.

Capital expenditure includes amount related to right-of-use assets.
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2021

Millions of yen

Reportable segments

Aerospace & Machinery & Energy & Metals & Foods &
Transportation Medical Social Mineral Agriculture
Automotive Project Infrastructure  Infrastructure Resources Chemicals Business
Revenue
External revenue ..........cccccovveicicienncnnn. 185,413 26,565 110,199 57,268 356,192 406,784 125,173
Inter-segment revenue ... — — 76 2,692 — 1 1M
Total revenue ......cccoovvvvivieiiiennennen. 185,413 26,565 110,275 59,960 356,192 406,785 125,184
Gross Profit .......cccoeevoceiceiceicieeceeeenans 34,299 13,569 13,444 17,843 12,426 37,317 18,785
Share of profit (loss) of investments
accounted for using the equity method ... (971) 22 3,399 4,292 4,733 666 754
Profit for the year (attributable to owners
of the parent) ........cccccocevieeiceccncnnes 1,214 1,834 3,995 3,592 (1,673) 5,754 5,062
SegmeNnt assets ......cocoevevveirieeriieeees 164,230 169,176 134,969 269,843 473,923 272,348 133,903
Other:
Investments accounted for using the
equity method ........ccccceeieieieinicinnanns 4,923 15,785 15,120 99,475 236,876 11,207 13,119
Capital expenditure ...........cccceceueiueueeee 7,403 1,448 747 4,638 4,972 2,936 1,147

Millions of yen

Reportable segments

Industrial
Retail & Infrastructure &
Lifestyle Urban
Business Development Total Others Reconciliations  Consolidated
Revenue
External revenue .........cccccoeveeveeveieienenn. 282,027 31,954 1,581,578 20,906 — 1,602,485
Inter-segment revenue ..........ccccceeveunne. 7 593 3,381 138 (3,519) —
Total revenue ......cccocvvveeecveceenann. 282,035 32,547 1,584,960 21,045 (3,519) 1,602,485
Gross proﬁt ................................................. 31,845 6,012 185,545 4,631 (2,055) 188,120
Share of profit (loss) of investments
accounted for using the equity method ... (282) 2,091 14,704 82 (1) 14,786
Profit for the year (attributable to owners
of the parent) ..., 4,546 1,064 25,391 686 923 27,001
SegMENT ASSETLS ....vviviiieiiiiieieieieieieieienenes 366,037 71,277 2,055,709 208,747 35,658 2,300,115
Other:
Investments accounted for using the
equity method .......cccccoeieieienccnnns 21,673 12,870 431,052 2,092 (115) 433,029
Capital expenditure .........c.ccccccccuecieneee 1,556 2,523 27,373 17,374 — 44,747
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2021
Thousands of U.S. dollars
Reportable segments
Aerospace & Machinery & Energy & Metals & Foods &
Transportation Medical Social Mineral Agriculture
Automotive Project Infrastructure  Infrastructure Resources Chemicals Business
Revenue
External revenue ...........cccooceiveriienennnn. 1,670,387 239,324 992,783 515,927 3,208,936 3,664,720 1,127,684
Inter-segment revenue ... — — 684 24,252 — 9 99
Total revenue ......cccccoevevevievevenenann. 1,670,387 239,324 993,468 540,180 3,208,936 3,664,729 1,127,783
Gross Profit .......cccocevceiceiceececeecnans 309,000 122,243 121,117 160,747 111,945 336,189 169,234
Share of profit (loss) of investments
accounted for using the equity method ... (8,747) 198 30,621 38,666 42,639 6,000 6,792
Profit for the year (attributable to owners
of the parent) ..o 10,936 16,522 35,990 32,360 (15,072) 51,837 45,603
SegmeNnt assets ......cccoevivreirieeniieeeeens 1,479,549 1,524,108 1,215936 2,431,018 4,269,576 2,453,585 1,206,333
Other:
Investments accounted for using the
equity method ........cccceeieieieincicicanns 44,351 142,207 136,216 896,171 2,134,018 100,963 118,189
Capital expenditure .........ccccceceueiueuene 66,693 13,045 6,729 41,783 44,792 26,450 10,333
Thousands of U.S. dollars
Reportable segments
Industrial
Retail & Infrastructure &
Lifestyle Urban
Business Development Total Others Reconciliations  Consolidated
Revenue
External revenue ..........cccoeveeveeveieienenn. 2,540,783 287,873 14,248,450 188,342 — 14,436,801
Inter-segment revenue ............cccccceceee 63 5,342 30,459 1,243 (31,702) —
Total revenue .....cccoceevvieiieieeennn. 2,540,855 293,216 14,278,918 189,594 (31,702) 14,436,801
Gross Profit ......cceceeeucueerieeeiniieeieieeenes 286,891 54,162 1,671,576 41,720 (18,513) 1,694,774
Share of profit (loss) of investments
accounted for using the equity method ... (2,540) 18,837 132,468 738 9) 133,207
Profit for the year (attributable to owners
of the parent) .......cccccccveviviciiciicinnnn. 40,954 9,585 228,747 6,180 8,315 243,252
Segment assets ........ccccoevveinieeniiieieeee 3,297,630 642,135 18,519,900 1,880,603 321,243 20,721,756
Other:
Investments accounted for using the
equity method .......ccccoeicieicnccnnns 195,252 115,945 3,883,351 18,846 (1,036) 3,901,162
Capital expenditure ...........ccccoceuecienneee 14,018 22,729 246,603 156,522 — 403,126

Reconciliation of “Profit for the year (attributable to owners of the parent)” of ¥923 million (U.S.$8,315 thousand) includes the difference
between the Group’s actual income tax expenses and income tax expenses allocated to each segment based on the calculation method
established internally, which amounted to ¥533 million (U.S.$4,801 thousand), and unallocated dividend income and others of ¥390 million
(U.S.$3,513 thousand).

The reconciliation amount of segment assets of ¥35,658 million (U.S.$321,243 thousand) includes the elimination of inter-segment
transactions or the like amounting to ¥(171,929) million (U.S.$(1,548,909) thousand) and all of the Group assets that were not allocated to
each segment amounting to ¥207,588 million (U.S.$1,870,162 thousand), which mainly consists of the Group's surplus funds in the form of
cash in bank or the like for investments and marketable securities or the like.

Capital expenditure includes amount related to right-of-use assets.

(3) Information regarding goods and services

Information regarding the revenue for each product/service was not separately presented because the same information was presented in
the reporting segments.
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(4) Geographical information
Geographical information relating to external revenue and non-current assets (excluding financial assets and deferred tax assets) was as
follows.

1) External revenue
Revenue is classified by country or region based on the locations of customers.

Thousands of

Millions of yen U.S. dollars
2020 2021 2021
JAPAN e 865,502 808,149 7,280,621
TRE AMEIICAS ..ottt ettt e ea e e et et e et e et e eae et e eae e e eatenaeeneaaeeneens 163,435 146,600 1,320,720
BUMOPE o 129,599 106,953 963,540
Y= Y= Ta e H @ el Y= o 1= TP 568,405 523,736 4,718,342
ONEIS. ettt h bttt ettt etttk 27,883 17,045 153,558
TOTAI etttk ekttt ettt enenen 1,754,825 1,602,485 14,436,801

Thousands of

Millions of yen U.S. dollars
2020 2021 2021

JAPEN <. 165,801 171,441 1,544,513
74,033 102,793 926,063

29,202 31,534 284,090

96,936 106,120 956,036

6,305 4,332 39,027

TOMAL oottt ettt ettt ettt ea et e et et et et ne et e et et eneenean 372,278 416,222 3,749,747

(5) Information about major customers
There was no customer whose transaction volume was equal to 10% or more of the Group's revenue for either the year ended March 31,
2020 or the year ended March 31, 2021.

n TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

The breakdown of trade and other receivables was as follows.

Thousands of

Millions of yen U.S. dollars
2020 2021 2021
Trade notes and accounts receivable 435,684 442,105 3,982,927
LOBNS FECERIVADIE ... ettt e et e ae et e e e et e e e ea e e e eaeeneas 44,230 43,619 392,963
ONEIS .ttt 236,645 240,209 2,164,045
ORI ettt 716,559 725,934 6,539,945
(O T =1 A= L1cT=] <= TP 638,207 636,186 5,731,405
INON=CUIMENT @SSETS ...viiuiieiiiieeiie ettt ettt et e et e et e e aeesaeeeeseeeseeesseeesseesaeensaeasseessseessseensesnneesnsaenns 78,352 89,747 808,531
TOTAN ettt ettt s ettt es st s et seneetenenan 716,559 725,934 6,539,945
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INVENTORIES

The breakdown of inventories was as follows.

Millions of yen

Thousands of
U.S. dollars

2020 2021 2021
Commodities and finished GOOAS .........cceuiiririiiiiiiiiiicc e 163,080 138,270 1,245,675
Real estate held for development and resale ... 32,463 31,898 287,369
Materials and CONSUME@DIES .........oieeoeeee ettt e eeae s 17,841 17,722 159,657
L] USSP 213,385 187,891 1,692,711
Inventories to be sold more than one year after ... 3,150 426 3,837

In addition, write-downs of inventories recognized as expenses for the years ended March 31, 2020 and March 31, 2021 were ¥1,967

million and ¥2,108 million (U.S.$18,990 thousand), respectively.

n PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

The increases/decreases in costs and accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses of property, plant and equipment were

as follows.
[Costs]
Millions of yen
Buildings and  Machinery and  Tools, furniture Construction in
structures vehicles & fixtures Land progress Total
Balance as of March 31, 2019.....cocoovvioioieieeccccceees 125,813 211,410 16,942 26,663 25,699 406,529
The impact of changes in accounting policies..................... (431) (946) (2,760) — — (4,139)
Balance as of April 1, 2019.......cccoccviiniiiniiniinicnicecnes 125,381 210,463 14,182 26,663 25,699 402,390
ACGUISTTIONS. ... 3,657 2,601 1,617 1,045 23,214 32,137
Acquisitions through business combinations....................... 964 812 14 936 92 2,820
Reclassification from construction in progress ..................... 21,179 9,710 222 — (31,111) —
DISPOSAIS ... . (7,469) (18,752) (652) (363) (1,027) (28,265)
Reclassification to assets held for sale (7,984) (4) (0) (60) — (8,050)
Exchange translation differences for foreign operations..... (4,183) (10,531) (309) (602) (1,012) (16,639)
Others (NOE) .....vviuiieiiieieiceieieeee e (3,272) (20,291) 13 (207) (7,545) (31,303)
Balance as of March 31, 2020..........cccooeioveeeeeeeeeeeeeeene. 128,271 174,008 15,087 27,410 8,310 353,088
GG S coooososoncsmscssmmomasaesmsmsasassssmsammonasaeomomasommonoes 3,764 2,406 1,211 6,685 9,462 23,529
Acquisitions through business combinations....................... 813 12,150 46 — 143 13,154
Reclassification from construction in progress...................... 865 9,530 361 — (10,757) —
DISPOSAIS ..o (753) (3,288) (1,055) (0) (1) (5,100)
Exchange translation differences for foreign operations..... 4,885 15,240 351 638 677 21,792
OUNEIS oot 773 1,227 (94) 187 (815) 1,278
Balance as of March 31, 2021 138,618 211,275 15,909 34,921 7,017 407,742
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Thousands of U.S. dollars

Buildings and  Machinery and  Tools, furniture

Construction in

structures vehicles & fixtures Land progress Total
Balance as of March 31, 2020..........cccceeivniniiiesnniecieeas 1,155,594 1,567,639 135,918 246,936 74,864 3,180,972
ACQUISTEIONS. ... 33,909 21,675 10,909 60,225 85,243 211,972
Acquisitions through business combinations....................... 7,324 109,459 414 —_ 1,288 118,504
Reclassification from construction in progress...................... 7,792 85,855 3,252 — (96,909) —
DISPOSAIS ... (6,783) (29,621) (9,504) (0) 9) (45,945)
Exchange translation differences for foreign operations..... 44,009 137,297 3,162 5,747 6,099 196,324
OFNEIS o 6,963 11,054 (846) 1,684 (7,342) 11,513
Balance as of March 31, 2021 1,248,810 1,903,378 143,324 314,603 63,216 3,673,351
(Note) “Others” mainly includes the impact of changes in the scope of consolidation.
[Accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses]

Millions of yen
Buildings and Machinery and Tools, furniture Construction in

structures vehicles & fixtures Land progress Total
Balance as of March 31, 2019 ...cvvoveoeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeee (69,313) (128,257) (11,804) (4,201) (50) (213,627)
The impact of changes in accounting policies...................... 267 301 1,654 — — 2,223
Balance as of April 1, 2019.........cccoiiiiiiiiiiiiiccce (69,045)  (127,956) (10,150) (4,201) (500  (211,403)
Depreciation eXpenses..........ccccoceevieiiiiieieieieicccccce (4,954) (8,480) (1,334) — — (14,769)
Impairment [0SSes..........cccccuiiiiiiiiiiiicccccccce (1,149) (1,167) (35) — — (2,352)
Disposals 2,519 11,623 603 0 — 14,746
Reclassification to assets held forsale............cocooviveeeeeil 7,630 3 0 — — 7,634
Exchange translation differences for foreign operations..... 1,937 6,211 225 0 3 8,377
Others (NOTE) ....cuevvieieicieieieieie et (162) 2,904 (68) (0) — 2,673
Balance as of March 31, 2020.........cccoeueirniniiiennriecieene (63,225)  (116,861) (10,758) (4,200) (46)  (195,092)
DEprEdRIlEn EEIBBMBES coscsommsnm0mmmommm0s0mmmammsms0moRoram050m0 (4,230) (7,447) (1,447) — — (13,124)
IMpPairMeNnt 0SSEes..........ccccuiiiiiiiiiiiccccecae (2,097) (164) (1) (534) — (2,798)
DiSPOSAS.......cuiiiiiiiicic 505 3,029 856 — — 4,391
Exchange translation differences for foreign operations..... (2,561) (8,793) (227) (26) (6) (11,616)
ONEIS .ttt 476 798 14 500 — 1,790
Balance as of March 31, 2021 (71,132)  (129,438) (11,563) (4,261) (53)  (216,449)

Thousands of U.S. dollars
Buildings and Machinery and Tools, furniture Construction in

structures vehicles & fixtures Land progress Total
Balance as of March 31, 2020..........cccoeeirniniiieiniricciene (569,594) (1,052,801) (96,918) (37,837) (414) (1,757,585)
Depreciation @XPenses...........cccccoiiiviiiiiiniiieiiiccccccenes (38,108) (67,090) (13,036) — — (118,234)
Impairment losses.. (18,891) (1,477) 9) (4,810) — (25,207)
DISPOSAIS ... 4,549 27,288 7,711 — — 39,558
Exchange translation differences for foreign operations..... (23,072) (79,216) (2,045) (234) (54) (104,648)
ONEIS .ttt 4,288 7,189 126 4,504 — 16,126
Balance as of March 31, 2027 ...c.vovveoeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeee (640,828) (1,166,108) (104,171) (38,387) (477) (1,949,990)

(Note) “Others” mainly includes the impact of changes in the scope of consolidation.

Integrated Report 2021



FINANCIAL SECTION

[Carrying amounts]

Millions of yen

Buildings and  Machinery and Tools, furniture

Construction in

structures vehicles & fixtures Land progress Total
Balance as of March 31, 2020........ccccovveveevveeenn.. 65,046 57,147 4,329 23,209 8,263 157,995
Balance as of March 31, 2021 ....c..oovevvveveeeenn. 67,485 81,836 4,345 30,660 6,964 191,292
Balance as of March 31, 2021
(Thousands of U.S. dollars)...........ccceeveveveunnnen. 607,972 737,261 39,144 276,216 62,738 1,723,351

The amounts of expenditures relating to property, plant and equipment in the course of its construction are presented under the

“Construction in progress” column.

Depreciation expenses for property, plant and equipment are included in “Cost of sales” and “Selling, general and administrative

expenses” in the Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss.

n GOODWILL AND INTANGIBLE ASSETS

(1) Goodwill

1) Costs, accumulated impairment losses and carrying amounts
The increases/decreases in cost and accumulated impairment losses of goodwill were as follows.

[Costs]

Thousands of

Millions of yen U.S. dollars
2020 2021 2021
Balance at beginning Of YEAI ...ttt eees 70,345 69,743 628,315
Acquisitions through business combiNations ............c.cccoiiiiiiiiiiciicececece e 2,239 1,805 16,261
Exchange translation differences for foreign operations .............cccccoovoiiiiiiiiiiiiiiieccee (2,860) 453 4,081
ONEIS oottt 18 (256) (2,306)
Balance at @Nd Of YEAI ....oviuiiiiiii et 69,743 71,746 646,360

[Accumulated impairment losses]

Thousands of

Millions of yen U.S. dollars
2020 2021 2021
Balance at beginning Of YOI .........cciiuiiiiiiiiee et (4,146) (3,246) (29,243)
IMPEIMMENT [OSSES. ..o — (1,649) (14,855)
Exchange translation differences for foreign operations...............ccocviiiriiniinicnicniceceeen 899 351 3,162
Others ...cooceeeerncies — — —
Balance at end of year.. (3,246) (4,544) (40,936)

[Carrying amounts]

Thousands of

Millions of yen U.S. dollars
2020 2021 2021
CarmYiNG BMOUNTS ......ouiiiiiiiiieieieieieie ettt 66,496 67,201 605,414
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2) Impairment tests
A cash-generating unit group to which goodwill has been allocated is tested for impairment annually, and whenever there is an indication
that such unit may be impaired. Material carrying amounts of goodwill allocated to cash-generating unit groups were as follows.

Thousands of

Millions of yen U.S. dollars
2020 2021 2021
Chemicals
Parent company’s chemical business ............ccccocoiiiiiiiiiiiicccccc 7,460 7,460 67,207
Retail & Lifestyle Business
Domestic subsidiaries’ food Sales DUSINESS ........veweeeeeeeeeee ettt 8,090 8,090 72,882

The recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit groups to which significant goodwill has been allocated was calculated based on its
value in use founded on the five-year forecast that was approved by management.

The five-year forecast of cash flows is based on budgets reflecting past performance. In addition, the main assumption used to determine
such forecast was the growth rate of gross profits through such terms, such growth rate being consistent with the forecasts of the nominal
GDP growth rate or the like of the countries in which such cash-generating unit groups are situated.

The discount rates before tax and ultimate growth rates that were used in calculating the value in use of the cash-generating unit groups
to which significant goodwill has been allocated for the years ended March 31, 2020 and March 31, 2021, respectively, were as follows.

(a) Discount rates before tax

2020 2021
Chemicals
Parent company’s chemical BUSINESS .............cciiiiiiiiiiiic e 7.6% 8.1%
Retail & Lifestyle Business
The domestic subsidiaries’ food sales BUSINESS ............cciriiiiiiiiic s 6.4% 7.2%

(b) Ultimate growth rates
In regards to cash flows for the terms beyond the five-year forecast period that was approved by management, the value in use is
calculated with a growth rate of 0% for each such term.

With respect to goodwill that has been allocated to cash-generating unit groups, the recoverable amount of such goodwill sufficiently
exceeds its carrying amount. Thus, even if major assumptions are changed to a reasonable extent, the probability of such recoverable
amount becoming less than the carrying amount is unlikely.
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(2) Intangible assets

The increases/decreases in costs and accumulated amortization and accumulated impairment losses of intangible assets were as follows.

[Costs]
Millions of yen
Software Mining rights Others Total
Balance as of March 31, 2019 ......ccciueieriiiicieiieeeisie e 29,311 40,030 47,241 116,583
The impact of changes in accounting policies............ccccuviiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiisicccae (55) — (20) (75)
Balance as of April 1, 2019.......c.iiiiiiiiiiiiiiieee e 29,256 40,030 47,221 116,507
ACGUISIEIONS. ... 2,143 188 4,509 6,841
Acquisitions through business combinations...............ccccvirieiriririrnisreereeene 25 — 2,130 2,155
DISPOSAIS ... (218) (7,994) (637) (8,851)
Reclassification to assets held forsale............ccoovoiiiiiiicieeeeeeeeeeeeeeeee — ) (338) (339)
Exchange translation differences for foreign operations.... (112) (5,276) (3,173) (8,562)
ONEIS .t 250 (247) (1,459) (1,450)
Balance as of March 31, 2020 .......coueoeeoe oot eee e 31,344 26,705 48,251 106,300
ACGUISTEIONS. ... 1,214 121 5,290 6,625
Acquisitions through business combinations...............ccccceeeicniicniicniciccecne. 63 — 11,554 11,618
DISPOSAI ... (296) (26) (144) (466)
Exchange translation differences for foreign operations............ccccccccoviviiinicinns 137 6,821 4,795 11,754
ONEIS .ttt 225 (1,233) 33 (974)
Balance as of March 31, 20271 .......ovoeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeee e 32,688 32,388 69,780 134,857
Thousands of U.S. dollars
Software Mining rights Others Total

Balance as of March 31, 2020..........coooeoioeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeee e 282,378 240,585 434,693 957,657
ACQUISITIONS. ...t 10,936 1,090 47,657 59,684
Acquisitions through business combinations................ccccoeiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiceeae 567 —_ 104,090 104,666
DISPOSAIS ... (2,666) (234) (1,297) (4,198)
Exchange translation differences for foreign operations............ccccccoeiviiririninnnnc. 1,234 61,450 43,198 105,891
Others ...coveeeeeerieceeeeees 2,027 (11,108) 297 (8,774)
Balance as of March 31, 20271 ........ciuiuiiiiiieieieeeeiee e 294,486 291,783 628,648 1,214,927
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[Accumulated amortization and accumulated impairment losses]

Millions of yen

Software Mining rights Others Total
Balance as of March 31, 2079 ......coiiiiieieeieceeceee e (24,857) (26,942) (15,637) (67,437)
The impact of changes in accounting PONICIEs .......c..c.covcuniiciriicinicricceccee 17 — 5 23
Balance as of April 1, 2019.........ccoiiiiiiiiiiic e (24,839) (26,942) (15,632) (67,414)
Amortization expenses (1,694) (1,015) (1,481) 4,191)
IMPAIMMENT [OSSES ... 3) — (112) (116)
DISPOSAIS ... 114 2,509 444 3,068
Reclassification to assets held for sale ..o — — 232 232
Exchange translation differences for foreign operations............cccccceiviieiinicinnnn. 72 3,882 1,064 5,019
Others 260 — 208 468
Balance as of March 31, 2020 .......ccueoeeee oot (26,090) (21,565) (15,277) (62,933)
(e Z eI eSS S rrrrmrererrrrrrorerererarrmerer e oo e e T e T e ererey (1,713) (537) (1,759) (4,010)
IMPEIMMENT [OSSES. ... (6) (966) (1,677) (2,650)
DISPOSAIS ... 230 — 33 264
Exchange translation differences for foreign operations.............ccccooceuviiinicinicinans (93) (5,541) (1,478) (7,114)
Others 193 1,233 1,658 3,086
Balance as of March 31, 2027 .......coovoioiieieieeieeeeeeeee e (27,480) (27,377) (18,501) (73,358)

Thousands of U.S. dollars

Software Mining rights Others Total
Balance as of March 31, 2020.... (235,045) (194,279) (137,630) (566,963)
AMOTIZAtION EXPENSES......c.iuiiiiiiiiiiiiieieiciecc e (15,432) (4,837) (15,846) (36,126)
IMPEIMMENT [OSSES. ..o (54) (8,702) (15,108) (23,873)
DISPOSAIS ... 2,072 — 297 2,378
Exchange translation differences for foreign operations............cccccocccevicivicinicinnes (837) (49,918) (13,315) (64,090)
OMNEIS ettt ettt 1,738 11,108 14,936 27,801
Balance as of March 371, 2027 ......oeoeeeeeee oot (247,567) (246,639) (166,675) (660,882)
[Carrying amounts]

Millions of yen

Software Mining rights Others Total
Balance as of March 31, 2020 ..........c.ooviiiioeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeee e 5,253 5,139 32,973 43,366
Balance as of March 31, 2021.... 5,208 5,010 51,279 61,498
Balance as of March 31, 2021 (Thousands of U.S. dollars) ...........cccccoovvvieoivcieeeee 46,918 45,135 461,972 554,036

An important part of the carrying amount of mining rights on March 31, 2020 and March 31, 2021 is the mining rights held by the
Australian subsidiaries, amounting to ¥5,078 million and ¥4,935 million (U.S.$44,459 thousand). For the year ended March 31, 2021, one of
the subsidiaries sold mining rights related to thermal coal.

Customer-related assets are included in the carrying amount in the category of “Others” on March 31, 2020 and March 31, 2021.

The value of intangible assets with indefinite useful lives included above were ¥6,780 million on March 31, 2020, and ¥6,897 million (U.S.$
62,135 thousand) on March 31, 2021. Such assets consisted primarily of franchise agreements. These franchise agreements were mainly
acquired through business combinations and were expected to exist as long as business continues. Therefore, management considers the

useful lives of these assets to be indefinite.

There were no significant internally-generated intangible assets as of March 31, 2020 and March 31, 2021.
Amortization expenses are included in “Cost of sales” and “Selling, general and administrative expenses” in the Consolidated Statement

of Profit or Loss.
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n INVESTMENT PROPERTY

(1) Increases/decreases in costs, accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, carrying amounts and
fair values of investment property

Increases/decreases in cost, accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, carrying amounts and fair values of investment

property were as follows.

[Costs]
Millions of yen ey
2020 2021 2021

Balance at beginning Of YEaI ........cciiuiiiiiiieie et 34,633 28,663 258,225
The impact of changes in accounting PONICIES .........ccoicuriiiriiiriiicecec e 138 — —
Balance at beginning of year (revised) ...........cccooiiiiiiiiieiii et 34,771 28,663 258,225
Increase due to expenditures after aCQUISTTIONS ........c.c..cviiuriiiiiiiiiicieiciiceiceec e 667 232 2,090
DISPOSAIS ... (5,984) (13,495) (121,576)
Reclassification to/from property, plant and eqUIPMENt .........ccccccviiiriiiiiiniiicecececeeees 1,557 403 3,630
Exchange translation differences for foreign operations ... (100) (156) (1,405)
ONEIS ottt ettt (2,247) 409 3,684
Balance at @Nd OF YEAI ...voveuiiiiiiii ettt 28,663 16,055 144,639

[Accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses]

Thousands of

Millions of yen U.S. dollars
2020 2021 2021

Balance at beginning Of YEaI ........ccciiuiiiiiiiieie et (13,757) (10,060) (90,630)
PETeIEEE el CEISIEEES oo oo ooy e ey e e T LT O XY X YO eX Y X eorerere (467) (465) (4,189)
IMPEIMMENT [OSSES ... (31 (0) (0)
DISPOSAIS ... s 3,105 6,204 55,891
Reclassification to/from property, plant and eqUIPMENt .........ccccccviiiriiiriciniinicecececeeees 0 — —
Exchange translation differences for foreign operations ..............cccccviciviciniinicnicnicecnenns 46 130 1,171
Others .....cccoeeuviieunnann. 1,044 (261) (2,351)
Balance at end of year .... (10,060) (4,452) (40,108)

[Carrying amounts and fair values]

Thousands of

Millions of yen U.S. dollars
2020 2021 2021

CarTYING @MOUNTS ...ttt et eneseneneaean 18,602 11,603 104,531

FAIT VAIUGS ..ottt ettt ettt ettt ettt et et ene e 19,574 12,549 113,054

The fair values are amounts that the Group calculated based on an independent appraiser’s appraisals and the “real estate appraisal
standards” of the country in which the investment properties are located. These appraisals are calculated based on either the public offering
price, a sales comparison approach or discount cash flow approach. Upon an acquisition from a third party or at the time of the most recent
appraisal, if there is no significant fluctuation in the index, which is believed to reflect a certain appraised value (market or assessed price) or
appropriate market value, the fair value is adjusted using such appraised value or index.

As set forth under “2 BASIS OF PRESENTATION (4) Use of estimates and judgments,” fair values are categorized into three levels in a fair
value hierarchy based on the inputs used in the valuation techniques. Investment property is categorized within fair value hierarchy Level 3.
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(2) Profit or loss relating to investment property

Thousands of

Millions of yen U.S. dollars
2020 2021 2021
Rental income from inVesStment Property .............ccoceicuicuniiinicinicieciesieieeiceeeicee e 5,332 3,858 34,756
Expenses arising from invVestment Property .........c.c..cowcuciiiiciniicinicieiceeeeceeeiceeneceessceeneceenaeees (3,884) (2,875) (25,900)
PIOTIT ettt bbbttt 1,447 983 8,855

Rental income from investment property is included in “Sales of services and others” and “Other operating income” in the Consolidated
Statement of Profit or Loss.

Expenses arising from investment property (depreciation expenses, repair expenses, insurance fees, taxes or the like) correspond to rental
income from such investment properties and are included in “Cost of sales,” “Selling, general and administrative expenses” and “Other
operating expenses” in the Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss.

INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR USING THE EQUITY METHOD

(1) Investments accounted for using the equity method, share of profit (loss) of investments accounted for using the
equity method, and share of other comprehensive income of investments accounted for using the equity method
Investments accounted for using the equity method, share of profit (loss) of investments accounted for using the equity method and share of

other comprehensive income of investments accounted for using the equity method were as follows.

[Investments accounted for using the equity method]

Thousands of

Millions of yen U.S. dollars
2020 2021 2021
INTErests iN JOINt VENTUIES ....c..iiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiciic e 60,026 55,427 499,342
INTEIESES 1N @SSOCIATES ....vviiiieeiiie ettt e et e e et e e ettt e e et e e e eaaeeeseaaeeeeeaaeeeeannes 353,714 377,601 3,401,810
Investments accounted for using the equity Method ...........ccccociviiiiiiiiiniicccece 413,740 433,029 3,901,162
[Share of profit (loss) of investments accounted for using the equity method]
Millions of yen icidd
2020 2021 2021
INTErEStS iN JOINT VENTUIES ....uiiiiiiiiiiiicieieici ettt 3,817 1,807 16,279
INEEIESES TN @SSOCIATES ... ettt e et e e e e e e e eeee e e 21,090 12,979 116,927
Share of profit (loss) of investments accounted for using the equity method ...........cc.cccccccvviiace 24,908 14,786 133,207

[Share of other comprehensive income of investments accounted for using the equity method]

Thousands of

Millions of yen U.S. dollars
2020 2021 2021
Interests in joint ventures ... (7,858) (3,704) (33,369)
[INEEIESES IN @SSOCIATES ...ttt ettt e e e et e e et e et e eaeeeeaeeeete e e e e enaeeeaaeeensesneeenneens (11,094) 945 8,513
Share of other comprehensive income of investments accounted for using
the eqUity MEhOd ......c..iuiiiiiiic e (18,952) (2,758) (24,84¢6)

(2) Joint ventures
1) Material joint venture
LNG Japan Corporation (“LNG Japan”), one of the Group’s Entities subject to Equity Method, is a material Group joint venture.

The Group is participating in large-scale LNG projects in Asia and the Middle East through LNG Japan.

LNG Japan is not publicly listed.

Summarized financial information of LNG Japan and a reconciliation of the carrying amount of the Group's interest in LNG Japan were as
follows. Summarized financial information has been prepared by adjusting LNG Japan's financial statements based on the Group’s accounting
policies.
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Thousands of

Millions of yen U.S. dollars
2020 2021 2021
Percentage OWNErship INTEIEST .........c.cucuiiiiiiiiiiiiiicieici et 50% 50% 50%
CUITENT @SSEES .ttt e e e et e e e e e aee e eae e e eae e e et e eseeeeaeeeeaeeeaeeeaaeeeaeeeeaeeenseenaeeeneeeereeas 30,616 23,979 216,027
INON=CUITENT @SSEES ..ottt et e e e e e e et e e et e et e eneeeenaeeeteeeneeeenaeeenaeeensesnneeenneens 120,560 109,920 990,270
CUITENT TADITITIES . ve e ettt ettt e e eeae et eaeeteere e e eeeeneseenes 14,964 10,662 96,054
Non-current liabilities .. 55,817 54,338 489,531
EQUILY e 80,394 68,899 620,711
Group's share of EQUILY ........couiiiiii e 40,197 34,449 310,351
Goodwill and consolidated adjUSTMENT .........iviiiiririeieiceiii st 1,724 1,833 16,513
Carrying amMOUNTt OF INTEIESE .....eueueiieiiieiiiriieiet ettt ettt ssesesesesesenenenens 41,921 36,283 326,873

The balances of cash and cash equivalents that are included in current assets as of March 31, 2020 and March 31, 2021 are ¥10,324 million
and ¥15,167million (U.S.$136,639 thousand), respectively.

The balances of financial liabilities (excluding trade and other payables, and provisions) that are included in current liabilities as of March
31, 2020 and March 31, 2021 are ¥1,877 million and ¥727 million (U.S.$6,549 thousand), respectively.

The balances of financial liabilities (excluding trade and other payables, and provisions) that are included in non-current liabilities as of
March 31, 2020 and March 31, 2021 are ¥30,403 million and ¥34,225 million (U.S.$308,333 thousand), respectively.

Thousands of

Millions of yen U.S. dollars
2020 2021 2021

GIOSS PIOIL .ottt 12,225 7,148 64,396
Depreciation and aMOTHZALION .........c.c..ceiiiiuiiiiiiiecieiecieiceeeiceeeiee ettt ceeseceesaeees (97) (102) (918)
INEEIEST QAINMEA ..ottt ettt ettt e et e et e eae et e e et eeae et et e e e eae e eeaeeanen 515 167 1,504
INTEIESt @XPENSES ...t (654) (477) (4,297)
[NCOME TAX EXPENSES ...t (6,528) (3,328) (29,981)
Profit fOr the YEI ...t 7,869 3,422 30,828
Other comprehensive income for the Year ............ccccciiiiiiiiicce e (15,917) (9,557) (86,099)
Total comprehensive income for the Year ... (8,048) (6,134) (55,261)
Share of:

PrOTIt fOr the YEAI ...ttt s s enenenens 3,934 1,711 15,414

Other comprehensive income for the year ... (7,958) (4,778) (43,045)

Total comprehensive income for the year ... (4,024) (3,067) (27,630)
Dividends received by the Group ............cccciiiiiiiiiiiiiiiicicececcecee s 2,800 2,680 24,144

2) Individually immaterial joint ventures
Carrying amounts of interests, share of profit (loss) for the year, share of other comprehensive income for the year and share of total
comprehensive income for the year of all individually immaterial joint ventures were as follows.

Thousands of

Millions of yen U.S. dollars
2020 2021 2021
Carrying amMOUNES OF INTEIESTS .....cuviiiiiiieieiitieieiet ettt 18,105 19,144 172,468

Thousands of

Millions of yen U.S. dollars
2020 2021 2021
Share of:
Profit (loss) for the year (116) 95 855
Other comprehensive income for the year ............ccoccoiiiiiiiiiiiicicicceceeecee e 100 1,074 9,675
Total comprehensive income for the year ...........c.cccoiiiiiiiiiiceceeeee (16) 1,170 10,540
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(3) Associates
1) Material associate
Metal One Corporation (“Metal One”), one of the Group’s Entities subject to the Equity Method, is a material Group associate.

In the steel products business, the Group will expand its domestic and overseas customer base and sales network for steel products
through Japan’s largest integrated steel trading company, Metal One. At the same time, the Group will enhance and create global value
chains by further expanding steel product trading through stronger collaboration and alliances with the Company’s other businesses, such as
energy-related and overseas business.

Metal One is not publicly listed.

Summarized financial information of Metal One and a reconciliation of the carrying amount of the Group’s interest in Metal One were as
follows. Summarized financial information has been prepared by adjusting Metal One's financial statements based on the Group’s accounting
policies.

Thousands of

Millions of yen U.S. dollars
2020 2021 2021
Percentage ownership INTEreSt ...........ccciiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiccccceccee s 40% 40% 40%
Current assets 723,933 668,112 6,019,027
INON=CUITENT @SSEES ..ot e e e et e et e e e e e e et e e e eaee e e 254,050 243,874 2,197,063
CUITENT TADIIITIES .. vttt ea et eae e e eae e e eaeenseeneenes 485,219 418,305 3,768,513
INON-CUITENT TADIIIES ..o ettt e e e e e e e eeaeeeaeeea 80,682 81,776 736,720
EQUITY e 412,081 411,905 3,710,855
NON-CONEIOIING INTEIESTS ...vviiiiiiiii ettt 35,629 36,465 328,513
Equity after deduction of non-controlling iNterests ..o 376,452 375,440 3,382,342
Group's ShAre Of EQUILY .......cuviiiiieiiici e 150,580 150,176 1,352,936
Goodwill and consolidated adjUSTMENT ........coiiuiuiiriniiiicirri e 3,710 3,710 33,423
Carrying amount of interest 154,290 153,886 1,386,360

Thousands of

Millions of yen U.S. dollars
2020 2021 2021

GIOSS POfIL .o 103,469 83,124 748,864
Profit fOr the YEI ......uiiiiiiiccii et 23,073 6,640 59,819
Other comprehensive income for the Year ............ccccooiiiiiiiiie e (9,852) 21,348 192,324
Total comprehensive income for the year ... 13,220 27,988 252,144
Share of:

Profit for the year .......cccccoveeeiiiiiine, 9,229 2,656 23,927

Other comprehensive income for the year ... (3,940) 8,539 76,927

Total comprehensive income for the year ... 5,288 11,195 100,855
Dividends received by the GroUp ............cccciiiiiiiiiiiiiciicceeeeeee s 5,080 3,900 35,135

2) Individually immaterial associates
Carrying amounts of interests, share of profit for the year, share of other comprehensive income for the year and share of total comprehensive
income for the year of all individually immaterial associates were as follows.

Thousands of

Millions of yen U.S. dollars
2020 2021 2021
Carrying amMOUNES OF INTEIESTS .....cuvviiieiieieiiieieiet ettt ettt 199,423 223,715 2,015,450
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Thousands of

Millions of yen U.S. dollars
2020 2021 2021
Share of:
Profit fOr the YEAI ...ttt 11,861 10,322 92,990
Other comprehensive income for the year ... (7,153) (7,593) (68,405)
Total comprehensive income for the year ...........c.cccoiiiiiiiiiiccecececceae 4,708 2,729 24,585

n OTHER INVESTMENTS

The breakdown of other investments was as follows.

Thousands of

Millions of yen U.S. dollars
2020 2021 2021
Financial assets measured at amortized cost — 500 4,504
Financial assets Measured at FVTPL ..ot e e e e e eeaeeea 3,899 7,417 66,819
Financial assets measured at FVTOCI .......ooviiiiieieee et 137,075 149,900 1,350,450
ORI ettt ettt 140,975 157,817 1,421,774
INON=CUITENT @SSEES ... e ettt e et e et e e et e e et e e et e e et e e seaaeeeeans 140,975 157,817 1,421,774
ORI ettt 140,975 157,817 1,421,774

ﬂ OTHER CURRENT ASSETS AND OTHER NON-CURRENT ASSETS (NON-FINANCIAL ASSETS)

The breakdown of other current assets and other non-current assets (non-financial assets) was as follows.

Thousands of

Millions of yen U.S. dollars
2020 2021 2021
AQVANCE PAYMENTS ...ttt 43,897 44,071 397,036
ONEIS .ottt 32,239 32,658 294,216
76,136 76,729 691,252
64,455 64,924 584,900
11,680 11,804 106,342
76,136 76,729 691,252

m TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

The breakdown of trade and other payables was as follows.

Thousands of

Millions of yen U.S. dollars
2020 2021 2021
Trade notes and accounts Payable ..o 382,151 392,067 3,532,135
DEPOSIts MECEIVEM ........oiiiiiiiiiiccicccc e 69,154 50,983 459,306
ONEIS ettt 2ttt ekttt ettt 40,200 39,063 351,918
491,506 482,114 4,343,369
481,768 475,978 4,288,090
9,738 6,136 55,279
491,506 482,114 4,343,369
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ﬂ BONDS AND BORROWINGS

(1) Bonds and borrowings
The breakdown of bonds and borrowings was as follows.

Thousands of

Millions of yen U.S. dollars
2020 2021 Avfarig ?'\}r;ttz;ESt Maturity date 2021
SROM-EIM 10@NS .o 128,274 104,158 0.99% — 938,360
Current portion of bonds payable ...........ccccccccoceviiiiinnnn. 10,006 20,001 — — 180,189
Current portion of long-term l0ans ............ccccccoceeienicncnnnnn. 48,486 34,434 1.50% — 310,216
Bonds payable (excluding current portion) ............cccccccceveennee 79,772 69,772 — — 628,576
April 2022—
Long-term loans (excluding current portion) ..........c.cccccceuuee 626,719 679,966 1.00% December 2038 6,125,819
TOTAl oo e 893,258 908,334 8,183,189
Current llabilities .......ovovvieieeeieeeeeee e 186,767 158,595 1,428,783
Non-current abilities .....ovevveeeeeeeeeeeeeeee e 706,491 749,739 6,754,405
TOTAl oo 893,258 908,334 8,183,189

(Note) “Average interest rate” is presented as the weighted average interest rate against the balance of the borrowings or the like at the end of the year. Borrowings hedged
by derivative transactions, such as interest rate swaps or the like, for the purpose of avoiding the interest rate fluctuation risk, are calculated at the interest rate under
such derivative transactions. “Interest rate” of bonds is presented in “(2) Bonds.”

As of March 31, 2021, the Company and some of its subsidiaries maintain the following agreements to provide additional financial

flexibility and liquidity:
e Long-term commitment lines of ¥120 billion (currently unused) and U.S. $1.8 billion (U.S.$610 million used)

Since the Group has the intention and ability to refinance its borrowings from financial institutions, current portions of long-term loans of
¥57,307 million and ¥123,668 million (U.S.$1,114,126 thousand) as of March 31, 2020 and March 31, 2021, respectively, were presented as
non-current liabilities based on the unused balance under commitment line agreements.

The Company is subject to financial covenants with respect to a portion of its borrowings from financial institutions, such as to maintain a
certain level of consolidated net assets and the like, and the Company has complied with such covenants for the years ended March 31, 2020
and March 31, 2021. In addition, the Company monitors each compliance status to maintain the level required by such financial covenants.

(2) Bonds

Thousands of

Millions of yen U.S. dollars

Interest
Company name Bond name Date of issuance 2020 2021 rate Collateral Maturity date 2021
October 18, 9,995 o October 16,

The Company The 28th unsecured bond 2013 (9.995) 1.23%  None 2020 —
The Company The 29th unsecured bond  April 22, 2014 9,984 9,991 1.18% None  April 22, 2022 90,009

The Company The 30th unsecured bond ~ June 16, 2014 9,972 9978 1.48% None June 14,2024 89,891
September 5, 9,996 o September 3, 90,054

The Company The 31st unsecured bond 2014 9,988 (9.996) 0.84% None 2021 (90.054)
9,998 9 90,072

The Company The 32nd unsecured bond June 2, 2016 9,987 (9.998) 0.38% None June 2, 2021 (90.,072)
The Company The 33rd unsecured bond ~ March 9, 2017 9,968 9,976 0.52% None March 8, 2024 89,873
The Company The 34th unsecured bond June 1, 2017 9,957 9,962 0.72%  None June 1, 2027 89,747
The Company The 35th unsecured bond March 8, 2018 9,952 9,958 0.61% None March 8, 2028 89,711
The Company The 36th unsecured bond Novtzrg?;:-r 27, 9,943 9948 0.47% None Novtzrgggr 27, 89,621
The Company The 37th unsecured bond Septzrgzboer (& — 9,945 0.56% None Septzrgé)oer 13, 89,594

. September 30,
Consoldated Others R & 15 014% None ' 2021— e
March 31, 2024

Total . . 89,779 89,774 . . 808,774
10,006 (20,001) (180,189)

(Note) The amounts in parentheses under the columns for 2020 and 2021 are current portions of bonds payable.

Integrated Report 2021



170

FINANCIAL SECTION

n PROVISIONS

The breakdown of increases/decreases in provisions was as follows.
Millions of yen

Asset retirement

obligations Others Total
Balance as of April 1, 2020 ...........coiiuiiiiiiiiniiiiiieiciceece ettt 30,814 2,244 33,059
INCrEASE TOr TN YEAI ...ttt 1,644 2,391 4,036
Decrease for the year (incurred and charged against Provisions) ............cccceccvecricnicinicnncenns (79) (1,284) (1,364)
Decrease for the year (unused amounts reversed) ...........coecvriiieieininiecieeeeceiesse e — (49) 49)
Interest expenses for discounting ... 224 — 224
Change in discount rate ............... 3,940 — 3,940
Exchange translation differences for foreign operations ..............cccccveiiviiniivicicicecenes 4,824 48 4,873
(@)1 o Y=Yl (Lo =Y OO (142) 373 231
Balance as 0f March 371, 2027 .....ooeeoeeeeeeee oottt eae e eteeeeeae e eeaeeneas 41,227 3,725 44,952

Thousands of U.S. dollars
Asset retirement

obligations Others Total
Balance as of April 1, 2020 ...........ccoiuiiiiiiiiiiiiiicieceece e 277,603 20,216 297,828
INCrEASE TOr TN YOI ...ttt 14,810 21,540 36,360
Decrease for the year (incurred and charged against Provisions) ............ccccecevecviceicnicnnennns (711) (11,567) (12,288)
Decrease for the year (unused amounts reversed) ...........ccccvviieieniniecniniceeseeceeeseees — (441) (441)
Interest expenses for diSCOUNTING ..........coiiiiiiiiiiicec e 2,018 — 2,018
Change iN ISCOUNT FATE ...vvvieeeeeieicieiee ettt ettt ea s s s eses et e s ssssesesesesesenenenens 35,495 — 35,495
Exchange translation differences for foreign operations .............ccccccoiiiiiiiiiiiiiicee 43,459 432 43,900
ONErS (NOTE) ...ttt ettt (1,279) 3,360 2,081
Balance as of March 31, 20271 ......ovoeoeoeeeeeeeeeeeeee ettt eneene 371,414 33,558 404,972

The breakdown of provisions for each of current liabilities and non-current liabilities was as follows.
Thousands of

Millions of yen U.S. dollars

2020 2021 2021
CUITENT TADIITEIES ..ot e et e et eaeeeaeeas 1,956 3,226 29,063
NON-CUITENT TADITIES .o ettt et ettt ee e et ee e e ea e e eeaeeanes 31,102 41,725 375,900
TOTAN ettt 33,059 44,952 404,972

Asset retirement obligations mainly consist of removal costs relating to mining facilities or the like for coal and gas. Such costs mainly are
expected to be paid after at least one year has passed, subject to effects from future business plans or the like.
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VA OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES AND OTHER NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES (NON-FINANCIAL LIABILITIES)

The breakdown of other current liabilities and other non-current liabilities (non-financial liabilities) was as follows.

Thousands of

Millions of yen U.S. dollars
2020 2021 2021
AGVANCES FECRIVEA ..ottt e ettt e et e e e e e et eeeeeeee st eeeeeaeeeseeneens 39,396 51,021 459,648
ONEIS ettt a s s a2k a st Attt s s s s nenenenen 26,262 26,746 240,954
L] USSP 65,659 77,767 700,603
CUITENT TADITITIES .. v et e e e et e e e e eaeeeeeaeeeeeaeenes 56,716 68,130 613,783
NON-CUITENTE [TADIIIHIES ...t 8,943 9,636 86,810
TOTAN 1ttt ettt ettt ettt ettt ettt n et s et et nenenan 65,659 77,767 700,603

m ASSETS HELD FOR SALE AND LIABILITIES DIRECTLY RELATED THERETO

The breakdown of assets held for sale and liabilities directly related thereto was as follows.

Thousands of

Millions of yen U.S. dollars
2020 2021 2021
Assets held for sale
Property, plant and eqUIPMENT ........c.cccoiiiiiiiiiiccece s 415 — —
Investments accounted for using the equity Method ..........c.cccviiiiniiicniccccee 11,789 892 8,036
ONETS .ttt 113 — —
TOTA e 12,318 892 8,036
Liabilities directly relating to assets as held for sale
Trade and other Payables ... 1 — —
TOTA e 1 — —

Among the assets classified as held for sale and liabilities directly related thereto, trade and other payables are measured at amortized
cost and other investments are measured at fair value through other comprehensive income.

As of March 31, 2020, the main assets that were classified as held for sale and liabilities directly related thereto were Investments
accounted for using the equity method of the subsidiaries that were included in the Energy & Social Infrastructure segment. The sale was
completed in June 2020.

Sojitz Corporation decided to sell its assets as part of its asset replacement program. Thus, the assets and liabilities of the company were
classified as assets held for sale and liabilities directly related thereto as of March 31, 2020.

n EQUITY

(1) Capital management

In order to enhance its enterprise value, the Company has as its basic policies the maintenance of a healthy financial position and stability in
its funding structure, accumulation of its own equity (Note 1) through the realization of sustained growth and expansion of its financial base.
The Company uses net DER (Note 2) and risk assets ratio (Note 3) as main indices for managing the Company’s equity.

FY2020 was the final year of the “Medium-term Management Plan 2020", which aimed for a net DER of 1.5 times or less. In the same
period, the target was to manage the risk assets ratio to within 1.0 times. These targets were reached due to improved asset efficiency
caused by asset replacement coupled with suppression of increased borrowings.

In the “Medium-term Management Plan 2023", with FY2023 as the final year, the aim for a net DER is 1.0 times. In the same period, the
target is to manage the risk assets ratio within 1.0 times. These will be achieved through continuing investment initiatives for further growth,
and strengthening functions for upholding financial discipline and growth. These indicators are periodically reported and monitored by
management.

Notes: 1. Own equity = Total equity amount less non-controlling interests
2. Net DER = (Interest bearing liabilities - Cash and cash equivalents - Time deposits) + Own equity
However, interest-bearing debt does not include lease liabilities (current or non-current).
3. Risk assets ratio = Risk asset (such asset amount calculated based on assessment of such risk in correspondence to the size of such risk) + Own equity

Integrated Report 2021

171



172

FINANCIAL SECTION

Net DERs and Risk assets ratios as of March 31, 2020 and March 31, 2021, respectively, were as follows.

2020 2021
Net DER ....cccoceoviveinnne. 1.06times 0.9%times
Risk assets ratio (Note 3) 0.7times 0.6times
(2) Number of authorized shares, issued shares and shares of treasury stocks
Shares
2020 2021

Authorized: ordinary no-par value Shares ... 2,500,000,000  2,500,000,000
Issued: ordinary no-par value shares

Balance at beginning O YEaI ...ttt 1,251,499,501 1,251,499,501

Increase or deCrease fOr the YEAI ..ottt — —

BalanCe @t @Nd OF YT .....viuiiiiiiii bttt 1,251,499,501 1,251,499,501
Treasury stock: ordinary no-par value shares

Balance at beginning O YEI ...t 2,260,444 32,204,257

Increase or decrease for the year 29,943,813 20,200,213

BalanCe @t @Nd OF YEAI ..ottt 32,204,257 52,404,470

Note: 1. Fuji Nihon Seito Corporation owned 200,000 shares of the Company as of March 31, 2020 and March 31, 2021, respectively, but as the Corporation is an equi-
ty-method associate the shares are not included in Treasury stock (ordinary no-par value shares).
2. The balance of treasury stock includes 1,667,211 shares and 1,547,972 shares of the Company stock held in the Director's Compensation BIP Trust account as of

March 31, 2020 and March 31, 2021, respectively.

3. During the period between November 5, 2019 and March 31, 2020, we acquired 30,000,000 treasury shares (ordinary non-par value shares), based on the resolu-

tion of the Board of Directors made on November 1, 2019.

4. During the period between April 1, 2020 and June 30, 2020, we acquired 20,315,900 treasury shares (ordinary non-par value shares), based on the resolution of the

Board of Directors made on March 27, 2020.

(3) Surplus
1) Capital surplus
Capital surplus mainly consists of legal capital surplus.

2) Retained earnings

Retained earnings consist of legal retained earnings and unappropriated profits. Retained earnings include the cumulative exchange
translation differences for foreign operations as of the Transition Date.

(4) Dividends
1) Amount of dividend payments

Amount of
Amount of dividends Dividend
Source of dividends (Thousands of per share
Resolution Type of shares dividends  (Millions of yen)  U.S. dollars) (Yen) Recorded date Payment date
Annual general shareholders’ meeting ~ Ordinary Retained March 31, June 21,
on June 20, 2019 shares earnings 11,884 107,063 950 2019 2019
Board of directors meeting Ordinary Retained September 30, December 2,
on November 1, 2019 shares earnings 10,633 95,792 8.50 2019 2019
Annual general shareholders’ meeting ~ Ordinary Retained March 31, June 19,
on June 18, 2020 shares earnings 18:201 SR B8l 2020 2020
Board of directors meeting Ordinary Retained September 30, December 1,
on October 30, 2020 shares earnings 6,003 54,081 5.00 2020 2020
2) Dividends to be proposed to shareholders at the annual general shareholders’ meeting on June 18, 2021
Amount of
Amount of dividends Dividend
Source of dividends (Thousands of per share
Resolution Type of shares dividends  (Millions of yen)  U.S. dollars) (Yen) Record date Payment date
Annual general shareholders’ meeting ~ Ordinary Retained March 31, June 21,
on June 18, 2021 shares earnings 6,003 54,081 5.00 2021 2021
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m REVENUE

(1) Disaggregated Revenue
The Group’'s structure consists of nine business divisions: Automotive Division, Aerospace & Transportation Project Division, Machinery &
Medical Infrastructure Division, Energy & Social Infrastructure Division, Metals & Mineral Resources Division, Chemicals Division, Foods &
Agriculture Business Division, Retail & Lifestyle Business Division, and Industrial Infrastructure & Urban Development Division. The Board of
Directors regularly reviews this structure in order to decide allocation of management resources and evaluate company performance. Other
departments outside of these divisions—administration, domestic branches, logistics and insurance services etc.—are included in “others,”
with the revenue from such recorded and displayed as “Revenue.”

Revenue for each business division for the year ended March 31, 2021 can be found under “5 SEGMENT INFORMATION (2) Information
regarding reportable segments.” Product and service categorization is identical to business category.

(2) Receivables from contracts with customers, contract asset, and contract liability

Receivables from contracts with customers refer to any notes receivable and accounts receivable included under trade and other receivables.
There is no materiality to the revenue recognized in the reporting period from performance obligations satisfied in previous periods, contract
asset and contract liability for the years ended March 31, 2020 and March 31, 2021. The contract asset is displayed in “Trade and other
receivables” and contract liability is in “Other current liabilities” and “Other non-current liabilities”.

(3) Transaction price allocated to the remaining performance obligations

The following shows the Group’s assumed timing for revenue to be recognized in the reporting period from transaction price allocated to the
remaining performance obligations as of March 31, 2021. Note that these figures do not include contracts for which performance obligations
were initially anticipated to remain for only one year or less.

Millions of yen

Within Between one Over
one year and five years five years to Total
Balance as of March 31, 2020...........cccvovoviveiiieieieieeeceeeeee e 51,989 53,376 31,625 136,992
Balance as of March 31, 2027 ...t 55,136 64,024 33,150 152,311

Thousands of U.S. dollars

Within Between one Over
one year and five years five years to Total
Balance as of March 31, 20271 .......ovoeoeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeee e 496,720 576,792 298,648 1,372,171

(4) Assets recognized from the cost to obtain or fulfill a contract with a customer

For the years ended March 31, 2020 and March 31, 2021, there were no material assets recognized from the cost to obtain or fulfill a contract
with a customer. If the amortization period of the asset that the entity otherwise would have recognized is one year or less, the Group
recognizes the additional incremental costs of obtaining a contract as an expense at time of occurrence, as a practical expedient.

SELLING, GENERAL AND ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES

The breakdown of selling, general and administrative expenses was as follows.

Thousands of

Millions of yen U.S. dollars
2020 2021 2021
Employee benefit @XPenses ..o (97,909) (93,466) (842,036)
Traveling EXPENSES .......c.cviiiiiiiiiicie et (6,975) (2,253) (20,297)
Rent expenses . (3,762) (3,475) (31,3006)
OULSOUICING EXPENSES .....viiiiiiiiieieieee e (10,708) (11,071) (99,738)
Depreciation and amortization @XPENSES .............cccriiwiiiiiiiiiiiiieeiieeiieeieseseee s (16,616) (17,533) (157,954)
ONEIS ettt b ettt heh ek n ettt ettt b b (37,270) (33,280) (299,819)
TOTAI ettt bttt etttk e ettt ettt nenen (173,243) (161,080) (1,451,171)
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E GAIN (LOSS) ON DISPOSAL OF FIXED ASSETS

The breakdown of gain (loss) on disposal of fixed assets was as follows.

Thousands of

Millions of yen U.S. dollars
2020 2021 2021
Gain on sale of property, plant and eqUIPMENT ..........c.cccceuriiiiiiriiie e 301 167 1,504
Gain on sale of iNtangible @SSEtS ..........ccciuiiiiiiiiiiiic e 7,627 16 144
Gain on sale of INVESTMENT PrOPEILY .........c..cueuiiriiieiiieitieicieie ettt 2,668 3,075 27,702
Total of gain on sale of fixed assets ... 10,597 3,259 29,360
Loss on sale of property, plant and equipment (87) (92) (828)
Loss on sale of intangible assets ..... ()] — —
Total of [0ss 0N sale Of fIXEA @SSETS ........oviuiieecei et (87) (92) (828)
Loss on retirement of property, plant and equIPMENt ..........cccccciiiiiiiiiiiiiiicecececcee (230) (189) (1,702)
Loss on retirement of iNtanNgible @SSELS ........c.ciriiiiiriiiieicir e (5) (116) (1,045)
Total of loss on retirement Of fIXEA @SSETS ......oovveiveieeee ettt (235) (306) (2,756)
Total of gain (loss) on disposal of fixed assets, Net ............cccoeviriviriiiiiiiiiicecece e 10,274 2,860 25,765

“Gain on sale of intangible assets” for the year ended March 31, 2020 consists primarily of the gain on sale of mining rights for thermal
coal.

E IMPAIRMENT LOSS

Impairment losses were included in “Impairment loss on fixed assets” and “Loss on reorganization of subsidiaries/associates” in the
Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss. The breakdown of impairment losses by asset type was as follows.

Thousands of

Millions of yen U.S. dollars
2020 2021 2021

Property, plant and @qUIPMENT .........c.c.ciiiiiiiiiciccecc e (2,352) (2,798) (25,207)
RIGNT-OF-USE @SSETS ...ttt ettt ettt es e e s e enee (332 (20) (180)
GOOAWIIL ..ottt ettt ettt ettt — (1,649) (14,855)
INEANGIDIE BSSEES ...ttt (116) (2,650) (23,873)
[NVESTMENT PrOPEILY ...ttt (31 (0) (0)
Investments accounted for using the equity method .............ccccccciiiiiiiiiiiicce (288) — —

TN ettt ettt ettt ettt ettt ean s (3,121) (7,119) (64,135)
Impairment [0ss 0N fIXEd @SSETS .........ccciiiiiiiiiiiiiiiecccecc s (2,833) (5,470) (49,279)
Loss on reorganization of SUbSIAIANESs/aSSOCIATES ........c.viueuiiririiiiieieiriieieiet ettt (288) (1,649) (14,855)

L= = OO (3,121) (7,119) (64,135)
Impairment losses were applicable to the following segments.

Thousands of
Millions of yen U.S. dollars
2020 2021 2021

AANUTOMIOTIVE .ttt ettt ettt et et at e st e s ee e eneeeb e ens e bt emse e st emseen e enseeneenseeseenseeneenneeneenseanean — — —
Aerospace & Transportation ProjECt ... (1,096) — —
Machinery & Medical INfraStrUCTUIE ......o.oveueeeerieiieie et eees — (1,649) (14,855)
Energy & Social INfraStrUCTUIE ........c.cueuiiiiiiiiieieisi ettt (1,129) (478) (4,306)
Metals & MINETal RESOUITES ......veieeeeeeeee ettt eeae e e ene e e eeeenees (137) (4,568) (41,153)
CREIMICAIS ..ottt ettt ettt et aseaeeae et et et s ene et e st enseneene — — —
FOOdS & AGIICUIUIE BUSINESS .....e.iiiiiiieieieieieiei ettt seenenes (435) — —
Retail & LIfEStyle BUSINESS .....vcvvieieiieieiriicicieteisitiei et ettt (288) (375) (3,378)
Industrial Infrastructure & Urban Development ... — — —
OUNEIS ettt ettt ettt ettt ettt ettt ans (33) (48) (432)

TOTAN ettt ettt ettt ettt ettt s st ettt et seneaan (3,121) (7,119) (64,135)
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During the year ended March 31, 2020, the impairment losses were mainly related to oil and gas interests within the Energy & Social
Infrastructure Segment, and ships within the Aerospace & Transportation Project Segment. These impairments were caused by declines
within the oil and gas and charter fee market, respectively.

During the year ended March 31, 2021, the recoverable amount was calculated for Australian thermal coal interests within the Metals &
Mineral Resources Segment based on the value in use. The value in use was estimated based on certain key assumptions, such as future coal
prices and selling prices that were used as the basis to develop the business plan, the recoverable reserves that were used to calculate
production volume, and a discount rate. Impairment of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets totaling ¥4,546 million
(U.S.$40,954 thousand) was recognized because the future cash flows were considered to be lower than the Group’s original business plan
due to a coal mine to be closed. This amount represented the difference between carrying amount and recoverable amount of zero.

In addition, the recoverable amount was calculated for U.K. oil and gas interests within the Energy & Social Infrastructure Segment using
the fair value less disposal costs. The fair value less disposal costs was estimated based on certain key assumptions, such as future oil and gas
prices that were used as the basis to develop the business plan, the recoverable reserves that were used to calculate production volume, the
feasibility of its development plan, and a discount rate. Impairment of property, plant and equipment totaling ¥478 million (U.S.$4,306
thousand) was recognized because the future cash flows were considered to be lower than the Group's original business plan due to declines
within oil and gas prices. This amount represented the difference between the carrying amount the and recoverable amount of ¥11,416
million (U.S.$102,846 thousand).

m GAIN ON REORGANIZATION OF SUBSIDIARIES/ASSOCIATES

Gain arising from the loss of the control over subsidiaries/associates was ¥3,415 million for the year ended March 31, 2020 and ¥3,923 million
(U.S.$35,342 thousand) for the year ended March 31, 2021.

E LOSS ON REORGANIZATION OF SUBSIDIARIES/ASSOCIATES

The breakdown of loss on reorganization of subsidiaries/associates was as follows.

Thousands of

Millions of yen U.S. dollars
2020 2021 2021
Loss on sale of subsidiaries/associates and the like .... . (253) (476) (4,288)
IMPAIMMENT [0S ... e (288) (1,649) (14,855)
Loss on allowance for doubtful @CCOUNTS .......oeviiieee et 3) 2) (18)
TOTAL ettt ettt ettt ettt a s sttt ettt a st sttt s s s senn (545) (2,128) (19,171)

E EXCHANGE DIFFERENCES

Exchange differences recognized as profit or loss for the years ended March 31, 2020 and March 31, 2021 were loss of ¥1,368 million and
loss of ¥1,590 million (U.S.$14,324 thousand), respectively, and are included in “Other operating expenses” in the Consolidated Statement of
Profit or Loss. In addition, each amount includes the profit or loss arising from currency-related derivatives, which were arranged for the
purpose of hedging the foreign currency risk.

Integrated Report 2021

175



FINANCIAL SECTION

FINANCIAL INCOME AND FINANCIAL COSTS

The breakdown of financial income and financial costs was as follows.

Thousands of

Millions of yen U.S. dollars
2020 2021 2021
Financial income
Interest earned
Financial assets measured at amMOrtiZed COSt .....oviiiiiiie et 6,296 4,878 43,945
Financial @ssets Measured at FVTPL .. ..o.ooiieeee oot ee e eeeeeae e 238 508 4,576
Leas@ reCIVADIES ......c.c.iiiiiiicicceec ettt 31 31 279
TOal INTEIEST AINEA ..ottt ettt et e e e e et e e et e e eeeeaeeaeens 6,565 5,418 48,810
Dividends received
Financial assets measured at FVTOCT ..ottt 4,228 3,034 27,333
Total AIVIAENAS FECEIVEA ... ..ot e e e e 4,228 3,034 27,333
Gain arising from change in the fair value of financial instruments (Note)
Financial assets and financial liabilities measured at FVTPL .........c.ccoovoiioieiieeceeeeeeeeee — 53 477
Total gain arising from change in the fair value of financial instruments .. . — 53 477
Total fINANCIAl INCOME ...t enean 10,794 8,506 76,630
Financial costs
Interest expenses
Financial liabilities measured at @mMoOrtized COST .....vvvvirtirieeeee oo (12,766) (10,230) (92,162)
Lease lHabilIIES ......c.oiiveiieiicece et (1,446) (1,278) (11,513)
DIHVATIVES ..ottt ettt e e e e e e e st e et et e et e et et e et e e e eeaaeeaes (330) (40) (360)
Interest expenses CONCEMING ProVISIONS ..........cccooiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiieieieecce e (364) (224) (2,018)
Total INtErest @XPENSES ..o (14,908) (11,774) (106,072)
Loss arising from change in the fair value of financial instruments (Note)
Financial assets and financial liabilities measured at FVTPL ......c.ooiivioiiioeeeeeeeeeeeeeeee . 47) —_ —
Total loss arising from change in the fair value of financial instruments ...........ccccooeverriiieinae (47) — —
Total INANCIAI COSES ..ottt ee et es e eneanean (14,956) (11,774) (106,072)

(Note) “Gain arising from change in the fair value of financial instruments” and “Loss arising from change in the fair value of financial instruments” are respectively included in
“Other financial income” and “Other financial expenses” in the Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss.

Other than the above, net gain or loss arising from change in the fair value of commodity-related derivatives is included in “Sales of
goods” and “Cost of sales” in the Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss in the net profit of ¥320 million for the year ended March 31,
2020 and in the net loss of ¥606 million (U.S.$5,459 thousand) for the year ended March 31, 2021.

In addition, net gain or loss arising from change in the fair value of currency-related derivatives is included in “Other operating income”
and "Other operating expenses” in the Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss in the net profit of ¥851 million for the year ended March
31, 2020 and in the net loss of ¥2,279 million (U.S.$20,531 thousand) for the year ended March 31, 2021.

m EARNINGS PER SHARE

(1) Basic earnings per share and diluted earnings per share

Yen U.S. dollars
2020 2021 2021
Basic earnings per share 48.91 22.51 0.20
Diluted €arnings Per Share ...........cccccviiiiiiiiiiicceece s 48.91 22.51 0.20
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(2) Bases for calculation of basic earnings per share and diluted earnings per share

Millions of yen

Thousands of
U.S. dollars

2020 2021 2021
Profit used to calculate basic and diluted earnings per share

Profit for the year, attributable to owners of the parent ............cccoccviniininiiniccccnes 60,821 27,001 243,252
Amount not attributable to ordinary shareholders of the parent ..o — — —
Profit used to calculate basic earnings per share ... 60,821 27,001 243,252

Profit adjustment amount
Adjustment amount concerning share options to be issued by associates ...................... — — —
Profit used to calculate diluted earnings per share ..o 60,821 27,001 243,252

Thousands of shares

2020 2021
Weighted average number of ordinary shares to be used to calculate basic
and diluted earnings per share
Weighted average number of ordinary shares used to calculate basic earnings per share ....... 1,243,634 1,199,760
Effects of dilutive potential ordinary shares ............c.cccoiiiiniiniiniiiiccececececes — —
Weighted average number of ordinary shares used to calculate diluted eamings per share ...... 1,243,634 1,199,760
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E OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

The reclassification adjustment amounts and tax effect amounts for the breakdown of each item of other comprehensive income were as

follows.
Millons of yen i
2020 2021 2021
Financial assets measured at FVTOCI
Amount arising during the year (27,805) 16,716 150,594
Amount before INCOME tax ©FfQCE .......ov i (27,805) 16,716 150,594
[NCOME TaX EFFECE .o ettt 5,869 (3,256) (29,333)
Financial assets measured at FVTOCI .........c.ooviiiiiieeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeee e (21,936) 13,460 121,261
Remeasurements of defined benefit pension plans
Amount arising during the YEar ........c.cceiiiiiiiiiiceeceeee ettt 617) 589 5,306
Amount before iINComMe tax @ffECt ........cooi i 617) 589 5,306
INCOME 1aX EIFECE ..ottt enas 181 (146) (1,315)
Remeasurements of defined benefit pension plans ... (435) 442 3,981
Share of other comprehensive income of investments accounted for using
the equity method that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
Amount arising during the YEaI ..........ccccciiiiiiiiiiiiieiei ettt (9,422) 2,949 26,567
Amount before INComMe tax effECt ...........ooiiiiioieieeeee e (9,422) 2,949 26,567
Income tax effect 3,690 (966) (8,702)

Share of other comprehensive income of investments accounted for using
the equity METNOT ......c.iiiiiiiiic s (5,731) 1,982 17,855

Exchange translation differences for foreign operations

Amount arising during the year (22,324) 18,294 164,810
Reclassification adjuStMENt @MOUNT .....c.euviiiiririirieieieieeeteeeee st sesenenes (2,330) (792) (7,135)
Amount before INCome tax effECt ........c.oviiiieeeee e (24,654) 17,502 157,675
INCOME TaX EFFECT ...ttt ettt s s enenenens 136 88 792
Exchange translation differences for foreign operations ............ccccccccvviiiiiiiiiiiiiiics (24,518) 17,590 158,468
Cash flow hedges
Amount arising during the YEaI ..........ccccciiiiiiiiiiiiceieie ettt 4,771) 7,260 65,405
Reclassification adjuStment @MOUNT .........c.oiiiiiiieiriiieieieiei ettt 3,568 (520) (4,684)
Amount before INComMe tax effECt ...........ooviiiioiiieeeeeeeee e (1,202) 6,739 60,711
Income tax effect . 110 (1,924) (17,333)
Cash floW NEAGES .....o.iuiiiiii e (1,092) 4,815 43,378
Share of other comprehensive income of investments accounted for using
the equity method that may be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss
Amount arising during the year (14,569) (4,347) (39,162)
Reclassification adjuStMENt @MOUNT .....c.euvuiiiiiiirieieieieieeeeee sttt es s ss e esesesesenenes (120) 80 720
Amount before iINCome tax €ffECt ........c.oviiiiieeeeeeeeeeeeeeee s (14,689) (4,266) (38,432)
INCOME AX EIFECE ..ottt e e n s ens 1,468 (474) (4,270)
Share of other comprehensive income of investments accounted for using
the equity METNOM ......c.oiiiiiiiiic e (13,220) (4,741) 42,711)
Total other comprehensive income for the Year ... (66,934) 33,549 302,243
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CASH FLOW INFORMATION

(1) Cash and cash equivalents

The breakdown of cash and cash equivalents and its relationship to the amounts presented in the Consolidated Statement of Financial

Position were as follows.

Thousands of

Millions of yen U.S. dollars
2020 2021 2021
Cash on hand and bank deposits except for time deposits with original term of more than
L 012N a2 Yo 011 OO 272,651 287,597 2,590,963
Cash and cash equivalents in the Consolidated Statement of Financial Position ........................ 272,651 287,597 2,590,963
Cash and cash equivalents in the Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows ... 272,651 287,597 2,590,963

(2) Net proceeds from (payments for) acquisition of subsidiaries

The breakdown of main assets and liabilities of subsidiaries at the time control was obtained by the Group, and the relationship between

payments for such acquisition and net payments for or net proceeds from such acquisition, were as follows.

Thousands of

Millions of yen U.S. dollars
2020 2021 2021

Breakdown of assets, at the time the Group obtained control of the subsidiaries

Current assets . 3,490 7,688 69,261

NON-CUITENT GSSES ..ottt e ettt e et e et e e et e e e eaaee e e 5,232 31,378 282,684
Breakdown of liabilities, at the time the Group obtained control of the subsidiaries

CUITENT TADIITHIES ...ttt et et eae e teenseeaeenen 843 3,205 28,873

NON-CUITENT HADITIES ... ettt aeeeae e 510 20,761 187,036

Thousands of

Millions of yen U.S. dollars
2020 2021 2021
Payments for aCQUISITION .........c.c..ciiiiuiuiiiiiicieicicic e (5,819) (10,634) (95,801)
Cash and cash equivalents of assets acquired, at the time the Group obtained control of the
SUBDSIAIATIES ....vveeeeeeeeeeeeeeee ettt a et ea et et et ettt et 1,010 6,284 56,612
Net proceeds from (payments for) acquisition of subsidiaries .............cccceuvivcvcniniiininienn. (4,809) (4,349) (39,180)

(3) Net proceeds from (payments for) sale of subsidiaries

The breakdown of main assets and liabilities of subsidiaries at the time control was lost by the Group, and the relationship between proceeds

from such sale and net proceeds from or net payments for such sale, were as follows.

Thousands of

Millions of yen U.S. dollars
2020 2021 2021

Breakdown of assets, at the time the Group lost control of the subsidiaries

CUITENT @SSEES ...eiuviiiiie ettt ettt et e e et e e et e et e e eae e eaeeeaeeeaeeeaseeenseeesseeseeenseeeaseeesseeseeenneeenneenns 612 13,275 119,594

INON-CUITENT GSSETS ...ttt ettt e et e et e et e e e e ee e et e e eeaaeeeenns 680 118 1,063
Breakdown of liabilities, at the time the Group lost control of the subsidiaries

CUITENT IADIIITIES .o e ettt et e e e e e e e e e saeeens 1,181 10,576 95,279

NON-CUMTENt ADIITHES ...ttt 513 60 540

Thousands of

Millions of yen U.S. dollars
2020 2021 2021
PrOCEEAS FrOM SAIE ... ettt ettt ettt ettt enen 3,408 6,264 56,432
Cash and cash equivalents of assets excluded, at the time the Group lost control of the subsidiaries ...... (156) (273) (2,459)
Net proceeds from (payments for) sale of subsidiaries ............cccccveviiiniiniinicnccecece 3,251 5,990 53,963
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(4) Changes in liabilities arising from financing activities
Changes in liabilities arising from financing activities were as follows:

Millions of yen

Lease
Bonds Borrowings obligations
Balance as of April 1, 2019 89,793 783,527 4511
The impact of changes in accounting PONCIES .........cvvcuriiiiriiiriciicecrc e — — 70,498
Balance as of April 1, 2019 (reViSed) ..........coiiuiiiiniiiiiiciicieicieceececeei et 89,793 783,527 75,010
Changes arising from Cash flOWS ..........cceiiiiiiiiiic e (78) 33,509 (12,747)
Changes in the scope of conSOlIALIoN ..........ccccuiieiiiriiiciiie e — (14,970) (1,843)
Exchange translation differences for foreign operations ..............ccccceviiviiniinicniinceceenes — (1,998) (2,315)
INEW LESES ... ettt eea e e et e et e e e et e ae et eeae e e e e e e en e e e eaeeneas — — 25,863
OIS ettt ettt ettt eea et e et et et e et e ee e ae e 64 3,411 (4,985)
NON-CASN CANGES ...ttt es e e s enes 64 (13,557) 16,719
Balance as of March 31, 2020 89,779 803,479 78,983
Millions of yen
Lease
Bonds Borrowings obligations
Balance as of April 1, 2020 ...........ccoiiiiiiiiiiiiiiieicieeceee e 89,779 803,479 78,983
Changes arising from Cash fOWS ..........cccoeuiiriiiiiiiiic e (70) (93) (14,235)
Changes in the scope of consOlidation .............ccccceiiiiiiiiiiiie e — 13,917 2,611
Exchange translation differences for foreign operations ... — 2,688 3,523
INEW IEASES ... ettt e e ete et e ea e et e ee et e eae e e ete et e e e e e eneeneas — — 11,139
ONEIS .ttt 66 (1,431) (4,783)
NON-CASN CANGES ...ttt ettt e s enes 66 15,174 12,490
Balance as of March 31, 20271 ......oooe oottt eneeneene 89,774 818,559 77,238
Thousands of U.S. dollars
Lease
Bonds Borrowings obligations
Balance as of April 1, 2020 ...........coiiiiiiiiiiiiiecceeceecee s 808,819 7,238,549 711,558
Changes arising from Cash fIOWS .........oiiiiiieeceece e (630) (837) (128,243)
Changes in the scope of consolidation ..............ccceiiiiiiiiiiicece e — 125,378 23,522
Exchange translation differences for foreign operations .............ccccccoviiiiiiiiiiiiiiicce — 24,216 31,738
INEW LEBSES ...ttt ettt ettt et e e et e et et et eneeneeae s et et en e enteneen e s enn e eneens — — 100,351
OFNEIS ettt ettt a ettt h et sea ettt s sttt s et s st ne et enens 594 (12,891) (43,090)
NON-CASN CANGES ...ttt ettt e e s 594 136,702 112,522
Balance as of March 371, 2027 ...ttt 808,774 7,374,405 695,837

EMPLOYEE BENEFITS

(1) Post-employment benefit
1) General outline of retirement benefit plans

The Company has a defined contribution pension plan, a lump-sum payment plan and a prepaid retirement allowance plan as its retirement

benefit plans.

Certain domestic subsidiaries have corporate pension funds and/or lump-sum payment plans that are primarily defined benefit plans.

Certain foreign subsidiaries also have defined benefit plans.

Payments by these plans are calculated using criteria including employee rank and salary level.

In some cases, employees receive severance pay upon retirement.
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2) Defined benefit plan

(a) Net defined benefit liability (asset)

Changes in the net defined benefit liability (asset) for the years ended March 31, 2020 and March 31, 2021 were as follows.

Millions of yen

Present value

of the defined Net defined
benefit Fair value of benefit liability
obligation plan assets (asset)
Balance as of APril 1, 2019 ..o 29,987 (8,234) 21,752
CUITENT SEIVICE COST ..uviiuiiiieiiiite ettt ettt et ettt et e et e te et e eteesteete e st e eseenseeseenseessensesssensesnsennean 1,778 — 1,778
Interest expense (income) 356 (138) 217
Remeasurements of the net defined benefit liability (@Sset) .....cooevveriiieieirceece 728 (111) 617
Past service cost and (gain) loss from settlements ...........ccooerieeiieiiniiieieinccee e 48 — 48
Exchange translation differences for foreign operations ..............cccoieuviririinicinicinicnicnians (600) 65 (534)
Employer contributions to the Plan ..o — (586) (586)
BENETILS PAIA ... (2,130) 363 (1,766)
Business combinations and diSpPosals ............ccceiiiiiiiiiiiiiiccee e 273 — 273
(@) o= 5Tt 4 (4) 0)
Balance as of March 37, 2020 ......c.eooueeeeeeeeeeeeee ettt eee e ee e eae e e e eneeeeeeaeeneens 30,446 (8,647) 21,799
CUITENT SEIVICE COSE 1.vvitieetee et e et e e e et e et e e e e e eteeeesee e e e eaeeeaeeseatesaaeeenaeeeseeeeseseseesreeas 1,893 —_ 1,893
Interest expense (income) 296 (120) 175
Remeasurements of the net defined benefit liability (@SS€t) .....vovoveveirieieieceeceie (354) (233) (588)
Past service cost and (gain) loss from settlements .........ccccovvviiiririririeceeeeee e 5 — 5
Exchange translation differences for foreign operations ..............ccccocoiiiiiiiiiiiiciciicnne 764 (81) 682
Employer contributions to the plan ............cccoiiiiiiiicccece e — (555) (555)
BENETILS PaIA ..o (2,143) 689 (1,454)
Business combinations and diSposals ..............ccceiiiiiiiiiiiiice (366) 2 (364)
ONEIS ettt ettt ettt ettt ettt ettt ne et enennens (89) 105 15
Balance as of March 31, 20271 ... 30,451 (8,840) 21,610
Thousands of U.S. dollars
Present value
of the defined Net defined
benefit Fair value of benefit liability
obligation plan assets (asset)

Balance as of March 37, 2020 .....oc.eeoueoeeeeeeeeeeeeeee ettt eee e e eae e eeaeeeeeeaeeeneens 274,288 (77,900) 196,387
CUITENT SEIVICE COSLE .vvttitetee e e eee e e et e e et e et e e e e e etaeeeae e e e e saeeeaeeeeaeesaaeeeseeeaeeeeseeenseesraeas 17,054 — 17,054
Interest eXPense (INCOME) ..........ciiiiiiiiiiiiiiccee e 2,666 (1,081) 1,576
Remeasurements of the net defined benefit liability (@sset) ......ccovvirievvniciciccece (3,189) (2,099) (5,297)
Past service cost and (gain) loss from settlements 45 — 45
Exchange translation differences for foreign operations ...........c.cccoveviiiiiniiniiiciicnne 6,882 (729) 6,144
Employer contributions to the plan ... — (5,000) (5,000)
BENETILS PAIA ... (19,306) 6,207 (13,099)
Business combinations and diSposals ..............cceuiiiiiiiiiiiicece e (3,297) 18 (3,279)
ONEIS ettt ettt ettt ettt ettt ettt e e enennens (801) 945 135
Balance as of March 31, 20271 ......ovoeieeeeeeeeeeeeeee ettt 274,333 (79,639) 194,684
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(b) Fair value of plan assets

The fair value of plan assets at March 31, 2020 was as follows.

Millions of yen

Plan assets Plan assets
with a quoted  without a quoted
market price in  market price in

an active market an active market

Equity instruments ..o
Debt instruments ..........cc.ccooiviieinnnes
Cash and cash equivalents ................
General accounts of life insurance companies
Others ......cccevviiccicceeeeceeas

46 301
— 6,225
517 —
— 983
— 572
563 8,083

The fair value of plan assets at March 31, 2021 was as follows.

Millions of yen

Plan assets Plan assets
with a quoted  without a quoted
market price in  market price in

an active market an active market

EqQUItY INSETUMENTS ..o e 6 498
DBt INSTIUMENTS ...ttt ettt en e e s s e s eneeneereereenennens — 6,099
Cash and cash qUIVAlENTS ...........cc.ooiiiiiii s 398 —
General accounts of life insurance COMPANIES ...........c.viriiiiiiiniiecc s — 1,080
OFNEIS ettt ettt ettt ettt a sttt st et a sttt n st n ettt se e st — 758
LI 7= PR 404 8,436
Thousands of U.S. dollars
Plan assets Plan assets
with a quoted  without a quoted
market price in - market price in
an active market an active market

EQUItY INSETUMENTS ..o 54 4,486
DIEBT INSTIUMIENTS ...ttt e ea et eae et e ee et eeee e e eaeeeeeaeeneeneeneens — 54,945
Cash and cash eqUIVAlENTS ..........c.ccciiiiiiiiiiiice e 3,585 —
General accounts of life insurance CoMPANIES ...........ccccvueuriciriiiniceeecee e — 9,729
(@1 T TP PROPRPROT — 6,828
L] OSSP 3,639 76,000

(c) Significant actuarial assumption

2020 2021

Discount rate .......cccocevevieieieeneienne 1.2% 1.2%
The expected rate of salary increase 3.0% 3.0%

(d) Sensitivity analysis

Thousands of

Millions of yen U.S. dollars
2020 2021 2021
Increase in the defined benefit obligation with a 50-basis-point decrease
TN THE AISCOUNT FALE ..o ettt et e e e e e e e eeae e e 1,466 1,523 13,720
Decrease in the defined benefit obligation with a 50-basis-point increase
TN e AISCOUNT FATE ..ottt e e e eeae e e e eaeeneens (1,186) (1,146) (10,324)
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(e) Maturity profile for the defined benefit obligation
The weighted average duration of the defined benefit obligation for the years ended March 31, 2020 and March 31, 2021 was 10.7 years
and 10.6 years, respectively.

(f) Expected contribution to the plan for the year ending March 31, 2022
The Group expects to contribute ¥635 million (U.S.$5,720 thousand) to plan assets for the year ending March 31, 2022.

3) Defined contribution plan
Expenses recognized for the defined contribution plan for the years ended March 31, 2020 and March 31, 2021 were ¥1,999 million and
¥2,016 million (U.S.$18,162 thousand), respectively.

4) Multi-employer plans
Expenses recognized for multi-employer defined contribution plans for the years ended March 31, 2020 and March 31, 2021 were ¥17
million and ¥18 million (U.S.$162 thousand), respectively.

(2) Employee benefit expenses
Employee benefit expenses recognized for the years ended March 31, 2020 and March 31, 2021 were ¥112,903 million and ¥106,037 million
(U.S.$955,288 thousand), respectively.

Employee benefit expenses are included in “Cost of sales” and “Selling, general and administration expenses” in the Consolidated
Statement of Profit or Loss.

k¥ DEFERRED TAXES AND INCOME TAX EXPENSES

(1) Deferred taxes
1) Breakdown of deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities
The breakdown of main deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities by cause was as follows.

Thousands of

Millions of yen U.S. dollars
2020 2021 2021

Deferred tax assets
Allowance for doUubtful reCeIVABIES .........ooveeeieeeeeee et 5,995 7,142 64,342
Tax [0SS€S CArTIEA FOMWAIT ...ttt e e eeae e 11,812 13,959 125,756
Other INVESIMENTS ...ttt et e et et e e ae e e eae e e eaeeeeeeeeseeneeneerseaesaeenes 4,797 7,482 67,405
Retirement benefits abIlIHIES .........cioviiiieeeeeee e 5,311 5,341 48,117
DEPIreCiatioN .....cuovieiiiiii s 1,372 1,465 13,198
OFNEIS .ttt ettt st et es sttt et st a et s et et n et n et et n e st n et es et enenenan 25,571 26,792 241,369
Total deferred tax assets ... 54,861 62,185 560,225
Offset with deferred tax 1abilities ..............coooiiioiiie e (47,560) (54,294) (489,135)
Total deferred tax @SSETS, NET .....ooviw ittt 7,300 7,890 71,081

Deferred tax liabilities
DIEPIECIALION ..ot (11,888) (14,668) (132,144)
OhEr INVESTMENTS ..ottt ettt ettt ettt e et et e asesseteesees e s essesseseese et enseneeneas (21,213) (24,575) (221,396)
ONEIS ettt ettt (25,706) (35,521) (320,009)
Total deferred tax abilities .........c.oovioiiiie e (58,808) (74,764) (673,549)
Offset With Aeferred TaX @SSETS .....oueeveeeeeeee oottt et eee et e et et e eee et eeaeeeeeeeeereseene 47,560 54,294 489,135
Total deferred tax liabilities, net .. (11,247) (20,470) (184,414)
Net deferred tax assets ............ (3,946) (12,579) (113,324)

The Company and its wholly owned domestic subsidiaries adopt a consolidated taxation system. For the years ended March 31, 2020, and
March 31, 2021, the Company and some of its subsidiaries recognized tax losses and deferred tax assets for the unused tax losses carried
forward only to the extent that it was probable that they could be used against future taxable profit within rational estimate periods, since
they could recognize taxable profit each period excluding non-ordinary factors. The taxable profit was calculated based on estimations of
increases and decreases of the temporary differences and was approved by the Company’s management. As of March 31, 2020 and March
31,2021, the consolidated taxation group recognized deferred tax assets of ¥7,350 million and ¥7,247 million (U.S.$65,288 thousand),
respectively for the tax losses carried forward.
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2) Contents of changes in deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities
Contents of changes in deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities were as follows.

Thousands of

Millions of yen U.S. dollars
2020 2021 2021
Net deferred tax assets’ balance at beginning of year ...t (13,610) (3,946) (35,549)
The impact of changes in accounting policies 455 — —
Net deferred tax assets’ balance at beginning of year (revised) .........c.cccoeevvniniiinnniccennenes (13,155) (3,946) (35,549)
Deferred taX EXPENSES .......c.vuiuiiiiiiiiiiiieticietieieei ettt s 1,817 2,253 20,297
Income tax concerning other comprehensive iINCOME .........cccoviiviiiniiiiiinicicecececeeees 6,297 (5,239) (47,198)
Change in consolidation SCOPE .......c.iuiuiiiiiiiiiieiieie e (33) (3,665) (33,018)
(43T £ USSRt 1,126 (1,981) (17,846)
Net deferred tax assets’ balance at end of YEar .........coovvreeeieiiress s (3,946) (12,579) (113,324)

3) Deductible temporary differences, unused tax losses carried forward and tax credits carried forward, all for which deferred tax
assets were not recognized

The breakdown of deductible temporary differences, unused tax losses carried forward (by expiry date) and unused tax credits carried

forward (by expiry date), all for which deferred tax assets were not recognized in the Consolidated Statement of Financial Position were as

follows.
Thousands of
Millions of yen U.S. dollars
2020 2021 2021
Deductible temporary differences ..............ccocviiiiiiiiiiicccc s 218,928 184,696 1,663,927
Unused tax losses carried forward
Within one year to the expiry date ...........cociiiiiiiiiieieececeeeee e 1,952 27,429 247,108
Between one and five years to the expiry date ...........cccociviiiiiiiiiiiiiiccecceeees 31,126 9,334 84,090
Over five years to the expiry date ..........cccociiiiiiiiicice e 33,186 58,100 523,423
Total tax 10558 Carried FOMWAIT ........ooviieeeeeeee ettt eaaea 66,265 94,864 854,630

4) Temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries and the like for which deferred tax liabilities were not recognized
The total amounts of temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries and the like for which deferred tax liabilities were not
recognized as of March 31, 2020 and March 31, 2021 were ¥218,995 million and ¥215,121 million (U.S.$ 1,938,027 thousand), respectively.
Because the Group is able to control the timing of the reversal of such temporary differences, and it is probable that such temporary
differences will not be reversed within the foreseeable future, the Group did not recognize deferred tax liabilities with respect to such
temporary differences.
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(2) Income tax expenses
1) Breakdown of income tax expenses
The breakdown of income tax expenses was as follows.

Thousands of

Millions of yen U.S. dollars
2020 2021 2021
CUITENT taX EXPENSES ......oiiiiiiicieie e (12,771) (10,256) (92,396)
Deferred tax expenses
Origination and reversal of temporary differences ............ccccccocviiiniiiiiiiicicii. (563) 5,361 48,297
Assessment of recoverability of deferred tax assets ........coeeeriiieininieeeeeeeeeieae 2,398 (2,995) (26,981)
Change IN TAX FALE ....viiiieteitiiiiee ettt ettt ettt b et e e es (18) (112) (1,009)
Total deferred tax expenses . 1,817 2,253 20,297
Total income tax expenses ....... (10,954) (8,002) (72,090)

The amounts of the benefits arising from previously unrecognized tax losses or temporary differences of a prior period that were used to
reduce current tax expenses for the years ended March 31, 2020 and March 31, 2021 were ¥4,725 million and ¥4,391 million (U.S.$ 39,558

thousand), respectively, and these benefits were included in the current tax expenses.

2) Reconciliation of applicable tax rate in Japan
Reconciliations between the applicable tax rate in Japan and the Group's average effective tax rate were as follows.

2020 2021
Applicable tax rate N JAPAN ..o 30.6% 30.6%
(Reconciliation)
Effects based on assessment of recoverability of deferred tax assets .........c.ccoviieininiiiieiniicceecceeee (3.2)% 8.0%
Effects associated with consolidated elimination of dividend INCOME .......oviovieiieeeeeeeeeee e (1.5)% (1.5)%
Effects from share of profit (loss) of investments accounted for using the equity method ............ccccccvvivicince (9.3)% (10.8)%
Difference in applicable tax rate of foreign subsidianies .............ccccociiiiiiiiiiiiic e (2.8)% (8.3)%
Combined income of specified foreign subsidiaries or the like ... 0.9% 1.0%
Withholding tax in TOr€igN COUNTIIES .....vviveieieeeieiiieieiiiteeeisieie ettt es s e ss s es s eseseseseseneneenes 2.8% 5.0%
Correction Of taX rate rEAUCTION ........ccieiiiiieiiiriiceie ettt ettt 0.0% 0.3%
(3.00% (2.9%
Group's average effective tax Mate ..o 14.5% 21.4%

The applicable tax rate in Japan for the year ended March 31, 2021 was approximately 30.6% based on Japan'’s corporate tax, inhabitant

tax and business tax.
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

(1) Classes of financial instruments
The breakdown of financial instruments per class was as follows.

Thousands of

Millions of yen U.S. dollars
2020 2021 2021
Financial assets
Financial assets measured at amortized cost
Cash and cash equivalents/time dePOSItS ...........ccccoviiiiiiiiiiiiiiicicccc e 280,084 297,656 2,681,585
Trade and Other rECEIVADIES ......oo.vieeeeeee e 560,458 570,763 5,142,009
Other INVESIMENTS .....vieeeee ettt ettt ettt e eeaeene e e e eaeeereenseeteenseeteenseeaeenes — 500 4,504
Total financial assets measured at aMOtIZEA COST ......viuiirerieeeeeeeeeee et 840,543 868,920 7,828,108
Financial assets measured at FVTPL
OthEI INVESTMENTS ..ottt e et e et e et e et e e e e eae e e e eeaeeeeeeesneeea 3,899 7,417 66,819
DEriVatiVe TINANCIAI @SSETS ..eveeeteeee ettt ettt ettt e et et et eeae et eeee et eeee e eeee e s eeaeaanes 5,229 4,738 42,684
Total financial assets MEasUred @t FVTPL ....o.vivioe ettt 9,128 12,155 109,504
Financial assets measured at FVTOCI
Other investments 137,075 149,900 1,350,450
Total financial assets measured at FVTOC! ......oovioe oo e 137,075 149,900 1,350,450
TOtal fINANCIAI @SSETS ...ttt ettt oo e e e e e e eae et eereeeeeseene 986,747 1,030,976 9,288,072
Financial liabilities
Financial liabilities measured at amortized cost
Trade and other payables ..o 491,506 482,114 4,343,369
BONAS AN DOMTOWINGS ....vveveieiiiinisissee et s s esesenenenens 875,660 888,827 8,007,450
Total financial liabilities measured at amortized COSt ......oviviiviieeieeeeeee e 1,367,166 1,370,942 12,350,828
Financial liabilities measured at FVTPL
Derivative financial liabilities 6,021 6,849 61,702
Total financial liabilities measured at FVTPL ........c.cooiiiviieeeeeeeceeeeeeeeeeeeeee e 6,021 6,849 61,702
Total financial labilIties ........ooviieeoee e 1,373,188 1,377,792 12,412,540

(2) Basic policies for risk management of financial instruments

The Group is an integrated trading company engaged in a wide range of business activities on a global basis. Its headquarters includes
business sections that handle merchandising, trading, product manufacturing, services, project planning and management, investments and
financing activities, both domestically and internationally. Such businesses are inherently exposed to various risks. The Group defines and
classifies risks per risk item and manages each of them in accordance with its nature.

(3) Credit risk management
The Group assumes credit risk by extending credit to many domestic and foreign customers through a variety of commercial transactions.
The Group mitigates such credit risk by objectively assigning credit ratings to the customers to which it extends credit based on the
Company’s credit rating system. The Group also controls credit risk by setting rating-based credit limits on a customer-by-customer basis and
enforcing the credit limits thus set. The Group employs other safeguards (e.g., collaterals and guarantees) as warranted by the customer’s
creditworthiness. Additionally, the Group has a system for assessing receivables, in which customers are extracted based on a certain criteria,
then assessed for their creditworthiness. With respect to such selected customers, the Group also checks for existence of any receivables,
protection measures or the like. Through the above, the Group endeavors to more rigorously ascertain credit risk and calculate the allowance
for doubtful accounts for each account receivable. Please note that the Group does not carry any excessive credit risk with respect to any
specified customer.

In regards to derivative transactions, the Group only deals with financial institutions with high credit ratings, as assigned by internationally-
acknowledged rating agencies, so as to minimize the credit risks. The Group also periodically reviews the credit ratings of counterparties to
such derivative transactions and re-evaluates credit limits so as to minimize credit risks based on non-performance by such counterparties.
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1) Maximum exposure to credit risk

Other than guaranteed obligations, the Group’s maximum exposure with respect to credit risks without taking into account any collaterals
held or other credit enhancements is the carrying amount of financial instruments less impairment losses under the Consolidated Statement
of Financial Position. On the other hand, the Group’s maximum exposures to credit risks concerning guaranteed obligations as of March 31,
2020 and March 31, 2021 were ¥45,514 million and ¥47,031 million (U.S.$423,702 thousand), respectively.

2) Increases/decreases in allowance for doubtful accounts and the carrying amount of financial assets
The following shows the carrying amount of trade and other receivables (applying the simplified approach).

2020
Millions of yen
Financial assets other than
credit impaired financial Credit impaired
assets financial assets Total
Trade and other receivables (NOE) ..........ccoveiiiiieeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeee e 469,880 44,648 514,529

(Note) Trade and other receivables applied the simplified approach primarily consist of notes receivable and accounts receivable.

2021
Millions of yen
Financial assets other than
credit impaired financial Credit impaired
assets financial assets Total
Trade and other receivables (NOE) .......c.cocvivuiiiiieiiieceeeeee e 461,292 45,178 506,471
2021

Thousands of U.S. dollars

Financial assets other than

credit impaired financial Credit impaired
assets financial assets Total
Trade and other receivables (Note) 4,155,783 407,009 4,562,801

(Note) Trade and other receivables applied the simplified approach primarily consist of notes receivable and accounts receivable.

The carrying amount of financial assets other than credit impaired financial assets mostly includes receivables from customers/clients whose
internal credit rating is “normal,” whereas the carrying amount of credit impaired financial assets mostly includes customers/clients whose
internal credit rating is “doubtful” or “in bankruptcy or rehabilitation.”

There are no remarkable changes in carrying amount which could impact allowance for doubtful accounts for the years ended March 31,
2020, and March 31, 2021.

The following shows increases/decreases in allowance for doubtful accounts against trade and other receivables applied the simplified

approach.

2020
Millions of yen
Allowance for doubtful
accounts against financial ~ Allowance for doubtful
assets other than credit accounts against credit
impaired financial assets impaired financial assets Total
Balance as of April 1, 2019 based on IFRS 9 ........ccoviiiiiiiiiiiiccccceeceecnes 768 40,555 41,324
Reclassified as allowance for doubtful accounts against credit impaired
FINANCIAI @SSETS ...ttt (4) 4 —
INCIEASE ettt ettt ettt et et e b et eeae e b e e e aeene e e enaenneenee 289 566 855
Decrease (incurred and charged against allowance) ..........cccoevuviiiicininnicciennnne (32) (48) (81)
Decrease (unused amounts revVersed) ...........ccvoveieueeueeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeee oo eee s (27) (174) (201)
Others (INOTE) .....eviviieeieeeeeeeee ettt es et eseannas (25) (1,945) (1,971)
Balance as of March 31, 2020 based on IFRS 9 967 38,957 39,925

(Note) “Others” mostly includes impact from foreign currency translation.
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2021

Millions of yen

Allowance for doubtful

accounts against financial
assets other than credit

Allowance for doubtful
accounts against credit

impaired financial assets  impaired financial assets Total
Balance as of April 1, 2020 based on IFRS 9 ........ccoccciviiiniiiniinicincceciecanns 967 38,957 39,925
Reclassified as allowance for doubtful accounts against credit impaired
FINANCIAI @SSETS ..vieeeieeeeeee e (1) 1 —
Increase 28 211 239
Decrease (incurred and charged against allowance) ...........cccoeeeeeeiirinininenene (4) (390) (394)
Decrease (unused amounts reversed) .........ocoooueiieieeeieeeeeeeeeeeeeee e (229) (39) (268)
OLhErs (NOT) ...ttt ettt et ese s s eneeneene (180) 880 700
Balance as of March 31, 2021 based on IFRS 9.......ccvoviiiiiieeceeeeeeeeeeeeeeeee. 580 39,621 40,201
2021
Thousands of U.S. dollars
Allowance for doubtful
accounts against financial  Allowance for doubtful
assets other than credit accounts against credit
impaired financial assets impaired financial assets Total
Balance as of April 1, 2020 based on IFRS 9 ......c.cccccoiiviiiiniiiicieiccieececeeeaes 8,711 350,963 359,684
Reclassified as allowance for doubtful accounts against credit impaired
FINANCIAI @SSETS .ottt et e e 9) 9 —
oL C=T= T TR 252 1,900 2,153
Decrease (incurred and charged against allowance) (36) (3,513) (3,549)
Decrease (unused amounts revVersed) ...........ocveveeeeeueeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeee oo eneeeeeenes (2,063) (351) (2,414)
OFhErS (INOTE) ...ttt ettt es s e s enseneeneens (1,621) 7,927 6,306
Balance as of March 31, 2021 based on IFRS 9 .....ooovvioeieeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeee 5,225 356,945 362,171
(Note) “Others” mostly includes impact from foreign currency translation.
The following shows the carrying amount for trade and other receivables applied the general approach.
2020
Millions of yen
Fi ial P Financial assets for which allowance for
'P:’.aﬁc'ﬁ SR for doubtful accounts has been measured based
which aflowance Tor on lifetime expected credit loss
doubtful accounts is
measured based on  Financial assets other
12 months expected  than credit impaired Credit impaired
credit loss financial assets financial assets Total
Trade and other receivables (NOte) ........ccovvevvivveveeeeeeeeeeeeeeeen 92,049 — 6,229 98,278
(Note) Trade and other receivables applied the general approach primarily consist of loan receivable.
2021
Millions of yen
Fi ial P Financial assets for which allowance for
;?a}?c'ﬁ EREEE {or doubtful accounts has been measured based
Lol B E S on lifetime expected credit loss
doubtful accounts is
measured based on  Financial assets other
12 months expected  than credit impaired Credit impaired
credit loss financial assets financial assets Total
Trade and other receivables (NOte) .........cccvevviviiieiiiiciceeceeeeeee 109,925 — 5,256 115,182

Integrated Report 2021



2021

Thousands of U.S. dollars

Financial assets for
which allowance for
doubtful accounts is
measured based on
12 months expected

credit loss

Financial assets for which allowance for
doubtful accounts has been measured based
on lifetime expected credit loss

Financial assets other
than credit impaired
financial assets

Credit impaired
financial assets

Total

Trade and other receivables (Note) 990,315 — 47,351 1,037,675

(Note) Trade and other receivables applied the general approach primarily consist of loan receivable.

The carrying amount of financial assets for which allowance for doubtful accounts is measured based on 12 months expected credit loss
includes receivables from customers/clients whose internal credit rating is “normal.”

Among financial assets for which allowance for doubtful accounts has been measured based on lifetime expected credit loss, the carrying
amount of financial assets other than credit impaired financial assets includes receivables from customers/clients whose internal credit rating
is "cautious,” and the carrying amount of credit impaired financial assets includes receivables from customers/clients whose internal credit
rating is “doubtful” or “in bankruptcy or rehabilitation.”

There are no remarkable changes in carrying amount which could impact allowance for doubtful accounts for the year ended March 31,
2020, and March 31, 2021, respectively.

The following shows increases/decreases in allowances for doubtful accounts against trade and other receivables applied the general
approach.

2020
Millions of yen
Allowance for doubtful accounts, measured based on
lifetime expected credit loss
Allowance for
doubtful accounts, Allowance for doubtful
measured based on  accounts against financial  Allowance for doubtful
12 months expected assets other than credit accounts against credit
credit loss impaired financial assets  impaired financial assets Total
Balance as of April 1, 2019 based on IFRS 9 ...........cccco.c. 42 12 6,208 6,263
Reclassified as allowance for doubtful accounts
against financial assets other than credit impaired
fiNANCIAl @SSETS .....viviieiceieeeeeeeee e (0) 0 — —
Reclassified as allowance for doubtful accounts against
credit impaired financial assets ...........cccccocveiiniiinnnnn. = = = =
INCIEASE v 0 — 90 90
Decrease (incurred and charged against provisions)........... (0) — — (0)
Decrease (unused amounts reversed) .........c.cccoceeveeveeveeencans 0) — (0) (0)
Others (NOE) .....vviviieiiieieiieeieeee e (16) (12) (156) (185)
Balance as of March 31, 2020 based on IFRS 9 .................. 24 — 6,142 6,166

(Note) “Others” mostly includes impact from foreign currency translations.
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2021
Millions of yen
Allowance for doubtful accounts, measured based on
lifetime expected credit loss
Allowance for
doubtful accounts, Allowance for doubtful
measured based on  accounts against financial  Allowance for doubtful
12 months expected assets other than credit accounts against credit
credit loss impaired financial assets  impaired financial assets Total
Balance as of April 1, 2020 based on IFRS 9 ...........ccccco.c. 24 — 6,142 6,166
Reclassified as allowance for doubtful accounts
against financial assets other than credit impaired
financial @ssets ......c.ocoioveiieieieeeeeeeee e — — — —
Reclassified as allowance for doubtful accounts against
credit impaired financial assets .............ccccococeiciiicnnnae — — — —
INCIEASE ..ot 0 — 603 603
Decrease (incurred and charged against provisions)........... (5) — (3,579) (3,584)
Decrease (unused amounts reversed) .........c.ococeeveeveevenennns 0) — (9) 9)
Others (NOTE) ........oveeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeee e (5) — 133 128
Balance as of March 31, 2021 based on IFRS 9 .................. 13 — 3,290 3,304
2021
Thousands of U.S. dollars
Allowance for doubtful accounts, measured based on
lifetime expected credit loss
Allowance for
doubtful accounts, Allowance for doubtful
measured based on  accounts against financial  Allowance for doubtful
12 months expected assets other than credit accounts against credit
credit loss impaired financial assets  impaired financial assets Total
Balance as of April 1, 2020 based on IFRS 9 ........ccccccueveeeee 216 — 55,333 55,549
Reclassified as allowance for doubtful accounts
against financial assets other than credit impaired
finaNCial @SSEtS .....vovovoieieieieieieiecc e — — — —
Reclassified as allowance for doubtful accounts against
credit impaired financial assets ..........cc.cccocecvininicnnnn. — — — —
INCIEASE .. 0 — 5,432 5,432
Decrease (incurred and charged against provisions)........... (45) — (32,243) (32,288)
Decrease (unused amounts reversed) .........c.cccocoveeveveeenennen. (0) — (81) (81)
Others (NOT) ......cuooviveiieeieeieeeeieeeee e (45) — 1,198 1,153
Balance as of March 31, 2021 based on IFRS 9 .................. 117 —_ 29,639 29,765

(Note) “Others” mostly includes impact from foreign currency translations.

(4) Liquidity risk management

The Group raises funds through borrowings from financial institutions or issuance of bonds. Accordingly, in the event of a disruption to the
financial system or financial/capital markets or a significant downgrade to the Group’s credit rating by one or more rating agencies, the
Group's ability to raise funds may become more restricted, and consequently the Group may not be able to make payments on debt by the
due date. To provide additional financial flexibility and liquidity, the Group maintains long-term Commitment Lines of ¥120 billion (not used)
and U.S.$1.8 billion (U.S.$610 million used). The Group maintains good relationships with financial institutions, including the counterparties to
these commitment line agreements.

1) Non-derivative financial liabilities
The breakdown of non-derivative financial liabilities by due date was as follows. Lease liabilities are presented in “35 LEASES.”

2020
Millions of yen
Within Between one and Over
one year five years five years Total
Trade and other payables ... 481,318 10,188 — 491,506
Bonds and DOrmoWINGS ......c.c.euiiiiiiieec e 196,784 418,229 318,871 933,886
TOTAL ettt 678,103 428,417 318,871 1,425,393
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2021

Millions of yen

Between one and Over
five years five years Total
Trade and other payables ... 6,568 — 482,114
Bonds and DOMOWINGS ....veveuieiiiiiiiisiese e 373,317 401,320 940,900
TOTAl ettt 379,886 401,320 1,423,014
2021
Thousands of U.S. dollars
Between one Over
and five years five years Total
Trade and other payables ... 59,171 —_ 4,343,369
Bonds and DOrmOWINGS ......c.cueuiiiiiiieeeec e 3,363,216 3,615,495 8,476,576
TOTAl ettt 3,422,396 3,615,495 12,819,945

Other than the above, the guarantees for obligations as March 31, 2020 and March 31, 2021 were ¥45,514 million and ¥47,031 million

(U.S.$423,702 thousand), respectively.

2) Derivatives
The breakdown of derivatives by due date was as follows.

2020
Millions of yen
Between one Over
and five years five years Total
Currency-related derivatives
CaSh INFIOWS ... 10,395 — 294,892
CaSh OULTIOWS ... (11,051) — (295,414)
SUBLOTA .o (655) — (522)
Interest rate-related AeriVatiVES ..........c.ccociiiioeeoeieeeeeeeeeeeeeee et (466) (97) (728)
Commodity-related deriVatives .............cceueriiieiiininiiieieere e — — 452
TOTAI et (1,121) (97) (798)
2021
Millions of yen
Between one Over
and five years five years Total
Currency-related derivatives
CaSH INTIOWS ..ottt et e e ee e 7,490 — 257,514
CaSh OULTIOWS ...ttt e e ee e (6,797) — (258,149)
SUBLOTAL . 693 — (634)
Interest rate-related deriVatiVES ...........ooovieieee et (175) (354) (760)
Commodity-related deriVativES .........cooviririririrrieeieeieeeeeee e — — (853)
TOMAI ettt 517 (354) (2,249)
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2021
Thousands of U.S. dollars
Within Between one Over
one year and five years five years Total
Currency-related derivatives
CaSh INFIOWS ...eeeeeeeeeeeeeee e 2,252,459 67,477 — 2,319,945
Cash OULTIOWS .....veieiiciiecieee ettt (2,264,423) (61,234) — (2,325,666)
SUBTOTAl i (11,963) 6,243 — (5,711)
Interest rate-related derivativVes ............ccocoeuieveieieieeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeee e (2,072) (1,576) (3,189) (6,846)
Commodity-related derivativeSs .........ccoeiriririririrreieieieieeee st (7,684) — — (7,684)
TOTAN ettt ettt (21,729) 4,657 (3,189) (20,261)

(5) Market risk management

The Group is exposed to market risks, such as exchange rate fluctuation risk associated with transactions denominated in foreign currencies
in connection with international trade or business investments, interest rate fluctuation risk associated with financing, investments or the like,
commodity price fluctuation risk associated with purchase and sale agreements/commodity inventories arising from operating activities and
price fluctuation risk associated with the ownership of listed securities (i.e., stock price fluctuation risk). The Group's basic policy is to minimize
such market risks by matching assets and liabilities (e.g., long and short commodity exposures) and through hedge transactions, such as
forward exchange transactions, commodity futures/forward transactions and interest rate swaps.

1) Exchange rate fluctuation risk
(a) Content of, and policy for managing, exchange rate fluctuation risk
The Group engages in import and export transactions and offshore transactions, both denominated in foreign currencies, as its principal
business activity. Whereas the revenues and expenditures associated with such transactions are mainly received/paid out in foreign
currencies, the Group's consolidated reporting currency is Japanese yen. The Group is, therefore, exposed to the risk of fluctuations in the
yen's value against foreign currencies. To prevent or limit losses stemming from such risk, the Group hedges its foreign currency exposure
through forward exchange transactions or the like.

(b) Sensitivity analysis of exchange rate fluctuation risk
In regards to financial instruments held by the Group as of the end of the consolidated year, the following chart shows the amounts
affecting profit before tax and other comprehensive income (before tax effect adjustments), as reported in the Consolidated Financial
Statements, that would result from 1% appreciation of yen against each of the U.S. dollar and Australian dollar. Such analysis is based on
the assumption that other factors remain constant.

In addition, such analysis does not include the affected amounts based on translations (into Japanese yen) of financial instruments
denominated in functional currency, income and expenses denominated in foreign currency and assets and liabilities of foreign operations.

Thousands of

Millions of yen U.S. dollars
2020 2021 2021
Profit before tax
ULS. OMIAI ettt 387 330 2,972
Australian dollar 13 65 585
Other comprehensive income
ULS. OIIAE ettt 8) 95 855
AUSTFAIAN AOIAT .ottt ettt 42) (16) (144)

2) Interest rate fluctuation risk
(a) Content of and policy for managing interest rate fluctuation risk
The Group raises funds by borrowing from financial institutions and issuing bonds to acquire fixed assets, invest in securities, and extend
credit (e.g., through trade receivables). Asset and liability items are categorized based on whether or not they are sensitive to interest rate
changes, with the difference between the value of sensitive assets and sensitive liabilities used to determine an interest rate mismatch
value. Based on this amount, the ratios of funds procured from fixed-rate sources and variable-rate sources are adjusted to better manage
interest rate fluctuation risks.

(b) Sensitivity analysis of interest rate fluctuation risk

In regards to financial instruments held by the Group as of the end of the consolidated year, the following chart shows the amount
affecting profit before tax, as reported in the Consolidated Financial Statements, in the case that the interest rate increases by 1%. Such
analysis is based on the assumption that other factors remain constant.
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Under such analysis, the amount affecting profit before tax is calculated by multiplying the net balance of the financial instruments
affected by the interest rate fluctuation at the fiscal year-end by 1%. Please note that other than financial instruments with floating rates
(excluding those that are considered to be financial instruments with fixed rates in substance due to interest rate swaps), the Group deals
with, among others, the following financial instruments that are also affected by interest rate fluctuations: cash and cash equivalents; trade
notes and accounts receivable; and, trade notes and accounts payable.

Thousands of

Millions of yen U.S. dollars
2020 2021 2021
PrOfit DEIOIE TAX ...viuvvieiiet ettt ettt ettt (491) (46) (414)

3) Commodity price fluctuation risk
(a) Content of, and policies for managing, commodity price fluctuation risk
As a general trading company, the Group deals in a wide range of commodities through its various businesses. As such, the Group is
exposed to commodity price risk due to price fluctuations or the like. For market-traded commodities, the Group manages exposures and
controls losses by setting (long and short) position limits and stop-loss levels per internal organizational unit. The Group also prescribes
and enforces stop-loss rules (i.e., an internal organizational unit must prompitly liquidate losing positions and be prohibited from initiating
new trades for the remainder of the fiscal year if losses, including valuation losses, exceed the stop-loss level). With respect to commodity
inventories, the Group implements measures, such as monthly monitoring by business or the like, in order to control inventory levels.

(b) Sensitivity analysis of commodity price fluctuation risk

In regards to derivatives related to commodity held by the Group as of the end of the consolidated year, the following chart shows the
amounts affecting profit before tax and other comprehensive income (before tax effect adjustments), as reported in the Consolidated
Financial Statements, in the case that the commodity price decreases by 1%. Such analysis is based on the assumption that other factors
remain constant.

Thousands of

Millions of yen U.S. dollars
2020 2021 2021

Profit before tax

Metals & Coal .....cuoiiiiiiiiiiii e (190) (131) (1,180)

OIS ettt 0 0 0

FOOTS .ttt 3) (10) (90)
Other comprehensive income

MEtals & COAI ... 10 15 135

4) Stock price fluctuation risk
(a) Content of, and policies for managing, stock price fluctuation risk
The Group maintains holdings of marketable securities, and these securities are subject to stock price fluctuation risk. To manage the risk,
the Group tracks trends in stocks prices and the financial position of issuers, and holdings of stock in listed companies are reviewed
annually to determine the meaningfulness of each holding. Moreover, the Group is progressively selling holdings of stock in listed
companies from the perspective of capital efficiency.

(b) Sensitivity analysis of stock price fluctuation risk

In regards to listed stocks held by the Group as of the end of the consolidated year, the following chart shows the amounts affecting other
comprehensive income (before tax effect adjustments), as reported in the Consolidated Financial Statements, in the case that prices of
such listed stocks decrease by 1%. Such analysis is based on the assumption that other factors remain constant.

Thousands of

Millions of yen U.S. dollars
2020 2021 2021
Other comprehensive INCOME .........c.oiiiiiiiiiiiieieicieee e (784) (919) (8,279)

(6) Fair values of financial instruments
The fair values of financial instruments were as follows.

As set forth under “2 BASIS OF PRESENTATION (4) Use of estimates and judgments,” fair values are categorized into three levels in a fair
value hierarchy based on the inputs used in the valuation techniques.
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1) Financial assets and liabilities measured at amortized cost

Millions of yen Thousands of U.S. dollars
2020 2021 2021
Fair Fair Fair
Carrying amount value Carrying amount value Carrying amount value
Financial assets
Trade and other receivables
Trade notes and accounts receivable ..........cc.ccccoeven..... 430,430 430,383 436,231 436,216 3,930,009 3,929,873
TOTAl e 430,430 430,383 436,231 436,216 3,930,009 3,929,873
Financial liabilities
Trade and other payables
Trade notes and accounts payable ... 382,151 382,151 392,067 392,067 3,532,135 3,532,135
Bonds and borrowings
Bonds payable (including current portion) .................... 89,779 90,661 89,774 90,473 808,774 815,072
Long-term loans (including current portion) . 675,205 678,582 714,401 717,629 6,436,045 6,465,126
TOtAl e 1,147,135 1,151,395 1,196,243 1,200,170 10,776,963 10,812,342

The fair values stated above are calculated as follows.

(a) Trade notes and accounts receivable
Each receivable is categorized by period, and its fair value is the present value of future cash flows discounted by an interest rate that
reflects time to maturity and credit risk.

(b) Trade notes and accounts payable
Each payable is categorized by period, and its fair value is the present value of future cash flows discounted by an interest rate that reflects
time to maturity and credit risk.

(c) Bonds and borrowings
The fair value of bonds payable is the market price when available.

The fair value of long-term loans is the present value of total principal and interest discounted using an assumed interest rate on
equivalent new borrowings.

Financial assets and liabilities measured at amortized cost are categorized within fair value hierarchy Level 2.

2) Financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value

1. Analysis of fair value by hierarchy level

The following tables provide analysis by level reflecting the significance of inputs used when measuring fair value for financial assets and
financial liabilities in the Consolidated Statement of Financial Position that are measured at fair value. No financial assets and liabilities were
measured at fair value on a non-recurring basis.

2020
Millions of yen
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Recurring fair value measurements
Financial assets
Other investments
Financial assets measured at FVTPL ......c.oooiiiiiiiiiieeceeceeeeeeeeeeeeeeee e — 335 3,563 3,899
Financial assets measured at FVTOC .....c.ovveoe oot 83,455 — 53,620 137,075
Derivative fINANCIAl @SSETS «...vveveeeeeee ettt e e enene 981 4,247 — 5,229
TOTAl ettt nenn 84,437 4,582 57,184 146,204
Financial liabilities
Derivative financial [iabilities ...........c.ocooeoiiiiieeeeeee e (784) (5,237) — (6,021)
TOTAl ettt (784) (5,237) — (6,021)
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2021

Millions of yen

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Recurring fair value measurements
Financial assets
Other investments
Financial assets measured at FVTPL .....oc.oiiiiioeece e — 290 7,126 7,417
Financial assets measured at FVTOC .........ooviiiiiiioiiieceeeeeeeeeeeeeeeee e 98,469 221 51,209 149,900
Derivative financial assets and [abIlIHES ....ovveveeeeeeeeee et 129 4,608 —_ 4,738
TOTAl oottt nenn 98,599 5,120 58,335 162,055
Financial liabilities
Derivative financial 1abilitIes ........o.vooeeoeeeeee e (600) (6,249) — (6,849)
TOTA ettt nenn (600) (6,249) — (6,849)
2021
Thousands of U.S. dollars
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Recurring fair value measurements
Financial assets
Other investments
Financial assets measured at FVTPL ... . — 2,612 64,198 66,819
Financial assets measured at FVTOC ........oovioeeeeee e 887,108 1,990 461,342 1,350,450
Derivative financial assets and liabilities ...........c.ccoovievievieiecieieeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeene 1,162 41,513 — 42,684
TOTAl ettt 888,279 46,126 525,540 1,459,954
Financial liabilities
Derivative financial [i@bilities .............ccooieiiiiii e (5,405) (56,297) — (61,702)
TOTAl ettt nean (5,405) (56,297) — (61,702)

The fair values stated above are calculated as follows.

(a) Other investments

The fair value of listed shares is the quoted price on an exchange, and is categorized within fair value hierarchy Level 1. The fair value of
unlisted shares is calculated using valuation methods including discounted future cash flow, market prices of comparable companies, net
asset value, and other valuation methods, and is categorized within fair value hierarchy Level 3. Measuring the fair value of unlisted shares
involves the use of unobservable inputs such as discount rate and valuation multiples, as well as any necessary adjustments including
discounts for a lack of liquidity or a non-controlling interest. The Group's corporate departments determine the policies and procedures for
measuring the fair value of unlisted shares, and validate their approach to measuring fair value, including the valuation model, by
periodically confirming issues such as the operating circumstances associated with particular equities, the availability of relevant business
plans, and data from comparable public companies.

(b) Derivative financial assets and liabilities

Currency-related derivatives

The fair values of foreign exchange transactions, spot/forward transactions, currency option transactions and currency swap transactions
are calculated based on the forward exchange rate as of the closing date.

Interest rate-related derivatives

The fair value of interest-rate swaps is the present value of future cash flow discounted by an interest rate that reflects time to settlement
and credit risk.

Commodity-related derivatives
The fair value of commodity futures transactions is calculated using final prices on commodities exchanges as of the fiscal year-end. The

fair values of commodity forward transactions, commodity option transactions and commodity swap transactions are calculated based on
the index prices publicly announced at the fiscal year-end.

Commodity futures transactions are categorized within fair value hierarchy Level 1. All other derivative financial assets and liabilities are
categorized within fair value hierarchy Level 2.
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2. Recurring fair value measurements categorized within fair value hierarchy Level 3
The increases/decreases in financial assets and liabilities that are measured at fair value on a recurring basis and are categorized within fair
value hierarchy Level 3 were as follows.

Millions of yen Thousands of U.S. dollars
2020 2021 2021
Other investments Other investments Other investments
Financial Financial Financial
assets Financial assets assets Financial assets assets Financial assets
measured at ~ measured at measured at  measured at measured at  measured at
FVTPL FVTOCI Total FVTPL FVTOCI Total FVTPL FVTOCI Total
Balance at beginning of year .. 3,334 57,045 60,380 3,563 53,620 57,184 32,099 483,063 515,171
Total gains or losses
Profit or loss ....cccocevvviiennine (52) — (52) 56 — 56 504 — 504
Other comprehensive income ... — (192) (192) — (4,174) (4,174) — (37,603) (37,603)
Purchases ......ccccoovvvvnncinee 218 2,198 2,417 3,531 3,286 6,818 31,810 29,603 61,423
Disposals and settlements ...... (0) (1,804) (1,804) — (1,566) (1,566) — (14,108)  (14,108)
Others ....ccvveeiccnn. 64 (3,626) (3,562) (25) 42 16 (225) 378 144
Balance at end of year .... 3,563 53,620 57,184 7,126 51,209 58,335 64,198 461,342 525,540

Gains or losses recognized as profit or loss are included in “Other financial income” and “Other financial costs” in the Consolidated
Statement of Profit or Loss. Total gains or losses recognized as profit or loss included losses of ¥52 million and profits of ¥56 million (U.S.$504
thousand) on financial instruments held as of the years ended March 31, 2020 and March 31, 2021, respectively.

Losses recognized in other comprehensive income are included in “Financial assets measured at FVTOCI" in the Consolidated Statement
of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income.

For the year ended March 31, 2020, the “Others"” category under “Financial assets measured at FVTOCI” mainly includes the change in
category from “Other investments” to “Investments accounted for using the equity method” due to the change in purpose of possession in
the LNG terminal business.

(7) Financial assets measured at FVTOCI
With respect to investments made in equity instruments held for the purpose of maintaining and strengthening relationships with business
partners, the Group has designated such investments as financial assets measured at FVTOCI in consideration of such purpose.

1) Fair values per name (of investment)

The fair values per name of the main investments made in equity instruments designated as financial assets measured at FVTOCI were as
follows.

2020
Millions of yen
Name of investment Amount

Kansai Paint Co., Ltd. 9,556
NHK SPRING CO., LTD. 9,345
Yamazaki Baking Co., Ltd. 5,414
NIPPON REIT Investment Corporation 4,944
ANA HOLDINGS INC. 3,730
Japan Airport Terminal Co., Ltd. 3,527
Showa Sangyo Co., Ltd. 3,210
Nisshin Seifun Group Inc. 3,196
Tokuyama Corporation 2,712
FUJIFILM Holdings Corporation 2,388
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2021

Millions of yen Thousands of U.S. dollars
Name of investment Amount Amount

Kansai Paint Co., Ltd. 13,731 123,702
NHK SPRING CO., LTD. 10,955 98,693
NIPPON REIT Investment Corporation 6,548 58,990
Japan Airport Terminal Co., Ltd. 4,596 41,405
Yamazaki Baking Co., Ltd. 4,291 38,657
ANA HOLDINGS INC. 3,635 32,747
Tokuyama Corporation 3,622 32,630
Nisshin Seifun Group Inc. 3,281 29,558
Braskem S.A. 3,206 28,882
Showa Sangyo Co., Ltd. 3,105 27,972

2) Dividends received

Thousands of

Millions of yen U.S. dollars
2020 2021 2021
Investments derecognized during the Year .............cccccuiiiiiiiiiiiiiiicce e 38 66 594
Investments held at the end of the Year .........ccccoviiiii s 4,190 2,968 26,738
TOTAI e 4,228 3,034 27,333

3) Financial assets measured at FVTOCI that were derecognized during the year

The Group disposes of financial assets measured at FVTOCI as a result of periodic reviews of portfolios and for the purpose of managing or
the like of risk assets. The fair values of such financial assets at the dates of the sales transactions and the cumulative gains (before taxes)
concerning such sales were as follows.

Thousands of

Millions of yen U.S. dollars
2020 2021 2021
Fair value at the date OF SAlE . ..ooviieeeeeeeee ettt 2,160 7,656 68,972
CUMUIBTIVE GAINS ..ttt ettt ettt 697 3,459 31,162

4) Reclassification to retained earnings

The Group reclassifies to retained earnings cumulative gains or losses arising from changes in the fair values of financial assets measured at
FVTOCI in either of the following cases: when an investment is disposed of; and, when there is a significant decline in the fair value. Such
cumulative other comprehensive income totals (net of taxes) that were reclassified to retained earnings for the years ended March 31, 2020
and March 31, 2021 were losses of ¥6,812 million and gains of ¥4,208 million (U.S.$37,909 thousand), respectively.

(8) Hedge accounting

The Group endeavors to minimize market risk using hedging transactions, including forward exchange contract transactions, commodity
futures and commodity forwards, and interest rate swaps. Risk management policies for each risk exposure can be found under (5) — Market
risk management.

When initiating a hedge, the Group designates and documents the risk management purposes and strategies regarding the hedge
relationship and initiation of such hedge. Such documentation includes the designation of the hedging instrument, the hedged item or
transaction, the nature of the risk being hedged and methods of assessing the hedging instrument’s effectiveness in offsetting the exposure
to changes in the hedged item’s fair value or cash flows attributable to the hedged risk. In order to determine whether these hedges were
actually effective at the start of hedging and throughout the reporting period for which such hedging was designated, the Group confirms
the economic relationship between the hedged item and the hedging instrument through a qualitative analysis whether the critical terms of
the hedged item and hedging instrument match up or closely correspond, and quantitative analysis whether the value of the hedged item
and hedging instrument mutually offsets any fluctuations in price caused by the same risk the hedged item and hedging instrument seek to
hedge.

The Group sets an appropriate hedging ratio when initiating a hedge, in accordance with the number of items to be hedged and available
hedging instruments. As a general rule, the company matches one hedging instrument to each item to be hedged. If the hedging
relationship is deemed ineffective but the purpose of risk management is not changed, this ratio of hedging instruments to hedged items will
be readjusted to make the hedging relationship effective. There is no materiality to the impact of the hedging portion deemed ineffective on
hedging relationships, including impact from credit risk.

When the Group targets a specific risk element for hedging, determined using the risk management strategy for each risk category, the
Group selects those risk elements which comprise a structural element of the total hedging and which can be examined separately from the
whole and used to reliably measure fluctuations in cash flow and fair value in response to changes in those risk elements.
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1) Types of hedge accounting

(a) Fair value hedges
A fair value hedge is a hedge of exposure to changes in the fair value of a recognized asset or liability or an unrecognized firm
commitment. The Group designates commodity futures and forwards contracts as hedging instruments to hedge the changes in fair
values of firm commitments or inventories.

With respect to a fair value hedge, gains or losses from remeasuring the hedging instrument at fair value are recognized as profit or
loss, and gains or losses on hedged items attributable to hedged risks are also recognized as profit or loss.

The Group uses fluctuations in the value of hedged items as the basis for recognizing the amount for which hedging was ineffective.
For the years ended March 31, 2020, and March 31,2021, these fluctuations were largely in line with changes in the fair value of hedging
instruments, and there was no materiality in the ineffective hedging portion recognized as profit or loss.

(b) Cash flow hedges

A cash flow hedge is a hedge of exposure to variability in cash flows that is attributable to a particular risk associated with a recognized
asset or liability or a scheduled transaction that is most likely to occur. The Group designates interest rate swaps as hedging instruments to
hedge the variability of cash flows relating to floating-rate borrowings and designates forward exchange transactions as hedging
instruments to hedge the variability of cash flows concerning firm commitments in foreign currency.

With respect to a cash flow hedge, the portions of the gains or losses on the hedging instruments that are determined to be effective
hedges are recognized as other comprehensive income.

The Group uses fluctuations in the value of hedged items as the basis for recognizing the amount for which hedging was ineffective.
For the years ended March 31, 2020, and March 31, 2021, these fluctuations were largely in line with changes to the fair value of hedging
instruments, and there was no materiality in the ineffective hedging portion recognized as profit or loss. Furthermore, there was no
materiality in the amount transferred from other components of equity to profit or loss, since forecast transactions were not anticipated.

(c) Hedges of net investments in foreign operations
The Group designates forward exchange transactions and foreign currency borrowings as hedging instruments to hedge the risk of
change in exchange rate concerning net investments in foreign operations.

With respect to a hedge of net investments in foreign operations, the portions of the gains or losses on the hedging instruments that
are determined to be effective hedges are recognized as other comprehensive income.

The Group uses fluctuations in the value of hedged items as the basis for recognizing the amount for which hedging was ineffective.
For the years ended March 31, 2020, and March 31, 2021, these fluctuations were largely in line with changes to the fair value of hedging
instruments, and there was no materiality in the ineffective hedging portion recognized as profit or loss.

2) Impact of hedges on the Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

The following shows the carrying amount of hedging instruments by the type of hedge accounting applied.

Millions of yen Thousands of U.S. dollars
2020 2021 2021
Hedging instruments Assets Liabilities(-) Assets Liabilities(-) Assets Liabilities(-)

Fair value hedges

Currency-related derivatives 23 — — (25) — (225)

Commodity-related derivatives ..........cccoceeviririririeirininnnn. 663 (214) 123 (300) 1,108 (2,702)
Total fair value hedges .......oovvvvvrirrreeeeeeeeeeeeee 686 (214) 123 (326) 1,108 (2,936)
Cash flow hedges

Currency-related derivatives ...........cccoeeeeeiririreneeeeeens 1,077 (2,477) 2,598 (1,006) 23,405 (9,063)

Interest rate-related derivatives ...........cccceeveveieeevecvennnen. 108 (830) 76 (698) 684 (6,288)

Commodity-related derivatives ..........cccoceeeerinirininieinenn 131 — — (247) — (2,225)
Total cash flow hedges .......cooiuerriiiceiece 1,317 (3,307) 2,674 (1,952) 24,090 (17,585)
Total hedges of net investments in foreign operations ........ 93 (123) 238 (163) 2,144 (1,468)
TOUAI e 2,907 (3,645) 3,037 (2,441) 27,360 (21,990)

The derivative contracts above were recorded on the Consolidated Statement of Financial Position as either “derivative financial assets” or
“derivative financial liabilities.” In addition, the Group recorded loan payables in foreign currency, designated for hedging using cash flow
hedges and hedges of net investment, as ¥4,309 million and ¥3,397 million (U.S.$30,603 thousand) in the years ended March 31, 2020 and
March 31, 2021, respectively. These were recorded as “corporate bonds and loans payable” on the Consolidated Statement of Financial
Position.
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The following shows the notional amount and average price of the main hedging instruments.

2020
Hedging instruments Description Type Notional amount and average price
Notional amount (millions USD) 180
Export -
Average price (USD/JPY) 109.57
Forward exchanges in USD
| Notional amount (millions USD) 246
mport
Cash flow hedges P Average price (USD/JPY) 109.55
Interest rate swap
received/fixed rate paid for — Notional amount (millions JPY) 27,714

interest rate swaps

Forward exchanges in USD contracts mature primarily within one year from the end of the current consolidated fiscal year. And the amount of
the notional amount of interest rate swap contracts maturing is, within one year from the end of the current fiscal year, in less than five years
from one year and five years of the period, each ¥5,000 million, ¥6,500 million and ¥16,214 million.

2021
Hedging instruments Description Type Notional amount and average price
Notional amount (millions USD) 150
Export -
) Average price (USD/JPY) 110.75
Forward exchanges in USD
| Notional amount (millions USD) 206
mport
Cash flow hedges P Average price (USD/JPY) 110.67

Interest rate swap
received/fixed rate paid for —
interest rate swaps

Notional amount (millions JPY) 22,835

Forward exchanges in USD contracts mature primarily within one year from the end of the current consolidated fiscal year. And the amount of
the notional amount of interest rate swap contracts maturing is, within one year from the end of the current fiscal year, in less than five years
from one year and five years of the period, each ¥2,500 million (U.S.$22,522 thousand), ¥4,120 million (U.S.$37,117 thousand) and ¥16,215
million (U.S.$146,081 thousand).

The following shows the cumulative hedging adjustment to carrying value and fair value of hedged items categorized under “fair value
hedges”

2020
Millions of yen
Cumulative adjustment to Main items on the
Carrying amounts fair value hedges Consolidated Statement of
Financial Position used to
Assets Liabilities (-) Assets Liabilities (-) present adjustment

Currency-related ... 618 — — (23) (Note1)
Commodity-related .........cccovviriiecnniiiecrecene 4,430 (219) 169 (922) (Note2)

(Note1) “Other investments”
(Note2) “Inventories”, “Derivative financial assets” and “Derivative financial liabilities”

2021
Millions of yen
Cumulative adjustment to Main items on the
Carrying amounts fair value hedges Consolidated Statement of
Financial Position used to
Assets Liabilities (-) Assets Liabilities (-) present adjustment

Currency-related ... 876 — (25) — (Note1)
Commodity-related .........coovreeeiceceerreeeeeee 4,460 (123) 314 (123) (Note2)
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2021
Thousands of U.S. dollars
Cumulative adjustment to Main items on the
Carrying amounts fair value hedges Consolidated Statement of
Financial Position used to
Assets Liabilities (-) Assets Liabilities (-) present adjustment
Currency-related ........ccooiiviniiiercceeseees 7,891 — (225) — (Note1)
Commodity-related ........ccccovvriieeniniiicicsnccene 40,180 (1,108) 2,828 (1,108) (Note2)

(Note1) “Other investments”
(Note2) “Inventories”, “Other current assets” and "“Other current liabilities”

The following shows the amount recorded for other equity components related to cash flow hedges and hedges of net investments in foreign

operations.
2020
Millions of yen
Amount recorded for the Amount recorded for the
portion of other equity portion of other equity
components for which hedge components for which hedge
accounting is ongoing accounting is not ongoing
Cash flow hedges
CUIMENCY-TEIATEA ...ttt (1,437) 318
Interest rate-related ............cooooioiiiiiieeeeeeeeee e (5,498) —
ComMMOAity-relIated .......eoveeieieieieieicieieiee et 131 (223)
Total cash flow hedges ... (6,804) 95
Total hedges of net investments in foreign operations .. 61 (8,476)

2021
Millions of yen
Amount recorded for the Amount recorded for the
portion of other equity portion of other equity
components for which hedge components for which hedge
accounting is ongoing accounting is not ongoing
Cash flow hedges
CUIMENCY-TEIATEA ....viiieieiiiee ettt 3,568 —_
INterest rate-related .........c.ooooioiiiiiee e (7,599) —
Commodity-related (99) —
Total cash flow hedges ........oviiiiiiiiie s (4,130) —
Total hedges of net investments in foreign operations ...........ccccccoceiiinieicicnnne (43) (8,740)
2021
Thousands of U.S. dollars
Amount recorded for the Amount recorded for the
portion of other equity portion of other equity
components for which hedge components  for which hedge
accounting is ongoing accounting is not ongoing
Cash flow hedges
CUIMENCY-TEIATEA ....vitiiiiiiie ettt 32,144 —_
INterest rate-related ...........oociiiiiiiece e (68,459) —
ComMMOAity-related .......oovoieireeieieieieieieiee ettt (891) —
Total cash flow hedges ........ovieuiiiiiii s (37,207) —
Total hedges of net investments in foreign operations ............ccccccvecuriciricinicnnne. (387) (78,738)

The following shows the breakdown of increases/decreases in the amount recorded for other equity components related to cash flow hedges
and hedges of net investments in foreign operations. The amount by excluding the time value of an option contract, the forward element of
a forward contract and the foreign currency basis spread from the hedging instrument is immaterial.
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2020

Millions of yen

Cash flow hedges

Hedges of net
Currency- Interest rate- Commodity- investments in
related related related foreign operations
Balance at beginning of year............... (2,080) (2,636) 112 (8,459)
Amount occurring this reporting period . (1,020) (4,745) (143) 44
Reclassification adjUSTMENT .......cviiiiirieirieeieieeecee e 1,255 2,458 (19) —
TAX EFFECE oot 726 (574) (42) —
Balance at @nd Of YEAr .....c.ouiiiiii e (1,119) (5,498) (92) (8,414)
2021
Millions of yen
Cash flow hedges Medermalie:
Currency- Interest rate- Commodity- investments in
related related related foreign operations
Balance at beginning Of YEar ... (1,119) (5,498) (92) (8,414)
Amount occurring this reporting pPeriod ............cccoeiiiiiiiiiiiiieeeee e 7,238 (2,195) (227) (391)
Reclassification adjuStMENt .........cociueueiriieicieis e (466) — 155 —
TAX ©FFQC .o (2,083) 94 65 22
Balance at end Of YEar .......ovueuiiiiiiiiee e 3,568 (7,599) (99) (8,783)
2021
Thousands of U.S. dollars
Cash flow hedges el
Currency- Interest rate- Commodity- investments in
related related related foreign operations
Balance at beginning of Year ..........cceiiiiieiieee e (10,081) (49,531) (828) (75,801)
Amount occurring this reporting period ..o 65,207 (19,774) (2,045) (3,522)
Reclassification adjUStMENt .........ccociueueiriiciiieieee e (4,198) —_ 1,396 —_
TaX ©FF@CE et (18,765) 846 585 198
Balance at end Of YEar .......ccuiuiiiiiiiieie e 32,144 (68,459) (891) (79,126)

(3) Impact of hedges on the Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income
The following shows the amount of cash flow hedges and hedges of net investments in foreign operations recorded as other comprehensive
income (before tax effect) on the Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income.

2020
Millions of yen
Main items on the Consolidated
Other comprehensive Statement of Profit or Loss and
income occurring during  Portion reclassified as profit Other Comprehensive Income used
this reporting period for the period to present reclassified portion
Cash flow hedges
Currency-related ... (1,020) 1,255 (Note1)
Interest rate-related (4,745) 2,458 (Note2)
Commodity-related ........ovveieririeieeeeiee e (143) (19 (Note3)
Total cash flow hedges ......ccviiiiiiiirirececcc e (5,909) 3,694
Hedges of net investments in foreign operations ...............c.......... 44 —

(Note1) “Revenue”, “Cost of sales” and “Other operating income”
(Note2) “Interest expenses”
(Note3) “Revenue”
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2021
Millions of yen
Main items on the Consolidated
Other comprehensive Statement of Profit or Loss and
income occurring during  Portion reclassified as profit Other Comprehensive Income used
this reporting period for the period to present reclassified portion
Cash flow hedges
Currency-related ...t 7,238 (466) (Note1)
Interest rate-related ...........occoovvieiiiiiiieeee e (2,195) — (Note2)
Commodity-related ........ovveerireieeeeeee e (227) 155 (Note3)
Total cash flow hedges .......cviiiiiiiieeeece e 4,815 (310)
Hedges of net investments in foreign operations ...............c.c........ (391) —
2021
Thousands of U.S. dollars
Main items on the Consolidated
Other comprehensive Statement of Profit or Loss and
income occurring during Portion reclassified as profit Other Comprehensive Income used
this reporting period for the period to present reclassified portion
Cash flow hedges
CUIMTENCY-related ......ciiiiiirieeeeeee e 65,207 (4,198) (Note1)
Interest rate-related (19,774) — (Note2)
Commodity-related (2,045) 1,396 (Note3)
Total cash flow hedges ........coceuerriiiiicc s 43,378 (2,792)
Hedges of net investments in foreign operations .............c.cccc...... (3,522) —

(Note1) “Revenue”, “Cost of sales” and “Other operating income”
(Note2) “Interest expenses”
(Note3) “Revenue”

(9) Derivatives
The breakdown of derivatives by type was as follows.

Thousands of

Millions of yen U.S. dollars
2020 2021 2021
Currency-related deriVatiVES ..........cciiiiriiiirieieeeieiei ettt es e (522) (634) (5,711)
Interest rate-related derivatives ... (722) (622) (5,603)
Commodity-related derivatives 452 (853) (7,684)
TOTAL ettt ettt nesenn (792) (2,111) (19,018)
Derivative financial assets (CUMMENt @SSETS) ........ccvoiioueiiiieeeieeeeeeeeeeeeeee oot 5,055 4,734 42,648
Derivative financial assets (NON-CUITENt @SSELS) ..........cc.evveieieiereereeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeee oo 173 3 27
Derivative financial liabilities (Current labilities) ..........covveeveiieieeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeee e (5,257) (6,193) (55,792)
Derivative financial liabilities (Non-current i@bilities) ...........ccooveiiioiieeieeeeeeeeee e (763) (656) (5,909)
TOTA ettt ettt a et s st n s senn (792) (2,111) (19,018)
1) Currency-related
Millions of yen Thousands of U.S. dollars
2020 2021 2021
Amount of Amount of Amount of
Type contracts Fair value contracts Fair value contracts Fair value
Forward exchange transactions
Selling in U.S. dollars/buying in Japanese yen 94,354 (289) 63,814 (2,356) 574,900 (21,225)
Selling in Japanese yen/buying in U.S. dollars ... 78,717 756 50,457 1,759 454,567 15,846
OthErS v 124,974 (990) 143,554 (38) 1,293,279 (342)
Total forward exchange transactions ...........ccccccovecueuene. 298,045 (522) 257,826 (634) 2,322,756 (5,711)
Total currency-related derivatives ...........cccoeeeee. — (522) — (634) — (5,711)
Currency-related derivatives not designated as hedges ..... — 883 — (2,276) — (20,504)
Currency-related derivatives designated as hedges ......... — (1,406) — 1,641 — 14,783
TOtAl oo — (522) — (634) — (5,711)
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2) Interest rate-related

Millions of yen

Thousands of U.S. dollars

2020 2021 2021
Amount of Amount of Amount of
Type contracts Fair value contracts Fair value contracts Fair value
Interest rate swap transactions
Floating rate received/fixed rate paid ...........c.ccccccoece. 27,713 (722) 22,835 (622) 205,720 (5,603)
Total floating rate received/fixed rate paid 27,713 (722) 22,835 (622) 205,720 (5,603)
Total interest rate-related derivatives ..........c..cccocue...... — (722) — (622) — (5,603)
Interest rate-related derivatives not
designated as hedges ........cccccoeevvinicicnnne. — 0) — — — —
Interest rate-related derivatives
designated as hedges .........ccccovivivirinininnnee. — (721) — (622) — (5,603)
TOtal ceeiiceieee s — (722) — (622) — (5,603)
3) Commodity-related
Millions of yen Thousands of U.S. dollars
2020 2021 2021
Amount of Amount of Amount of
Type contracts Fair value contracts Fair value contracts Fair value
Commodity futures transactions
Metals & Coal
SelliNg v 8,236 406 11,806 (491) 106,360 (4,423)
BUYING ettt 3,281 (285) 4,945 34 44,549 306
QOils
SelliNg vt 78 (1) — — — —
Foods
1,846 87 — — — —
2,103 9) 1,015 (14) 9,144 (126)
Total selling .c.evevvveieecciiiiccceccce 10,162 492 11,806 (491) 106,360 (4,423)
Total buying .c.c.eveeeeceiiicceeccceeee 5,385 (295) 5,961 20 53,702 180
Commodity forwards transactions
Metals & Coal
SelliNG v 6,282 61) 5,899 (55) 53,144 (495)
BUYING weveeeirieieieieieiieeie e 29,176 317 24,750 (314) 222,972 (2,828)
Oils
SelliNG v — — 21 (12) 189 (108)
Total selling 6,282 61) 5,920 (67) 53,333 (603)
Total buying 29,176 317 24,750 (314) 222,972 (2,828)
Total commodity-related derivatives — 452 — (853) — (7,684)
Commodity-related derivatives not
designated as hedges .........cccoevvvvieieiriniennnen. — (127) — (430) — (3,873)
Commodity-related derivatives designated as hedges ... — 579 — (423) — (3,810)
TOtal e — 452 — (853) — (7,684)
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FINANCIAL SECTION

(10) Transfer of financial assets

The Group liquidates certain trade receivables by discounting notes or the like. However, with respect to some liquidated receivables, the
Group may be obligated to make payments as recourse for non-payment by the debtor. The Group continues to recognize such liquidated
receivables as they do not meet the criteria for derecognition of financial assets.

The Group recognized such liquidated assets as “Trade and other receivables” in the amounts of ¥17,598 million and ¥19,506 million
(U.S.$175,729 thousand) as of March 31, 2020 and March 31, 2021, respectively. In addition, liabilities relating to the deposit amounts which
arose upon the transfer of such assets were accounted for as “Bonds and borrowings” in the amounts of ¥17,598 million and ¥19,506 million
(U.S.$175,729 thousand) as of March 31, 2020 and March 31, 2021, respectively. Such liabilities are settled when payments for such
liquidated assets are made, and the Group may not use such liquidated assets until such settlement occurs.

(11) Offsetting financial assets and financial liabilities

As of March 31, 2020 and March 31, 2021, financial assets and financial liabilities recognized for the same counterparties included financial
instruments that were not offset even though they were covered by an enforceable master netting arrangement or similar agreement
because they did not meet some or all of the offsetting criteria, were as follows.

Thousands of

Millions of yen U.S. dollars
2020 2021 2021

Net amounts of financial assets presented in the Consolidated Statement

OF FINANCIAI POSITION ..ttt ettt ettt et eea e e e et et e eee et e eneeeeeneeneneeenee 5,229 4,738 42,684
Amounts that were not offset even though they were covered by

an enforceable master netting arrangement or similar agreement because

they did not meet some or all of the offsetting Criteria ........ccocovieueierninieeir e (1,281) (855) (7,702)
Net amounts of financial assets after dedUCHNG .......c.evvieiiieueiririiicieree e 3,947 3,882 34,972

Thousands of
Millions of yen U.S. dollars

2020 2021 2021

Net amounts of financial liabilities presented in the Consolidated Statement
OF FINANCIAI POSHION ...ttt ettt ae e e et e s e enean 6,021 6,849 61,702

Amounts that were not offset even though they were covered by
an enforceable master netting arrangement or similar agreement because
they did not meet some or all of the offsetting criteria .........cocoeeeeiiiiiriecccceeee (1,281) (855) (7,702)

Net amounts of financial liabilities after deducting ..........ccceuerriiicie e 4,739 5,994 54,000

When financial assets and financial liabilities are not offset because they do not meet some or all of the criteria required for offsetting, the
right of offset for financial instruments only becomes enforceable in specific cases, such as the inability of a customer to fulfill its obligations
due to insolvency, etc.

SHARE-BASED PAYMENT

The Company has introduced an equity-settled share-based remuneration system as a remuneration system closely linked to corporate
performance and having high transparency and objectivity, with the objective of heightening directors’ and executive officers’ awareness
toward making contributions to improving Sojitz's performance and to increasing its corporate value over the medium-to-long term.

The system uses a BIP trust (Board Incentive Plan trust).

This trust delivers and provides Sojitz shares and cash equivalent to the conversion amount of Sojitz shares (“Sojitz Shares,” collectively) as
well as dividends on the Sojitz shares to directors, commensurate with factors such as executive rank and achievement level of performance
targets.

Shares held by the BIP trust are recorded as treasury stock, with the system recorded as equity-settled share-based remuneration.

The Company recognizes share remuneration expenses for the year ended March 31, 2021 based on the share delivery points which the
Company anticipates will be granted to directors for the service for the year ended March 31, 2021. The number of shares held in trust as of
March 31, 2021 was 1,547,972.

The Company recorded ¥140 million and ¥108 million (U.S.$ 972 thousand) in expenses related to this system for the years ended March
31, 2020, and March 31, 2021, respectively.
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LEASES

(1) As lessee
The Group leases real estate such as office buildings, machinery and other equipment as lessee.

1) Carrying amount of right-of-use assets
The breakdown of the carrying amount of right-of-use assets was as follows.

Thousands of

Millions of yen U.S. dollars
2020 2021 2021

Underlying assets of buildings and StrUCTUIES .........c.ccouviviiiiuiiriniicciereceeces e 55,659 52,605 473,918
Underlying assets of machinery and vehicles ..o 9,924 11,400 102,702
Underlying assets of tools, furniture & fIXTUIES .........cvoveveiririririeeeeieeieeeee e 1,001 885 7,972
Underlying @ssets Of [and ........coviiiiiiiiniiiieiic et 7,450 7,760 69,909
ONEIS ..t 100 170 1,531
TOTA ettt 74,136 72,821 656,045

Thousands of

Millions of yen U.S. dollars
2020 2021 2021
INCrease IN Mght-Of-USE @SSELS .......iiuiuiiririiiiiieieieiii ittt nns 27,253 15,607 140,603

2) Expenses, income, and cash flow relating to leases as lessee
The breakdown of the expenses, income, and cash flow relating to leases as lessee was as follows.

Thousands of

Millions of yen U.S. dollars
2020 2021 2021

Depreciation of right-0f-USE @SSEtS ..........cccriiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiceicecec e

Underlying assets of buildings and structures .. (10,283) (10,940) (98,558)
Underlying assets of machinery and Vehicles ............oooiiiiiiiiiiec s (2,494) (2,325) (20,945)
Underlying assets of tools, Furniture & fIXTUIES .........cvoveiriririeieieeeieieeeeee e (359) (353) (3,180)
Underlying @ssets Of [and ........coviiiiiiiiiiiiieiice et (514) (585) (5,270)
Others (25) (45) (405)
TOTAL ettt ettt ettt ettt sttt ettt a st sttt s s s senn (13,678) (14,250) (128,378)
Interest expenses for lease liabilities .............ccoiiiiiiiiiiiccc (1,446) (1,278) (11,513)
Expenses for Short-term [€ases ..o (2,533) (3,886) (35,009)
Expenses for [eases of [oW-Value ...........c.ccciiiiiiiiiiiiiiccccec e (1,397) (870) (7,837)
Expenses for variable lease payments not included in the measurement of lease liabilities ........ (44) (23) (207)
Income from subleasing right-0f-USE @SSETS .........cccurieirieiriiiiieirieieeeee e 89 124 1,117
Total expenses relating to [eases (Net) ...........ccoiiiiiiiiiicc e (19,009) (20,184) (181,837)
Total cash outflow relating to 18ASES ....c.cvuiiuiiiiiiriiiieieiri e (18,168) (20,293) (182,819)

There was no materiality in the gains or losses from sale and leaseback transactions.
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FINANCIAL SECTION

3) Lease liabilities
The maturity analysis of undiscounted lease liabilities was as follows.

Thousands of

Millions of yen U.S. dollars
2020 2021 2021
Within one year to due date 15,936 17,148 154,486
Between one and two years to due date 12,500 12,968 116,828
Between two and three years to due date ... 10,507 9,989 89,990
Between three and four years to due date ..o 8,309 7,872 70,918
Between four and five years to due date .. . 7,683 7,360 66,306
Over five Years t0 dUE ATE .......c.ceuiuiiiiiiieieiiecie ettt 30,957 26,092 235,063
Total undiscounted lease PayMENTS .........c.cccviiiriiiriiiniiiciececece e 85,894 81,431 733,612
[METEHsEIEEES e oo o e o e e oY T T T X P X e XXX Y XTere 6,911) (4,192) (37,765)
Total discounted lease payments .. . 78,983 77,238 695,837
CUITENT TADIITIES ..ttt es s enenenens 15,317 16,778 151,153
NON-CUITENT TADITIES .o ettt ettt et e e e ea e e e eaeeanes 63,666 60,460 544,684
TOTA ettt ettt et a et ettt n s senn 78,983 77,238 695,837

(2) As lessor
The Group leases out ships, real estate, railcars and other assets.

1) Income from leases
The breakdown of the income relating to leases was as follows.

Thousands of

Millions of yen U.S. dollars
2020 2021 2021
Profit and loss from sales recognized at the commencement date of a lease .........ccccovvvvvrinee. 23 — —
Financial income on net investment in the [€aSe .........cvvvieeeeeceecee e 31 31 279
Total income relating to finance [8aSes (NEt) .......coiiiuiiririiiieeece e 55! 31 279
Income relating to operating 1€ases .............ccciviiiiiiiiiiiiiiccc 5,473 5,362 48,306

Among income relating to finance leases and operating leases, there was no materiality to any income relating to variable lease payments
that do not depend on an index or rate.

2) Maturity analysis of lease payments to be received
(a) Finance leases
The maturity analysis of undiscounted lease payments receivable relating to finance leases was as follows.

Thousands of

Millions of yen U.S. dollars
2020 2021 2021
Within one year to dUE date ........cccciiiiiiiiiiiicieiecee ettt 122 346 3,117
Between one and two years to due date 106 329 2,963
Between two and three years to due date 92 230 2,072
Between three and four years to due date .........oeuieiiiiieiiiriceies e 80 148 1,333
Between four and five years to due date ..o 86 155 1,396
Over five years to due date ........ccoceeueeereeiennnn, . 1,392 1,411 12,711
Total undiscounted lease payments to be received ... 1,880 2,622 23,621
Unearned fiNancial INCOME ........ooviiieeeee ettt (896) (1,116) (10,054)
Net INVESTMENT IN ThE [EASE ...ttt et e e e e e e e e eeaeeea 984 1,505 13,558
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(b) Operating leases
The maturity analysis of lease payments to be received relating to operating leases was as follows.

Thousands of

Millions of yen U.S. dollars
2020 2021 2021
Within one year to due date 3,604 3,362 30,288
Between one and two years to due date 2,405 1,837 16,549
Between two and three years to due date ... 1,173 1,002 9,027
Between three and four years to due date ..o 1,068 5,111 46,045
Between four and five years to due date .. . 976 903 8,135
Over five Years t0 dUE ATE .......cceuiuiiiiiiieieiiieet ettt ettt 8,807 5,027 45,288
TOTA ettt ettt ettt sttt s et s st n ettt s s s s senn 18,036 17,245 155,360

<I.8 PLEDGED ASSETS

(1) Assets pledged as security
The breakdown of assets pledged to secure debts and corresponding liabilities was as follows.

Thousands of

Millions of yen U.S. dollars
2020 2021 2021
Assets pledged as security
[[aIV =Y a1 o A== 9,855 10,152 91,459
Property, plant and @qUIPMENT .........ccuiuiiiiiiiiiiiiiceceeeccece e 31,922 42,807 385,648
INTANGIDIE @SSETS ...ttt bttt — 11,299 101,792
INVESTMENT PIrOPEIY ....viieciciccic e 1,517 — —
Oher INVESTMENTS ...eviiiiicieieit ettt ettt 9 16 144
Others ........ 9,106 15,219 137,108
Total ... 52,412 79,496 716,180
Corresponding liabilities
Trade and other payables ... 8,297 8,050 72,522
BONdS N DOMMOWINGS ....vvieieieiii sttt en e enenenens 18,564 31,810 286,576
ORI ettt ettt ettt 26,861 39,861 359,108

(Note) With respect to assets pledged as security other than those listed above, there are subsidiaries’ stocks which were eliminated in the Consolidated Financial Statements.

Trust receipts issued under customary import financing arrangements give banks a security interest in the goods imported or sales
proceeds resulting from the sales of such goods. Due to the large volume of transactions, it is impracticable to determine the aggregate
amounts of assets covered by outstanding trust receipts and those transactions were not included in the above amounts.

(2) Assets pledged in lieu of guarantee money
The breakdown of assets pledged in lieu of guarantee money or the like was as follows.

Thousands of

Millions of yen U.S. dollars
2020 2021 2021

INVENTOTIES vttt e e et e et e e e e e aaeesaeeeeaeeeaseeesseeesseensaeensaeesseeanseeanaeennsesnnaeennaenns 800 186 1,675
Property, plant and eqUIPMENt ..o 834 242 2,180
INTANGIDIE BSSEES ...ttt 3,063 1,515 13,648
Investments accounted for using the equity method . 59,942 57,401 517,126
OthEr INVESTMENTS ...c.uieiiiieet ettt a s sttt ettt s es e eseseneneneas 603 10 90
ONEIS. etttk h ettt h et h sttt ettt ettt bene e 5,659 2,626 23,657
TOTAI ettt btttk b ettt ettt ebenen 70,904 61,981 558,387

(Note) With respect to assets pledged in lieu of guarantee money other than those listed above, there are subsidiaries’ stocks, which were eliminated in the Consolidated
Financial Statements.
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FINANCIAL SECTION

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

The Group is contingently liable for guarantees of the following loans from banks borrowed by companies other than its subsidiaries.
The Group may become responsible for the amounts that are unpayable by the borrower and for losses attached to such unpayable
amounts.

Thousands of

Millions of yen U.S. dollars
2020 2021 2021
Guarantees for obligations of Entities subject to Equity Method ...........ccccoocuiiiiiniininiiicininns 42,972 46,476 418,702
Guarantees for obligations of third Parties ..............ccceieiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiieeee i 2,541 555 5,000
TOTAL et ettt ettt ettt ettt et eanene e 45,514 47,031 423,702

SIGNIFICANT SUBSIDIARIES

The Company'’s significant subsidiaries are as set forth under “Organizational Information: List of Main Subsidiaries and Associates.”

RELATED PARTIES

(1) Related party transactions
Related party transactions are priced at an arm’s length basis and there exists no such transactions of significance.

(2) Remuneration for management executives
The remuneration for the Company’s management executives for the years ended March 31, 2020 and March 31, 2021 was ¥411 million and
¥385 million (U.S.$3,468 thousand), respectively.

The detailed information of the remuneration is as set forth under “Remuneration of Directors and Audit & Supervisory Board Members.”

m SUBSEQUENT EVENT

(1) Share repurchase of treasury stock
At a meeting of the Board of Directors held on April 30, 2021, it has authorized the repurchase of shares of ordinary share pursuant to Article
156 of the Companies Act of Japan, as applied pursuant to Paragraph 3, Article 165 of the Companies Act, as described below.

A. Purpose of the share repurchase
The company repurchase its own shares with the aim of allocating a portion of the surplus core cash flow generated over the course of
Medium-term Management Plan 2020 to shareholders in tandem with investment for growth.

B. Details of the share repurchase

i. Class of shares to be repurchased

Ordinary share

ii. Total number of shares to be repurchased
Up to 50,000,000 shares

(Represents approximately 4.2% of the total number of outstanding shares (excluding treasury stock))
iii. Total purchase price for repurchase of shares
Up to 15 billion yen

iv. Period of repurchase

May 1, 2021 to September 30, 2021

v. Method of repurchase

Purchase on the Tokyo Stock Exchange
(Discretionary trading by securities company)

(2) Share consolidation
The Company announced that the Board of Directors held on April 30, 2021, resolved to propose share consolidation in the agenda for the
18th Ordinary General Meeting of Shareholders to be held on June 18, 2021.

A. Purpose of the share consolidation
The shares of ordinary share will be consolidated on the basis of one post-consolidation share per five pre-consolidation shares.
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The decision to conduct share consolidation was made to improve the Company’s stock price as it has been significantly below the

level of between 50,000 yen and 500,000 yen defined as ideal in the guidelines for listed securities put forth by the Tokyo Stock Exchange.

B. Details of the share consolidation

i. Type of shares to be consolidated

Ordinary share

ii. Consolidation ratio

One post-consolidation shares per five pre-consolidation shares based on the shares owned by the shareholders recorded in the
shareholder register as of September 30, 2021.

iii. Effective date

October 1, 2021

iv. Total number of authorized shares

500,000,000 shares

As a result of the share consolidation, the Company will be deemed to have amended its Articles of Incorporation regarding the above-

mentioned total number of authorized shares as of the effective date of the share consolidation pursuant to Article 182, Paragraph 2 of the

Companies Act of Japan.
v. Number of shares to be reduced by the consolidation (Number of shares to be reduced by the consolidation could be changed)

a. Total number of issued shares before the consolidation as of March 31, 2021 1,251,499,501
b. Number of shares to be reduced by the consolidation 1,001,199,601
c. Total number of issued shares after the consolidation 250,299,900

(Note) “Number of shares to be reduced by the consolidation” and “Total number of issued shares after the consolidation” are theoretical figures based on the total number

of issued shares before the consolidation and the consolidation ratio.

C. Cases of fractions of less than one share

In the event the Share Consolidation generates fractions of shares less than one share, the fractions shall be collectively disposed in
accordance with Japan’s Companies Act, and the shareholders who own fractions of less than one share shall be paid for the disposition
value in proportion to the amount of the fractions.

(3) Bond issuance
In May 2021, the Company issued unsecured bonds in accordance with the limits and general conditions for bond issuance, approved by the
Board of Directors on February 26, 2021.

The details of the bond are as follows;

(1) Name of bond The 38th unsecured bond
(2)  Total face value of bond 10,000 million yen
3 Unit amount of bond 100 million yen
4) Total amount of bond issue 10,000 million yen
(5)  lIssue price 100 yen per 100 yen of face value
(6) Interest rate on bond Annual rate of 0.550%
(7)  Interest payment date May 27 and November 27 for each year
(8) Redemption of bond a) Redemption at maturity
b) Retirement by purchase
(9 Redemption price 100 yen per 100 yen of face value
(10)  Due date of the payment May 27, 2021
(11)  Date of bond issue May 27, 2021
(12)  Maturity date May 27, 2031
(13)  Country of bond issue Japan
(14)  Method of offer Public offering
(15)  Secured mortgage/guarantee Unsecured/unguaranteed
(16)  Use of funds The funds will be used for a part of repayment of loans that are due by the end of March 2022.

APPROVAL OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Consolidated Financial Statements were authorized for issue by Masayoshi Fujimoto, President and Chief Executive Officer, and Seiichi
Tanaka, Chief Financial Officer, on June 18, 2021.
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